
 

 

 
 

BOARD 

OF 

COMMISSIONERS 
 

 

 

August 05, 2019 

7:00 PM 

 

 



Agenda – Camden County Board of Commissioners  August 05, 2019 

  Page 2 of 4 

 

 

This agenda is only a tentative schedule of matters the Commissioners may address at their 

meeting and all items found on it may be deleted, amended or deferred. The Commissioners may 

also, in their absolute discretion, consider matters not shown on this agenda. 
 

Special accommodations for the disabled who attend public meetings can be made by contacting 

the Clerk to the Board 24 hours in advance at 252-338-6363, Ext. 100. 

 

Please turn Cell Phone ringers off during the meeting. 
 

Agenda 
 

Camden County Board of Commissioners 

BOC - Regular Meeting 

August 05, 2019 

7:00 PM 

Historic Courtroom, Courthouse Complex 

 

 Call to Order 

ITEM  6:00 PM Closed Session - Contract Negotiation 

ITEM  7:00 PM Reconvene Board of Commissioners 

 Welcome, Invocation & Pledge of Allegiance 

 Rev. Boyce Porter - Geneva Baptist Church 

ITEM 1. Public Comments 

It is requested that comments be limited to (2-3) minutes. The length and number of comments 

may be limited upon the Chairman’s discretion due to scheduling and other issues. 

ITEM 2. Consideration of Agenda (For discussion and possible action) 

ITEM 3. Conflict of Interest Disclosure Statement 

ITEM 4. Presentations (For discussion and possible action) 

A. Emergency Management - Christy Saunders 

Recess to South Camden Water & Sewer District Board of Directors 

Reconvene Board of Commissioners 

ITEM 5. Public Hearings 

A. Ordinance 2019-07-01 Rezoning Application Camden County - Dan Porter 



Agenda – Camden County Board of Commissioners  August 05, 2019 

  Page 3 of 4 

 

ITEM 6. New Business (For discussion and possible action) 

A. Tax Report - Lisa Anderson 

B. Travel Policy - Ken Bowman 

C. Revised Camden Code Chapter 150 Minimum Housing Code - Dan Porter 

ITEM 7. Board Appointments (For discussion and possible action) 

A. Parks & Recreation Advisory Board 

ITEM 8. Consent Agenda  

A. BOC Meeting Minutes - July 8, 2019 

B. BOC Meeting Minutes - July 9, 2019 

C. Budget Transfers 

D. Budget Amendments 

E. DMV Monthly Report 

F. Tax Collection Report 

G. Pickups, Releases & Refunds 

H. Surplus Property - Sheriff's Office 

I. Grant Application - Sheriff's Office 

J. Home & Community Care Block Grant for Older Adults 

K. The American Legion Dept. of North Carolina Request 

L. Annual Senior Nutrition Contract 

M. Set Public Hearing - Ordinance 2019-09-01 Rezoning Application 

ITEM 9. County Manager's Report 

ITEM 10. Commissioners' Reports 

ITEM 11. Information, Reports & Minutes From Other Agencies 

A. FY 18-19 YTD Sales Tax Revenue Collection 

B. Register of Deeds Report 

C. Library Report 

D. NC Forest Service Annual Report 



Agenda – Camden County Board of Commissioners  August 05, 2019 

  Page 4 of 4 

 

ITEM 12. Other Matters (For discussion and possible action) 

ITEM 13. Adjourn 



 

Board of Commissioners 

AGENDA ITEM SUMMARY SHEET 

 
Presentations 

 

Item Number: 4.A 

Meeting Date:   August 05, 2019 

 

Submitted By: Karen Davis, Clerk to the Board 

 Administration 

 Prepared by: Karen Davis 

 
Item Title   Emergency Management - Christy Saunders 

 

Attachments:  

 

Summary: 

Emergency Management Coordinator Christy Saunders will give a brief presentation on the 

Know Your Zone (Hurricane Evacuation Zones) information that will be soon released to the 

public. 

4.A

Packet Pg. 5



 

Board of Commissioners 

AGENDA ITEM SUMMARY SHEET 

 
Public Hearings 

 

Item Number: 5.A 

Meeting Date:   August 05, 2019 

 

Submitted By: Dan Porter, Planning Director 

 Planning & Zoning 

 Prepared by: Karen Davis 

 
Item Title   Public Hearing - Ordinance 2019-07-01 Rezoning Application 

Camden County 

 

Attachments: Agenda Summary Sheet Ordinance 2019-07-01

 (DOC) 

Camden Rezoning Findings (DOCX) 

Camden County BOC letter_072319 (002) (PDF) 

Supporting Documents (PDF) 

2019-07-01 - Ordinance Amending the Official Zoning 

Map - Camden County

 (DOC) 

 

See attached agenda summary and supporting documentation. 

5.A

Packet Pg. 6



            
      

 

Camden County Board of Commissioners 
AGENDA ITEM SUMMARY SHEET 

        

Item Number:  

     

Meeting Date:   August 5, 2019 

Attachments:   Ordinance/Findings/Planning Board  

   Recommendation  

Submitted By: Planning Department  

 

ITEM TITLE:  Public hearing - Ordinance 2019-07-01; 
Rezoning Application (UDO 2019-05-28) 
for Camden County 

 
SUMMARY: 
 

Neighborhood meeting was held March 1, 2019 at the South Mills Fire Station (comments included in 

attached staff report). 

 

Planning Board met on June 19, 2019 and after discussion with Staff, adjacent property owners, and the 

representative for the Naval Support Activity Hampton Roads who submitted a letter on concerns with 

proposed uses and their possible effects on the Relocatable Over the Horizon Radar (ROTHR) included in 

packet, Planning Board recommended approval of the rezoning on a 6-0 vote. 

  

(1) Consistency Statement:    

 

The requested zoning is consistent with Camden County’s Comprehensive Plan as it has property identified 

as Mixed-Use Employment which uses are permitted in the Highway Commercial Zoning District.  

 
RECOMMENDATION: 
 

1. Hold public hearing. 

2. Amend Agenda for consideration 

 

If recommendation is for approval need the following two (2) motions: 

 

Consistency Statement:   

 

- The requested zoning is consistent with Camden County’s Comprehensive Plan as it has property 

identified as Mixed-Use Employment which uses are permitted in the Highway Commercial 

Zoning District.  

- Motion to approve Ordinance 2019-07-01/Rezoning Application (UDO 2019-05-

28). 
 

 

 

 

MOTION MADE BY: 

T. White         ____ 

C. Riggs        ____ 

G. Meiggs      ____ 

R. Krainiak     ____ 

R. Munro        ____ 

NO MOTION   ____ 
 
VOTE: 

T. White         ____ 

C. Riggs         ____ 

G. Meiggs      ____ 

R. Krainiak     ____ 
R. Munro        ____ 
ABSENT         ____ 
RECUSED      ____ 
 

5.A.a

Packet Pg. 7

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 A

g
en

d
a 

S
u

m
m

ar
y 

S
h

ee
t 

O
rd

in
an

ce
 2

01
9-

07
-0

1 
 (

24
55

 :
 P

u
b

lic
 H

ea
ri

n
g

 -
 O

rd
in

an
ce

 2
01

9-
07

-0
1 

R
ez

o
n

in
g

 A
p

p
lic

at
io

n
 C

am
d

en



` 

 

 

 

STAFF REPORT 

 

UDO 2019-05-28 

 

 Zoning Map Amendment  
 

 

 

PROJECT INFORMATION 

 

File Reference:  UDO 2019-05-28 

Project Name; N/A 

PIN:     01-7071-00-67-6843 

 

Applicant:    Camden County 

 

Address:   117 N. 343 

                                    Camden, NC  

 Phone:   (252) 338-1919 

 Email:     

 

Agent for Applicant:        

 Address:              

 Phone:      

 Email:     

Current Owner of Record:  Applicant 

Meeting Dates: 

  

5/29/2019  Neighborhood Meeting 

6/19/2019   Planning Board

 Application Received: 5/16/2019 

By:  David Parks, Permit Officer 

 

Application Fee paid:  N/A 

 

Completeness of Application:  Application is 

generally complete 

 

Documents received upon filing of application 

or otherwise included: 

A. Rezoning Application  

B. GIS Aerial, existing zoning, Comprehensive 

Plan/CAMA Plan future land use maps, and 

CAMA Land Use Plan Suitability Maps 

 C.       Table of Permissible Use comparison. 

 D.       U.S. Highway 17 Corridor Plan 

 E.  Neighborhood meeting comments. 

 F.    Liaison Officer Navy Support Activity letter   

 

 

____________________________________________________________________________________ 

 

 

REQUEST:  Rezone approximately 260 acres from Working Lands (WL) to Highway Commercial 

(HC) on property located at the intersections of U.S. 17 and McPherson Road. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

5.A.b

Packet Pg. 8

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 C

am
d

en
 R

ez
o

n
in

g
 F

in
d

in
g

s 
 (

24
55

 :
 P

u
b

lic
 H

ea
ri

n
g

 -
 O

rd
in

an
ce

 2
01

9-
07

-0
1 

R
ez

o
n

in
g

 A
p

p
lic

at
io

n
 C

am
d

en
 C

o
u

n
ty

 -
 D

an
 P

o
rt

er
)



` 

 From:  Working Lands (WL) 

  

The Working Lands (WL) district is established 

to accommodate agriculture, agriculturally-

related uses, and limited forms residential 

development at very low densities in rural 

portions of the County.  The district is primarily 

intended to preserve and protect bona fide farms 

and resource lands for current or future 

agricultural use as well as to protect the rural 

character of the area.  One of the primary tools 

for character protection is the requirement to 

configure residential subdivisions of more than 

five lots as conservation subdivisions.  The 

conservation subdivision approach seeks to 

minimize the visibility of new residential 

development from adjacent roadways through 

proper placement and screening, and allows 

farmers to capture a portion of the land’s 

development potential while continuing to farm.  

Conservation subdivisions allow a portion of a 

tract or site to be developed with single-family 

detached homes while the balance of the site is 

left as conservation or agricultural land.  The 

district also accommodates a wide range of 

agricultural and agricultural-related uses like 

“agri-tourism” as well as service and support 

uses to the rural community, including day care, 

educational uses, public safety facilities, parks, 

and utility features.

To:    Highway Commercial (HC)   

 

The Highway Commercial district is applied to 

lots along the County’s major roadways (e.g., 

US 158, US 17, NC 34, and NC 343) and is 

intended for automobile-oriented commercial 

development as well as large floorplate 

commercial uses and uses that require or 

generate truck traffic.  The district also 

accommodates agricultural and institutional uses 

as well as higher density residential uses with a 

special use permit. New development in the HC 

district is grouped and configured to ensure 

regular lateral vehicular and pedestrian access 

along major transportation routes as a means of 

establishing a well-connected transportation 

system.  New development is configured to 

maintain high visual quality along the major 

roadway, or is fully screened from view.  

Sufficient spacing and screening is included 

along lot lines shared with adjacent residential 

zoning districts to ensure compatibility. New 

commercial and multi-family developments in 

the district are subject to the design standards in  

Article 151.5 – Development Standards. 

  
 

____________________________________________________________________________________ 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

5.A.b

Packet Pg. 9

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 C

am
d

en
 R

ez
o

n
in

g
 F

in
d

in
g

s 
 (

24
55

 :
 P

u
b

lic
 H

ea
ri

n
g

 -
 O

rd
in

an
ce

 2
01

9-
07

-0
1 

R
ez

o
n

in
g

 A
p

p
lic

at
io

n
 C

am
d

en
 C

o
u

n
ty

 -
 D

an
 P

o
rt

er
)



` 

PROJECT LOCATION:

 

Vicinity Map:  South Mills Township 

 
SITE DATA 

5.A.b

Packet Pg. 10

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 C

am
d

en
 R

ez
o

n
in

g
 F

in
d

in
g

s 
 (

24
55

 :
 P

u
b

lic
 H

ea
ri

n
g

 -
 O

rd
in

an
ce

 2
01

9-
07

-0
1 

R
ez

o
n

in
g

 A
p

p
lic

at
io

n
 C

am
d

en
 C

o
u

n
ty

 -
 D

an
 P

o
rt

er
)



` 

 

 

Lot size:   Approximately 260 acres.                          

Flood Zone:   X 

Zoning District(s):  Working Lands 

Existing Land Uses:  Farmland/Sewer Plant Spray Field 

 

Adjacent Zoning & Uses: 

 North South  East West 

Zoning Planned 

Development 

(PD) 

Rural 

Residential/Planned 

Unit Development 

(PUD) 

Rural Residential 

(RR) 

Working Lands 

(WL) 

Use & size Camden 

Commerce Park 

Camden Plantation Farmland Dismal Swamp 

 

 

Proposed Use(s):  Commercial Uses. 

 

 

Description of property:  Majority of property being farmed with the portion to the East being used as 

a Sewage Treatment Facility holding pond/spray field.    

      

 

 

ENVIRONMENTAL  ASSESSMENT 

 

Streams, Creeks, Major Ditches:   Property drains into the Dismal Swamp Canal. 

Distance & description of nearest outfall:  Less than 1 mile.    

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

5.A.b

Packet Pg. 11

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 C

am
d

en
 R

ez
o

n
in

g
 F

in
d

in
g

s 
 (

24
55

 :
 P

u
b

lic
 H

ea
ri

n
g

 -
 O

rd
in

an
ce

 2
01

9-
07

-0
1 

R
ez

o
n

in
g

 A
p

p
lic

at
io

n
 C

am
d

en
 C

o
u

n
ty

 -
 D

an
 P

o
rt

er
)



` 

Current Zoning: 

 

 

5.A.b

Packet Pg. 12

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 C

am
d

en
 R

ez
o

n
in

g
 F

in
d

in
g

s 
 (

24
55

 :
 P

u
b

lic
 H

ea
ri

n
g

 -
 O

rd
in

an
ce

 2
01

9-
07

-0
1 

R
ez

o
n

in
g

 A
p

p
lic

at
io

n
 C

am
d

en
 C

o
u

n
ty

 -
 D

an
 P

o
rt

er
)



` 

 

 

Comprehensive Plan Future Land Use Map 

 

5.A.b

Packet Pg. 13

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 C

am
d

en
 R

ez
o

n
in

g
 F

in
d

in
g

s 
 (

24
55

 :
 P

u
b

lic
 H

ea
ri

n
g

 -
 O

rd
in

an
ce

 2
01

9-
07

-0
1 

R
ez

o
n

in
g

 A
p

p
lic

at
io

n
 C

am
d

en
 C

o
u

n
ty

 -
 D

an
 P

o
rt

er
)



` 

 

 

 

CAMA Future Land Use Map 

 

5.A.b

Packet Pg. 14

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 C

am
d

en
 R

ez
o

n
in

g
 F

in
d

in
g

s 
 (

24
55

 :
 P

u
b

lic
 H

ea
ri

n
g

 -
 O

rd
in

an
ce

 2
01

9-
07

-0
1 

R
ez

o
n

in
g

 A
p

p
lic

at
io

n
 C

am
d

en
 C

o
u

n
ty

 -
 D

an
 P

o
rt

er
)



` 

 

CAMA Land Suitability Map: 

 
 

5.A.b

Packet Pg. 15

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 C

am
d

en
 R

ez
o

n
in

g
 F

in
d

in
g

s 
 (

24
55

 :
 P

u
b

lic
 H

ea
ri

n
g

 -
 O

rd
in

an
ce

 2
01

9-
07

-0
1 

R
ez

o
n

in
g

 A
p

p
lic

at
io

n
 C

am
d

en
 C

o
u

n
ty

 -
 D

an
 P

o
rt

er
)



` 

 

 

 

INFRASTRUCTURE & COMMUNITY FACILITIES 

 

Water              Water lines are located adjacent to property along U.S. 17 and McPherson 

                                               Road. 

 

Sewer              Sewer runs along U.S. 17. 

 

Fire District   South Mills Fire District off Keeter Barn located approximately 3 miles  

                                                from property. 

  
Schools   Proposed uses in requested zoning will not impact schools.   

 

Traffic   Traffic impact analysis will be required upon development of property.  

 

 

PLANS CONSISTENCY 

 

CAMA Land Use Plan Policies & Objectives: 

 Consistent ☐  Inconsistent ☒ 

 

The proposed zoning change is inconsistent with the CAMA Land Use Plan as Future Land Use Maps 

has it designated as Low Density Residential.   Plan will need to be amended. 

 

PLANS CONSISTENCY – cont. 

 

2035 Comprehensive Plan 

 

 Consistent ☒  Inconsistent ☐ 

   
Consistent with Comprehensive Plan (Adopted 2012) as Future Land Use Maps reflect land as Mixed 

Use Employment.  To have Mixed Use Employment, water and sewer is preferred which both are 

adjacent to this parcel.   

 

PLANS CONSISTENCY – cont. 

 

Comprehensive Transportation Plan  

 

 Consistent ☒  Inconsistent ☐ 

 

Property abuts U.S. 17 and McPherson Road.  Property also does not have direct access to U.S 17. 

 

 

 

5.A.b

Packet Pg. 16

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 C

am
d

en
 R

ez
o

n
in

g
 F

in
d

in
g

s 
 (

24
55

 :
 P

u
b

lic
 H

ea
ri

n
g

 -
 O

rd
in

an
ce

 2
01

9-
07

-0
1 

R
ez

o
n

in
g

 A
p

p
lic

at
io

n
 C

am
d

en
 C

o
u

n
ty

 -
 D

an
 P

o
rt

er
)



` 

  

Other Plans officially adopted by the Board of Commissioners 

 

 N/A 

 

 

FINDINGS REGARDING ADDITIONAL REQUIREMENTS: 

 

Yes ☒ No ☐ 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Yes ☒ No ☐ 

 

 

 

 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Yes ☐ No ☒ 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Yes ☒ No ☐ 

  

 

 

 

Will the proposed zoning change enhance the public health, safety or 

welfare? 

 

Reasoning:   The proposed zoning change will enhance the public welfare 

as proposed zoning change will encourage commercial development along 

a major corridor providing a needed tax base and employment 

opportunities. 

 

 

Is the entire range of permitted uses in the requested classification 

more appropriate than the range of uses in the existing classification? 

 

Reasoning:     Requested uses are more appropriate due to the location of 

the property and infrastructure available (water & sewer).   The eastern 

portion of the property serves as the County’s Sewage Treatment Plant 

affluent holding pond/Spray Fields.    

 

 

For proposals to re-zone to non-residential districts along major 

arterial roads:    

 

 

Is this an expansion of an adjacent zoning district of the same 

classification?    

 

Reasoning:    The property abuts county owned Commercial Park 

directly to the north which is zoned as a Planned Development 

(PD) 

 

What extraordinary showing of public need or demand is met 

by this application?   

 

Reasoning:   The need for commercial development, employment 

opportunities and tax base. 

5.A.b

Packet Pg. 17

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 C

am
d

en
 R

ez
o

n
in

g
 F

in
d

in
g

s 
 (

24
55

 :
 P

u
b

lic
 H

ea
ri

n
g

 -
 O

rd
in

an
ce

 2
01

9-
07

-0
1 

R
ez

o
n

in
g

 A
p

p
lic

at
io

n
 C

am
d

en
 C

o
u

n
ty

 -
 D

an
 P

o
rt

er
)



` 

Yes ☒ No ☐ 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Yes ☐ No ☒ 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Yes ☒ No ☐ 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Yes ☐ No ☒ 

 

 

 

 

 

Will the request, as proposed cause serious noise, odors, light, activity, 

or unusual disturbances? 

 

 

Reasoning:  Some uses could cause some noise, odors, light activity, or 

unusual disturbances.   Buffering will be addressed at permit issuance for 

the use which should mitigate some of the issues.  

 

 

Does the request impact any CAMA Areas of Environmental 

Concern? 

 

 

Reasoning:  Property is outside any CAMA Areas of Environmental 

Concern.   Property located outside the 100 year floodplain. 

 

 

Does the county need more land in the zoning class requested? 

 

 

Reasoning:    In appropriate areas where location of property and 

infrastructure (water and sewer) is available.   Property abuts U.S. 17 and 

there is water and sewer available to the site. 

 

.   

 

Is there other land in the county that would be more appropriate for 

the proposed uses? 

 

Reasoning:    The property along U.S. 17 and the future I87 corridor is 

one of the most appropriate and marketable properties in the County.  The 

geographic location of the property to the Hampton Roads MSA enables 

prospective investment to capitalize upon synergistic business 

opportunities, interstate arterial routes, workforce compliment and the Port 

of Virginia. The property is also within the boundaries of Foreign Trade 

Zone #20 which offers significant value to entities engaged in global trade.   

5.A.b

Packet Pg. 18

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 C

am
d

en
 R

ez
o

n
in

g
 F

in
d

in
g

s 
 (

24
55

 :
 P

u
b

lic
 H

ea
ri

n
g

 -
 O

rd
in

an
ce

 2
01

9-
07

-0
1 

R
ez

o
n

in
g

 A
p

p
lic

at
io

n
 C

am
d

en
 C

o
u

n
ty

 -
 D

an
 P

o
rt

er
)



` 

Yes ☐ No ☒ 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Yes ☐ No ☒ 

Will not exceed the county’s ability to provide public facilities: 

 

Schools – N/A   

 

Fire and Rescue –   Level of impact would be determined upon the type 

and size of the business attracted to the site. 

 

Law Enforcement – Minimal impact. 

 

Parks & Recreation – No impact 

 

Traffic Circulation or Parking – Depends on type and size of business. 

 

Other County Facilities – No. 

 

 

Is This A Small Scale “Spot” Rezoning Request Requiring Evaluation 

Of Community Benefits?

 

If Yes (regarding small scale spot rezoning) – Applicants Reasoning: 

 

 

 Personal Benefits/Impact Community Benefits/Impact 
 

With rezoning 

 

 

  
 

    

 

Without rezoning 

 

 

    
 

    

 

 

STAFF COMMENTARY/RECOMMENDATION:    
 

The original intended use of this parcel was for utilization of the County’s Waste Water Treatment 

Facility to spray the affluent from the plant on trees.  Technology at the time required 1 acre of land to 

every 100 gallons of affluent.   New technology and possible partnership with the development 

community has diminished the amount of land required for handling affluent.  Staff feels that the current 

highest and best use of the property due to its location (abuts U.S. 17/Interstate 87) and availability of 

infrastructure (water/sewer) is commercial uses proposed under requested zoning (Highway 

Commercial). 

 

Consistency Statement:   The requested zoning is consistent with Camden County’s Comprehensive 

Plan as it has property identified as Mixed-Use Employment which uses are permitted in the Highway 

Commercial Zoning District.  

 

Staff recommends approval of the rezoning as the uses in the proposed zoning classification are more 

appropriate than that of the existing zoning classification.   

5.A.b

Packet Pg. 19

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 C

am
d

en
 R

ez
o

n
in

g
 F

in
d

in
g

s 
 (

24
55

 :
 P

u
b

lic
 H

ea
ri

n
g

 -
 O

rd
in

an
ce

 2
01

9-
07

-0
1 

R
ez

o
n

in
g

 A
p

p
lic

at
io

n
 C

am
d

en
 C

o
u

n
ty

 -
 D

an
 P

o
rt

er
)



` 

 

PLANNING BOARD RECOMMENDATION:  At their June 19, 2019 meeting, Planning Board 

recommended approval on a 6-0 vote of the rezoning request from Working Lands (WL) to Highway 

Commercial (HC) as the proposed uses in the requested zoning classification are more appropriate than 

in the existing zoning classification. 

 

Consistency Statement:  The requested zoning is consistent with Camden County’s Comprehensive 

Plan as it has property identified as Mixed-Use Employment which uses are permitted in the Highway 

Commercial Zoning District. 

 

  

5.A.b

Packet Pg. 20

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 C

am
d

en
 R

ez
o

n
in

g
 F

in
d

in
g

s 
 (

24
55

 :
 P

u
b

lic
 H

ea
ri

n
g

 -
 O

rd
in

an
ce

 2
01

9-
07

-0
1 

R
ez

o
n

in
g

 A
p

p
lic

at
io

n
 C

am
d

en
 C

o
u

n
ty

 -
 D

an
 P

o
rt

er
)



5.A.c

Packet Pg. 21

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 C

am
d

en
 C

o
u

n
ty

 B
O

C
 le

tt
er

_0
72

31
9 

(0
02

) 
 (

24
55

 :
 P

u
b

lic
 H

ea
ri

n
g

 -
 O

rd
in

an
ce

 2
01

9-
07

-0
1 

R
ez

o
n

in
g

 A
p

p
lic

at
io

n
 C

am
d

en
 C

o
u

n
ty

 -



5.A.c

Packet Pg. 22

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 C

am
d

en
 C

o
u

n
ty

 B
O

C
 le

tt
er

_0
72

31
9 

(0
02

) 
 (

24
55

 :
 P

u
b

lic
 H

ea
ri

n
g

 -
 O

rd
in

an
ce

 2
01

9-
07

-0
1 

R
ez

o
n

in
g

 A
p

p
lic

at
io

n
 C

am
d

en
 C

o
u

n
ty

 -



5.A.d

Packet Pg. 23

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 S

u
p

p
o

rt
in

g
 D

o
cu

m
en

ts
  (

24
55

 :
 P

u
b

lic
 H

ea
ri

n
g

 -
 O

rd
in

an
ce

 2
01

9-
07

-0
1 

R
ez

o
n

in
g

 A
p

p
lic

at
io

n
 C

am
d

en
 C

o
u

n
ty

 -
 D

an
 P

o
rt

er
)



5.A.d

Packet Pg. 24

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 S

u
p

p
o

rt
in

g
 D

o
cu

m
en

ts
  (

24
55

 :
 P

u
b

lic
 H

ea
ri

n
g

 -
 O

rd
in

an
ce

 2
01

9-
07

-0
1 

R
ez

o
n

in
g

 A
p

p
lic

at
io

n
 C

am
d

en
 C

o
u

n
ty

 -
 D

an
 P

o
rt

er
)



5.A.d

Packet Pg. 25

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 S

u
p

p
o

rt
in

g
 D

o
cu

m
en

ts
  (

24
55

 :
 P

u
b

lic
 H

ea
ri

n
g

 -
 O

rd
in

an
ce

 2
01

9-
07

-0
1 

R
ez

o
n

in
g

 A
p

p
lic

at
io

n
 C

am
d

en
 C

o
u

n
ty

 -
 D

an
 P

o
rt

er
)



5.A.d

Packet Pg. 26

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 S

u
p

p
o

rt
in

g
 D

o
cu

m
en

ts
  (

24
55

 :
 P

u
b

lic
 H

ea
ri

n
g

 -
 O

rd
in

an
ce

 2
01

9-
07

-0
1 

R
ez

o
n

in
g

 A
p

p
lic

at
io

n
 C

am
d

en
 C

o
u

n
ty

 -
 D

an
 P

o
rt

er
)



5.A.d

Packet Pg. 27

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 S

u
p

p
o

rt
in

g
 D

o
cu

m
en

ts
  (

24
55

 :
 P

u
b

lic
 H

ea
ri

n
g

 -
 O

rd
in

an
ce

 2
01

9-
07

-0
1 

R
ez

o
n

in
g

 A
p

p
lic

at
io

n
 C

am
d

en
 C

o
u

n
ty

 -
 D

an
 P

o
rt

er
)



5.A.d

Packet Pg. 28

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 S

u
p

p
o

rt
in

g
 D

o
cu

m
en

ts
  (

24
55

 :
 P

u
b

lic
 H

ea
ri

n
g

 -
 O

rd
in

an
ce

 2
01

9-
07

-0
1 

R
ez

o
n

in
g

 A
p

p
lic

at
io

n
 C

am
d

en
 C

o
u

n
ty

 -
 D

an
 P

o
rt

er
)



5.A.d

Packet Pg. 29

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 S

u
p

p
o

rt
in

g
 D

o
cu

m
en

ts
  (

24
55

 :
 P

u
b

lic
 H

ea
ri

n
g

 -
 O

rd
in

an
ce

 2
01

9-
07

-0
1 

R
ez

o
n

in
g

 A
p

p
lic

at
io

n
 C

am
d

en
 C

o
u

n
ty

 -
 D

an
 P

o
rt

er
)



5.A.d

Packet Pg. 30

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 S

u
p

p
o

rt
in

g
 D

o
cu

m
en

ts
  (

24
55

 :
 P

u
b

lic
 H

ea
ri

n
g

 -
 O

rd
in

an
ce

 2
01

9-
07

-0
1 

R
ez

o
n

in
g

 A
p

p
lic

at
io

n
 C

am
d

en
 C

o
u

n
ty

 -
 D

an
 P

o
rt

er
)



5.A.d

Packet Pg. 31

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 S

u
p

p
o

rt
in

g
 D

o
cu

m
en

ts
  (

24
55

 :
 P

u
b

lic
 H

ea
ri

n
g

 -
 O

rd
in

an
ce

 2
01

9-
07

-0
1 

R
ez

o
n

in
g

 A
p

p
lic

at
io

n
 C

am
d

en
 C

o
u

n
ty

 -
 D

an
 P

o
rt

er
)



5.A.d

Packet Pg. 32

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 S

u
p

p
o

rt
in

g
 D

o
cu

m
en

ts
  (

24
55

 :
 P

u
b

lic
 H

ea
ri

n
g

 -
 O

rd
in

an
ce

 2
01

9-
07

-0
1 

R
ez

o
n

in
g

 A
p

p
lic

at
io

n
 C

am
d

en
 C

o
u

n
ty

 -
 D

an
 P

o
rt

er
)



5.A.d

Packet Pg. 33

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 S

u
p

p
o

rt
in

g
 D

o
cu

m
en

ts
  (

24
55

 :
 P

u
b

lic
 H

ea
ri

n
g

 -
 O

rd
in

an
ce

 2
01

9-
07

-0
1 

R
ez

o
n

in
g

 A
p

p
lic

at
io

n
 C

am
d

en
 C

o
u

n
ty

 -
 D

an
 P

o
rt

er
)



5.A.d

Packet Pg. 34

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 S

u
p

p
o

rt
in

g
 D

o
cu

m
en

ts
  (

24
55

 :
 P

u
b

lic
 H

ea
ri

n
g

 -
 O

rd
in

an
ce

 2
01

9-
07

-0
1 

R
ez

o
n

in
g

 A
p

p
lic

at
io

n
 C

am
d

en
 C

o
u

n
ty

 -
 D

an
 P

o
rt

er
)



5.A.d

Packet Pg. 35

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 S

u
p

p
o

rt
in

g
 D

o
cu

m
en

ts
  (

24
55

 :
 P

u
b

lic
 H

ea
ri

n
g

 -
 O

rd
in

an
ce

 2
01

9-
07

-0
1 

R
ez

o
n

in
g

 A
p

p
lic

at
io

n
 C

am
d

en
 C

o
u

n
ty

 -
 D

an
 P

o
rt

er
)



 

Ordinance No. 2019-07-01 

 

An Ordinance 

Amending the Camden County  

Zoning Map 

Camden County, North Carolina 

 

 

 

Article I: Purpose 

 

The purpose of this Ordinance is to amend the Zoning Map of Camden County, North 

Carolina, which was originally adopted by the County Commissioners on December 20, 

1993, and subsequently amended. 

  

Article II. Amendment to Zoning Map  
 

The Official Zoning Map of Camden County, North Carolina, which was adopted on 

December 20, 1993, and subsequently amended, is hereby amended as follows: 

 

The property currently shown in the Camden County Tax Assessor’s Office as 

PIN 01-7071-00-67-6843 is hereby re-zoned from Working Lands (WL) to 

Highway Commercial (HC).   

 

Article III. Penalty 

 

1. Violations of the provision of this Ordinance or failure to comply with any of its  

Requirements, including violations of any conditions and safeguards established 

in connection with grants of variances or Special Use or Conditional Use Permits, 

shall constitute a misdemeanor, punishable by a fine of up to five-hundred ($500) 

dollars or a maximum thirty (30) days imprisonment as provided in G. S. 14-4. 

 

2. Any act constituting a violation of the provisions of this Ordinance or a failure to  

comply with any of its requirements, including violations of any conditions and 

safeguards established in connection with the grants of variances or Special Use 

or Conditional Use Permits, shall also subject the offender to a civil penalty of 

one-hundred ($100) dollars for each day the violation continues.  If the offender 

fails to pay the penalty within ten (10) days after being cited for a violation, the 

penalty may be recovered by the county in a civil action in the nature of debt.  A 

civil penalty may not be appealed to the Board of Adjustment if the offender was 

sent a final notice of violation in accordance with Article 151.568 and did not take 

an appeal to the Board of Adjustment within the prescribed time. 

 

3. This Ordinance may also be enforced by any appropriate equitable action. 

 

5.A.e

Packet Pg. 36

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 2

01
9-

07
-0

1 
- 

O
rd

in
an

ce
 A

m
en

d
in

g
 t

h
e 

O
ff

ic
ia

l Z
o

n
in

g
 M

ap
 -

 C
am

d
en

 C
o

u
n

ty
  (

24
55

 :
 P

u
b

lic
 H

ea
ri

n
g

 -
 O

rd
in

an
ce

 2
01

9-
07

-0
1



 

4. Each day that any violation continues after notification by the administrator that  

such violation exists shall be considered a separate offense for purposes of the 

penalties and remedies specified in this section. 

 

5. Any one, all or any combination of the foregoing penalties and remedies may be  

used to enforce this Ordinance. 

            

 

Article IV. Severability 
 

If any language in this Ordinance is found to be invalid by a court of competent 

jurisdiction or other entity having such legal authority, then only the specific language 

held to be invalid shall be affected and all other language shall be in full force and effect. 

 

 

Article V. Effective Date 

 

This Ordinance is effective upon adoption. 

 

Adopted by the Board of Commissioners for the County of Camden this       day of        ,                                

2019. 

 

 

      County of Camden 

    

      _____________________________ 

      Tom White, Chairman 

      Camden County Board of Commissioners 

ATTEST: 

 

 

 

____________________________ 

Karen Davis 

Clerk to the Board       (SEAL) 

 

 

 

 

 

 

5.A.e

Packet Pg. 37

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 2

01
9-

07
-0

1 
- 

O
rd

in
an

ce
 A

m
en

d
in

g
 t

h
e 

O
ff

ic
ia

l Z
o

n
in

g
 M

ap
 -

 C
am

d
en

 C
o

u
n

ty
  (

24
55

 :
 P

u
b

lic
 H

ea
ri

n
g

 -
 O

rd
in

an
ce

 2
01

9-
07

-0
1



 

Board of Commissioners 

AGENDA ITEM SUMMARY SHEET 

 
New Business 

 

Item Number: 6.A 

Meeting Date:   August 05, 2019 

 

Submitted By: Lisa Anderson, Tax Administrator 

 Taxes 

 Prepared by: Lisa Anderson 

 
Item Title   June Monthly Report 

 

Attachments: 20190730105825878.pdf (PDF) 

 

Summary:  June Monthly Report  

 

Recommendation:  Review and approve 

6.A

Packet Pg. 38



6.A.a

Packet Pg. 39

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 2

01
90

73
01

05
82

58
78

.p
d

f 
 (

24
69

 :
 T

ax
 R

ep
o

rt
 -

 L
is

a 
A

n
d

er
so

n
)



6.A.a

Packet Pg. 40

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 2

01
90

73
01

05
82

58
78

.p
d

f 
 (

24
69

 :
 T

ax
 R

ep
o

rt
 -

 L
is

a 
A

n
d

er
so

n
)



6.A.a

Packet Pg. 41

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 2

01
90

73
01

05
82

58
78

.p
d

f 
 (

24
69

 :
 T

ax
 R

ep
o

rt
 -

 L
is

a 
A

n
d

er
so

n
)



6.A.a

Packet Pg. 42

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 2

01
90

73
01

05
82

58
78

.p
d

f 
 (

24
69

 :
 T

ax
 R

ep
o

rt
 -

 L
is

a 
A

n
d

er
so

n
)



6.A.a

Packet Pg. 43

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 2

01
90

73
01

05
82

58
78

.p
d

f 
 (

24
69

 :
 T

ax
 R

ep
o

rt
 -

 L
is

a 
A

n
d

er
so

n
)



6.A.a

Packet Pg. 44

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 2

01
90

73
01

05
82

58
78

.p
d

f 
 (

24
69

 :
 T

ax
 R

ep
o

rt
 -

 L
is

a 
A

n
d

er
so

n
)



6.A.a

Packet Pg. 45

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 2

01
90

73
01

05
82

58
78

.p
d

f 
 (

24
69

 :
 T

ax
 R

ep
o

rt
 -

 L
is

a 
A

n
d

er
so

n
)



 

Board of Commissioners 

AGENDA ITEM SUMMARY SHEET 

 
New Business 

 

Item Number: 6.B 

Meeting Date:   August 05, 2019 

 

Submitted By: Ken Bowman, 

 Administration 

 Prepared by: Karen Davis 

 
Item Title   Travel Policy 

 

Attachments: Travel Policy 08-2019 (DOC) 

Travel Authorization 11-2017 (DOC) 

Travel Reimbursement Form 5-2018 (XLS) 

 

Summary: 

The current Travel Policy dated 11/21/16 is being updated with travel guidance 

pertaining to per diem rates, credit card usage, and mileage allowances for privately 

owned vehicles. The Travel Advance request form has been deleted. Guidance on who 

has the authority to approve travel has more clarity.   

Recommendation: 

Approve. 

6.B

Packet Pg. 46



 

TRAVEL POLICY 
 

I. Purpose – The intent of this policy is to apply uniform provisions for reimbursement of necessary 

expenses of County employees or officials of the County who are required to travel within or 

outside the County boundaries in the performance of their duties and in the interest of County 

affairs. These policies are intended to apply to employees, board members, or other persons on 

official County business. 

 

II. Policy Administration - The respective department heads are responsible for the administration of 

the provisions of this policy. Department heads are authorized to approve travel reimbursements 

for the employees under their supervision except where otherwise stated. For the purposes of 

administering this policy, Board Members or other County delegates or officials will be considered 

“employees” and thereby reimbursed per this policy.  Expenses for family members will not be 

paid by the County and should be paid directly to the vendor by the traveling party.  NO 

MEALS ARE TO BE CHARGED ON COUNTY CREDIT CARDS. 
  

III.       General Policy 

  

A.  Travel - Camden County recognizes that employees and officials are required to travel both 

within and outside the State of North Carolina for the purpose of representing the County at 

meetings and professional associations, as well as for training to enhance their skills regarding 

the performance of their various positions within the County Government.  

 

It is inherently understood in this policy that an individual traveling on official County business 

is expected to exercise the same care in incurring expenses that a prudent person would 

exercise if traveling on personal business and expending personal funds. Excess costs, 

circuitous routes, delays, or luxury accommodations and services unnecessary, unjustified, or 

solely for the convenience or personal preference of the traveler in the performance of official 

County business are not acceptable under this standard, and travelers will be responsible for 

unauthorized costs and additional expenses incurred for personal preference or convenience. 

 

Requests for travel approval should be submitted to the County Manager and Finance for 

pre-audit and approval 10 days prior to departure. Failure to have travel pre-approved 

may result in travel reimbursements being denied. 

 

See Exhibit A at the end of the Policy for the Travel Request form. 

 

B. Subsistence allowance – The following schedule shall be used for reporting allowable 

subsistence expenses incurred while traveling on official county business. 

 

                   In State                      Out-of-State 

        Breakfast $8.00    Breakfast $15.00 

         Lunch  $15.00    Lunch  $17.00 

        Dinner  $20.00    Dinner  $23.00 

                                         $43.00        $55.00 

        

No receipts are required.  Employees will be reimbursed for the amounts listed above   regardless               

6.B.a

Packet Pg. 47

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 T

ra
ve

l P
o

lic
y 

08
-2

01
9 

 (
24

67
 :

 T
ra

ve
l P

o
lic

y)



of actual expenses.  The stated amount also includes all tips.  An exception to the above schedule  

will be applicable if the conference locations provide meals at a higher or lower amount than those  

in the schedule.  See c. and d. below. 

 

a. Daily Travel (overnight) 

Employees may receive allowances for meals for partial days or travel when the partial  

day is the day of departure or day of return.  To be eligible, the employee must: 

   -Breakfast – depart duty station prior to 6:00 am 

-Lunch – depart duty station prior to 10:00 am or return to duty station after 2:00 

pm 

-Dinner – return to duty station after 8:00 pm, if stopping for dinner causes a 

return after 8:00 pm dinner will not be eligible.  Example: If you stop in 

Williamston to eat at 6:30 for 30 minutes you will get back to your duty station at 

approximately 8:15.  If you would not have stopped you would have made it back 

prior to 8:00 therefore dinner would not be reimbursable. 

 

b. Daily Travel (not overnight) 

Normally, allowances shall not be paid to employees for lunches if travel does not 

involve an overnight stay.  To be eligible for allowances for breakfast and dinner the 

employee must leave or return to their duty station in accordance with the schedule 

under overnight travel.  Employees may be reimbursed for lunch when the employee’s 

job requires his/her attendance at the meeting of a board, commission, committee or 

council in his official capacity and the meal is preplanned as part of the meeting.  The 

normal reimbursement rates still apply. 

 

c. Excess – No excess will be allowed for meals unless such costs are included in 

registration fees and/or there are predetermined charges for the meals. 

 

d. Reduction – A reduction in the per diem schedule will occur when a conference 

location offers meals at a lower rate/cost than the County’s schedule. 

 

 

 C.  Mileage Allowance –Travel by privately owned vehicle when necessary and allowable will be 

reimbursed using the IRS reimbursement rate based on the shortest route of travel. The annual 

rate will be reported to staff and officials by the Finance Office annually. 

 

 

D.  Travel Reimbursement – The travel reimbursement form provided for the traveler should be 

turned in for reimbursement within 10 days of the employee’s return. This form lists all 

mileage, private or public transportation, lodging, meals, registration, and other travel expenses 

which are reimbursable. Itemized receipts for lodging,  registration, and private or public 

transportation are to be attached to and made a part of the reimbursement form. For taxis, 

airport shuttles, and buses, receipts may not be available or provided; therefore, attach, if 

possible. The reimbursement form must be approved by the department head and signed by the 

employee before being presented to the Finance Office for reimbursement. 

  

See Exhibit B at the end of the Policy for the Travel Reimbursement form. 

  

E.  Transportation Cost of Employee – Payment of mileage allowance or actual cost of public 

transportation as applicable. If rental vehicles are used for both business and non-business 

purposes, reimbursement to the county for the non-business portion will apply.  

 

 

6.B.a

Packet Pg. 48

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 T

ra
ve

l P
o

lic
y 

08
-2

01
9 

 (
24

67
 :

 T
ra

ve
l P

o
lic

y)



IV.      Authorized Travel Modes  

 

A.  County-owned Vehicle – This method of transportation is to be used whenever a county vehicle 

is available. Exceptions to this requirement must be approved by the County Manager.  The 

department head may authorize reimbursement to the employee for exact operation expenses in 

circumstances where direct credit charges cannot be made to the county such as gas or 

unforeseen immediate needs for maintenance and the vehicle card is unavailable. (Please notify 

Maintenance, the Department Head and the Finance Officer as soon as reasonable.) 

 

B.  Private owned Vehicle – When no county vehicle is available, this mode may be used if 

specifically authorized by the appropriate department head and the County Manager. The 

County will pay mileage using the IRS rate for the first 100 miles and .20 for every mile over 

100 miles. 

 

C.  Transportation by Common Carrier – Reimbursement for air, rail, or bus fare is limited to 

business or coach fare, substantiated by a receipt. Quotes must be obtained from more than one 

(1) common carrier, if multiple carriers exist, and documentation that the lowest fare available 

was used must be submitted on the travel request form.  

 

D.  Rental Vehicles – Reimbursement of rental vehicle expenses will not be authorized without 

prior approval by County Manager. If approved, the rented vehicle should be secured at the 

lowest practical cost. 

 

V.       Travel Destination  

 

A.  Local Travel – County employees, who by the normal nature of their duties, are required 

to travel regularly within the county or district and are individually authorized by the 

appropriate department head, are eligible for reimbursement of transportation expense 

on a monthly basis. 

 

B.  Travel Outside the County/District – Approved travel expenses outside the county for 

county purposes or purposes in the best interest of the county, such as training, 

conferences, professional meetings, etc., may be reimbursed to the limits of the policy 

for:  

 1. Transportation cost  

 2. Lodging  

 3. Meals  

 4. Registration costs  

 5. Necessary incidental expenses (parking, tolls, etc.)  

 

C.  Lodging – To receive reimbursement for lodging expenses, an itemized hotel bill must 

be attached to the reimbursement form. Hotel room rates are allowable up to the federal 

government rate. The County Manager must approve room rates when they exceed the 

allowable rate. 

 

D.  Registration Cost – Registration costs should be paid directly by the County. When an 

employee personally pays a registration fee, a receipt for payment should be obtained 

and is preferable to a canceled check for reimbursement purposes. In addition, if the 

registration is paid for a class or exam and the employee has to retake the test/class due 

to non-compliance or failure, the employee is responsible solely for the payment (No 

reimbursement will be made).  Additional registration costs for recreational and 

entertainment activities will not be paid by the County. Meal functions are not included 

6.B.a

Packet Pg. 49

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 T

ra
ve

l P
o

lic
y 

08
-2

01
9 

 (
24

67
 :

 T
ra

ve
l P

o
lic

y)



in this requirement, and are eligible for payment by the County in lieu of the meal 

reimbursement payment.  

 

E.  Out-of-State Travel – Out-of-state travel begins when the employee leaves the State and 

remains in effect until the employee returns to the State. Out-of-state travel requests by 

employees and department heads must be approved by the County Manager.  

 

F.  Credit Card – Employees and officials authorized to use a County credit card may elect 

to use them instead of reimbursement for lodging, registration, and public or private 

transportation; however, meals are still subject to the meal rates listed in Section III. C. 

of the Policy. All receipts for expenditures must be submitted to the Finance Office in 

order for the expenditures to be approved.  

 

G.  Travel with Others - When two or more employees are traveling to the same destination, 

maximum use shall be made of special group travel discounts and joint use of the 

transportation including taxi cabs, County-owned, or privately owned vehicles. Travel 

with representatives of other government units is encouraged whenever possible for 

expense sharing.  

 

H.  Commuting – No reimbursement shall be made for use of a personal vehicle in 

commuting from an individual’s home to his/her office.  

 

I.   Other Costs - Reasonable parking fees, tolls, taxi charges, and expenses of a similar 

nature, when appropriate to the travel, are reimbursable upon submission of appropriate 

documentation of the same. The Finance Officer or County Manager shall approve or 

disapprove all other expense reimbursements not clearly defined in the Policy or those 

which have been questioned.  

 

VI.      Extraordinary Travel or Cost  

 

In instances of travel not covered by this policy, or where the actual necessary costs exceed 

the maximum reimbursement allowed and the travel is in the best interest of the county, the 

County Manager may approve reimbursement of actual cost beyond the maximums stated 

herein. 

 

VII.     Travel Expenses not Addressed by this Policy  

 

Any travel expenses falling outside the realm of this policy must be approved by the County 

Manager. 

  

VIII.   Travel Advances  

             

            Hotel accommodations may be paid directly to the hotel in advance by County credit card.  

The itemized receipt must be turned in with your travel reimbursement.   

 

 

IX.      Travel Procedure 

  

A.  A Travel Request Form should be submitted to the Department Head for approval and 

forwarded to the Finance Department for pre-audit purposes. A Travel Advance Request 

should be included with this form if needed/requested. 

 

6.B.a

Packet Pg. 50

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 T

ra
ve

l P
o

lic
y 

08
-2

01
9 

 (
24

67
 :

 T
ra

ve
l P

o
lic

y)



B.  Upon return, the Travel Reimbursement form and supporting itemized receipts 

(includes, hotel and allowable incidentals) must be submitted to the Department Head 

for approval. After approval by the Department Head, the form should be forwarded to 

the Finance Department.  

 

C.  The Finance Department will determine that the travel form and receipts have been 

properly approved, that they are mathematically correct, and that requested 

reimbursements agree to submitted receipts, when required, and are within the limits set 

by the Policy. If an error in the reimbursement request is found, the requesting party 

will be informed and the error will be corrected before payment is made.  

 

D.  Trip Cancellation – When an employee cancels an approved trip and the County has 

paid airfare, registration and other related fees or issued a travel advance, a memo must 

be sent to the Finance Department explaining the cancellation.  Non-refundable 

expenditures will be reviewed on a case by case basis by the County Manager. 

 

X.       The following items are not reimbursable:  

 

(1) Any expense not supported by a receipt  

(2) Meals included in registration/conference 

(3) Travel to and from work place  

(4) Souvenirs from the trip  

(5) Items purchased to be used as door prizes or raffle items  

(6) Non-employee/board member expense  

(7) Alcoholic beverages  

(8) Any traffic fines  

(9) Entertainment expenses 

 

This list is not all-inclusive. The Finance Officer or County Manager shall approve or 

disapprove all other expense reimbursements not clearly defined in the Policy or those 

which have been questioned.  

 

Attachments:  

Exhibit A, Travel Authorization Form  

Exhibit B, Travel Reimbursement Form 

 

6.B.a

Packet Pg. 51

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 T

ra
ve

l P
o

lic
y 

08
-2

01
9 

 (
24

67
 :

 T
ra

ve
l P

o
lic

y)



 

TRAVEL AUTHORIZATION 
FOR OUT OF DISTRICT TRAVEL 
* * * Please Fill Out Completely * * * 

 
Name:          Date of Request:      
 

Reason for Travel:             
Attach a copy of Conference/Meeting/Workshop/Training Information 

Destination:              
 

List dates of Travel:             
 

Meeting Begins        am/pm on ________ and Ends at         am/pm on    
 

Did the County/Supervisor Request that you attend?  Yes   No 

Does this trip require overnight accommodations?  Yes   No       Nights:    
(Leave more than two hours before or return more than three hours after usual work schedule/multi-day event) 

 

Approval To Travel 
 

Supervisor:         Date:      

 

County Manager:        Date:      
 

Estimated Cost 
 

Department Code:      
 

Registration:             Cost:    
510000    
 

Travel:    Mode:       Miles:       Cost:      
514000    (County/personal vehicle)    (round trip)  (total) 
 

Hotel:    Number of Nights:     Rate Per Night:       Cost:    
514000         Attach copy of Hotel Information   (incl taxes) 
 

    

Meals:   Number of Meals:     B         L        D  Cost:     
514000           (total) 
 

Other Expected Costs:         Cost:     

Code:       (specify)       (total) 
 

Total Estimated Cost of Travel:      
 

 

EXPLANATION FOR REQUESTED EXCEPTIONS TO TRAVEL POLICY Supervisor Approval:     

             

             

              

APPROVED DENIED   COUNTY MANAGER SIGNATURE       

This instrument has been preaudited in the manner required by the Local Govt Budget and Fiscal Control Act. 

  
             

 

 

6.B.b

Packet Pg. 52

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 T

ra
ve

l A
u

th
o

ri
za

ti
o

n
 1

1-
20

17
  (

24
67

 :
 T

ra
ve

l P
o

lic
y)



TRAVEL REIMBURSEMENT REQUEST
(USE PER TRIP & PER PERSON)

Percentage

NAME: DEPARTMENT CODE(S): 100%

HOME ADDRESS: DESTINATION:

CITY/STATE/ZIP CODE: 

DATE OF TRIP: REASON FOR TRIP:

FROM: TO:

TOTAL

EXPENSES: Date:

1.  MEALS (1)        BREAKFAST - 

 LUNCH - 

DINNER - 

2.  ITEMIZED INCIDENTALS(1)* - 

3.  LOCAL TRANSPORTATION(1) - 

4.  TRANSPORTATION(1) - 

5.  LODGING(1) - 

6.  REGISTRATION FEES(2) - 

7.  CAR RENTAL(1) - 

8.  TELEPHONE (1) - 

9.  TAXI-BUS FARE (1) - 

10.  OTHER (SPECIFY) - 

- 
(1) 514000 (2) 510000

TRANSPORTATION: AIR: (     ) PRIVATE CAR: (     ) COUNTY CAR# (       )

Private Car Miles Traveled (1) 0

*MONTHLY TRAVEL DETAIL CLAIMED: miles @ .58/mile -$      TOTAL EXPENSES: -$         
*(ATTACH WORKSHEET)

-$         

This instrument has been preaudited LESS CASH 

in the manner required by the ADVANCE RECEIVED: -$         
Local Government Budget and Fiscal Control Act. AMOUNT DUE

EMPLOYEE: -$         

AMOUNT DUE

Signature of Finance Officer COUNTY: -$         
**ATTACH ITEMIZED RECEIPTS**

I CERTIFY THAT THE ABOVE EXPENDITURES ARE ACTUAL AND REASONABLE AND COMPLY WITH COUNTY TRAVEL POLICIES.

EMPLOYEE DATE DEPARTMENT HEAD

COUNTY MANAGER
5/22/2018

LESS EXPENSES 
PREVIOUSLY PAID BY 
COUNTY CREDIT CARD 
OR COUNTY CHECK

6.B.c

Packet Pg. 53

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 T

ra
ve

l R
ei

m
b

u
rs

em
en

t 
F

o
rm

 5
-2

01
8 

 (
24

67
 :

 T
ra

ve
l P

o
lic

y)



 

Board of Commissioners 

AGENDA ITEM SUMMARY SHEET 

 
New Business 

 

Item Number: 6.C 

Meeting Date:   August 05, 2019 

 

Submitted By: Dan Porter, Planning Director 

 Planning & Zoning 

 Prepared by: Karen Davis 

 
Item Title   Revised Camden Code Chapter 150 Minimum Housing Code 

- Dan Porter 

 

Attachments: Agenda Summary Sheet Minimum Housing code

 (DOCX) 

Chapter 150 Code Final Revision (DOCX) 

 

See attached agenda summary and supporting documentation. 

6.C

Packet Pg. 54



 

 

Camden County Board of Commissioners 

AGENDA ITEM SUMMARY SHEET 
 

 

 

Meeting Date:   August 5, 2019 
 

Attachments:  Camden Code Chapter 150  

  

Submitted By: Planning Department 
 

ITEM TITLE:   Revised Camden Code Chapter 

150 Minimum Housing code 

 

SUMMARY: 
 

The Planning Department and Building Inspections 

Division are recommending the attached revisions to the County’s Minimum 

Housing Code. Rather than submitting the existing code with complicated mark 

ups, we recommend replacing the entire chapter as presented. 

 

In summary there are two types of changes being recommended.   

 

Sections 150.03 through 150.18 prescribe the specific minimum standards for 

habitable housing. The existing Chapter 150 includes some specifics but primarily 

refers to citations in the state building codes.  In order to make the ordinance more 

user friendly the revised chapter states the specific standards for each type of 

structural elements.  The standards are verbatim from the State Building Code. 

 

Sections 150.19 through 150.23 are revised to outline a clear procedure to prosecute 

violations in compliance with the General Statutes.  The procedure outlines the 

specific notices and a hearing required and gives the building inspector authority to 

condemn and have non-compliant structures demolished, subject to appeal to the 

Board of Commissioners.  If an appeal is not made within 10 days the inspector’s 

decision is final. 

 

RECOMMENDATION: 
 

Motion to approve replacing the existing Chapter 150 Building Regulations: 

Construction with the proposed Ordinance No. 2019-08-01.  

MOTION MADE BY: 

C. Riggs  

T. White  

G. Meiggs  

R. Krainiak  

R. Munro  

NO MOTION   

VOTE: 

C. Riggs  

T. White  

G. Meiggs  

R. Krainiak  

R. Munro  

ABSENT           

RECUSED    

6.C.a

Packet Pg. 55

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 A

g
en

d
a 

S
u

m
m

ar
y 

S
h

ee
t 

M
in

im
u

m
 H

o
u

si
n

g
 c

o
d

e 
 (

24
71

 :
 R

ev
is

ed
 C

am
d

en
 C

o
d

e 
C

h
ap

te
r 

15
0 

M
in

im
u

m
 H

o
u

si
n

g
 C

o
d

e 
- 

D
an

 P
o

rt
er

)



Camden County, NC Code of Ordinances 

 American Legal Publishing Corp. 1 

Ordinance No. 2019-08-01 

 

An Ordinance 

Amending the Camden County 

Code of Ordinances 

   

Camden County, North Carolina 
 

BE IT ORDAINED BY THE CAMDEN COUNTY BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS as 

follows: 

 

Article I: Purpose 

 

The purpose of this Ordinance is to amend Chapter 150 of the Camden County Code of 

Ordinances of Camden County, North Carolina, which was originally adopted by the County 

Commissioners on December 15, 1997, and subsequently amended and as otherwise 

incorporated into the Camden County Code.  This code of ordinances hereby adopts the current 

North Carolina State Building Codes with Amendments and the current National Electrical Code 

with North Carolina Amendments as indicated by the North Carolina Department of Insurance 

(NCDOI) and listed on their website as current.  This Ordinance also hereby adopts the current 

North Carolina General Statutes with Amendments. 

 

Article II. Construction 

 

Article III. Amend Chapter 150 as amended of the Camden County Code which shall read 

as follows: 

CHAPTER 150:  BUILDING REGULATIONS; CONSTRUCTION 

 Section Housing Code 

 

 150.01 Findings; purpose 

 150.02 Definitions 

 150.03 Minimum standards of fitness for dwellings and dwelling units 

 150.04 Minimum standards for structural condition 

 150.05 Minimum standards for safe and sanitary maintenance 

 150.06 Minimum standards for control of insects, rodents and infestations 

 150.07 Minimum standards applicable to rooming houses; exceptions 

 150.08 Minimum standards for fire resistant  

 150.09 Minimum standards for light, ventilation and heating 

 150.10 Minimum standards for minimum room areas 

 150.11 Minimum standards for ceiling heights 

 150.12 Minimum standards for sanitation  

 150.13 Minimum standards form emergency escape and rescue  

6.C.b

Packet Pg. 56

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 C

h
ap

te
r 

15
0 

C
o

d
e 

F
in

al
 R

ev
is

io
n

  (
24

71
 :

 R
ev

is
ed

 C
am

d
en

 C
o

d
e 

C
h

ap
te

r 
15

0 
M

in
im

u
m

 H
o

u
si

n
g

 C
o

d
e 

- 
D

an
 P

o
rt

er
)



Camden County, NC Code of Ordinances 

 American Legal Publishing Corp. 2 

 150.14 Minimum standards for means of egress  

 150.15 Minimum standards for guards and window fall protection  

 150.16 Minimum standards for smoke alarms 

 150.17 Minimum standards for carbon monoxide alarms  

 150.18 Minimum standards for swimming pools, spas and hot tubs  

 150.19 Responsibilities of owners and occupants 

 150.20 Duties and powers of Building Inspector 

 150.21 Inspections; duty of owners and occupants 

 150.22 Procedure for Violations 

 150.23 Penalty 

 

HOUSING CODE 

§ 150.01 FINDINGS; PURPOSE. 

 Pursuant to G.S. § 160A-441, it is hereby found and declared that there exist in the 

county dwellings which are unfit for human habitation due to dilapidation, defects increasing the 

hazards of fire, accidents and other calamities, lack of ventilation, light and sanitary facilities and 

due to other conditions rendering the dwellings unsafe or unsanitary and dangerous and 

detrimental to the health, safety and morals and otherwise inimical to the welfare of the residents 

of the county.  It is further found by the County Board of Commissioners that there exist in the 

county abandoned structures which constitute a health and safety hazard as a result of the 

attraction of insects and rodents or which results in a condition creating a fire hazard or which 

bring about dangerous conditions constituting a threat to children or which bring about frequent 

use by vagrants as living quarters in the absence of sanitary facilities.  In order to protect the 

health, safety and welfare of the residents of the county, as authorized by G.S. §§ 160A-360 et 

seq., it is the purpose of this subchapter to establish minimum standards of fitness for the initial 

and continued occupancy of all dwellings used for habitation and for the continued existence of 

abandoned structures as expressly authorized by G.S. § 160A-444. 

 The County shall abide by and enforce construction and renovation codes and standards, 

in accordance with the current North Carolina Building Codes with amendments and North 

Carolina adopted National Electric Code with NC Amendments as scheduled and identified by 

the NC Department of Insurance.  Permits shall be issued pursuant to GS 153A-357. The 

County shall also abide by and enforce the current North Carolina General Statutes with 

Amendments. 

 

§ 150.02 DEFINITIONS. 

 For the purpose of this subchapter, the following definitions shall apply unless the 

context clearly indicates or requires a different meaning.  Unless otherwise noted herein 

definitions shall conform to the North Carolina Building and Electrical Codes. 

 CELLAR.  A portion of a building located partly or wholly underground, having an 

adequate access to light and air from windows located partly or wholly below the level of the 

adjoining ground. 

 DETERIORATED.  A dwelling that is unfit for human habitation and can be repaired, 

altered or improved to comply with all of the minimum standards established by this subchapter, 

at a cost not in excess of 50% of its value, as determined by finding of the Inspector. 

6.C.b

Packet Pg. 57

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 C

h
ap

te
r 

15
0 

C
o

d
e 

F
in

al
 R

ev
is

io
n

  (
24

71
 :

 R
ev

is
ed

 C
am

d
en

 C
o

d
e 

C
h

ap
te

r 
15

0 
M

in
im

u
m

 H
o

u
si

n
g

 C
o

d
e 

- 
D

an
 P

o
rt

er
)



Camden County, NC Code of Ordinances 

 American Legal Publishing Corp. 3 

 DWELLING.  Any building which is wholly or partly used or intended to be used for 

living or sleeping by human occupants; provided that temporary housing as hereinafter defined 

shall not be regarded as a dwelling. The word DWELLING, wherever used herein, shall also be 

construed to mean any structure which has not been occupied by the owner or the owner's tenant 

for a period of 90 consecutive days. 

 DWELLING UNIT.  Any room or group of rooms located within a dwelling and 

forming a single habitable unit with facilities which are used or intended to be used for living, 

sleeping, cooking and eating. 

 EXTERMINATION.  The control and elimination of insects, rodents or other pests by 

eliminating their harborage places; by removing or making inaccessible materials that may serve 

as their food; by poisoning, spraying, fumigating, trapping or by any other recognized and legal 

pest elimination methods approved by the Inspector. 

 GARBAGE.  The animal and vegetable waste resulting from the handling, preparation, 

cooking and consumption of food. 

 HABITABLE ROOM.  Habitable rooms shall have a floor area of not less than 70 

square feet. Exception: Kitchens.  

Habitable rooms shall be not less than 7 feet in any horizontal dimension. Exception: Kitchens. 

Height effect on room area. Portions of a room with a sloping ceiling measuring less than 5 feet 

or a furred ceiling measuring less than 7 feet from the finished floor to the finished ceiling shall 

not be considered as contributing to the minimum required habitable area for that room. 

 HABITABLE SPACE.  Space in a building for living, sleeping, eating or cooking.  

Bathrooms, toilet rooms, closets, halls, storage or utility spaces and similar areas are not 

considered habitable spaces. 

 INFESTATION.  The presence, within or around a dwelling, of any insects, rodents or 

other pests in a number as to constitute a menace to the health, safety or welfare of the occupant 

or to the public. 

 INSPECTOR.  The Building Inspector of the county or any agent of the Inspector who 

is authorized by the Inspector. 

 MULTIPLE DWELLING.  Any dwelling containing more than two dwelling units. 

 OCCUPANT.  Any person over one year of age, living, sleeping, cooking or eating in, 

or having actual possession of a dwelling unit or rooming unit. 

 OPERATOR.  Any person who has charge, care or control of a building, or part thereof, 

in which dwelling units or rooming units are let. 

 OWNER. 

  (1) Any person who, alone, jointly or severally with others: 

   (a) Shall have title to any dwelling unit, with or without 

accompanying actual possession thereof; or 

   (b) Shall have charge, care or control of any dwelling or dwelling unit 

as owner or agent of the owner or as executor, executrix, administrator, administratrix, trustee or 

guardian of the estate of the owner. 

  (2) Any person thus representing the actual owner shall be bound to comply 

with the provisions of this subchapter, and of rules and regulations adopted pursuant thereto, to 

the same extent as if he or she were the owner. 

 PUBLIC AUTHORITY.  The County Department of Social Services, the County 

Building Inspector or any officer who is in charge of any department or branch of the 

6.C.b

Packet Pg. 58

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 C

h
ap

te
r 

15
0 

C
o

d
e 

F
in

al
 R

ev
is

io
n

  (
24

71
 :

 R
ev

is
ed

 C
am

d
en

 C
o

d
e 

C
h

ap
te

r 
15

0 
M

in
im

u
m

 H
o

u
si

n
g

 C
o

d
e 

- 
D

an
 P

o
rt

er
)



Camden County, NC Code of Ordinances 

 American Legal Publishing Corp. 4 

government of the county or the state relating to health, fire, building regulations or other 

activities concerning dwellings in the county. 

 ROOMING HOUSE.  Any dwelling, or that part of any dwelling containing one or 

more rooming units, in which space is let by the owner or operator to three or more persons who 

are not husband and wife, son or daughter, mother or father or sister or brother of the owner or 

operator. 

 ROOMING UNIT.  Any room or group of rooms forming a single habitable unit used or 

intended to be used for living and sleeping, but not for cooking or eating purposes. 

 RUBBISH.  Combustible and noncombustible waste materials, except garbage and 

ashes, and the term shall include paper, rags, cartons, boxes, wood excelsior, rubber, leather, tree 

branches, yard trimmings, tin cans, metals, mineral matter, glass crockery and dust. 

 SUPPLIED.  Paid for, furnished or provided by, or under the control of, the owner or 

operator. 

 TEMPORARY HOUSING.  Any tent, trailer or other structure used for human shelter 

which is designed to be transportable and which is not attached to the ground, to another 

structure, or to any utilities system on the same premises for more than 30 consecutive days. 

 UNFIT FOR HUMAN HABITATION.  Conditions that exist in a dwelling which 

violate or do not comply with one or more of the minimum standards of fitness or one or more of 

the requirements established by this subchapter. 

§ 150.03 MINIMUM STANDARDS OF FITNESS FOR DWELLINGS AND DWELLING 

UNITS. 

 Every dwelling and dwelling unit used as human habitation or held out for use as a 

human habitation shall comply with all of the minimum standards of fitness for human habitation 

and all of the requirements of this subchapter.  No person shall occupy, as owner-occupant, or 

let to another for occupancy or use as a human habitation, any dwelling or dwelling unit which 

does not comply with all of the minimum standards of fitness for human habitation and all of the 

requirements of this subchapter. 

§ 150.04 MINIMUM STANDARDS FOR STRUCTURAL CONDITION. 

 (A) Walls or partitions or supporting members, sills, joists, rafters or other structural 

members shall not list, lean or buckle, and shall not be rotted, deteriorated or damaged, and shall 

not have holes or cracks which might admit rodents. 

 (B) Floors or roofs shall have adequate supporting members and strength to be 

reasonably safe for the purpose used. 

 (C) Foundations, foundation walls, piers or other foundation supports shall not be 

deteriorated or damaged. 

 (D) Steps, stairs, landings, porches or other parts or appurtenances shall be maintained 

in a condition that they will not fall or collapse. 

 (E) Adequate facilities, as defined by the North Carolina building codes, for egress in 

case of fire or panic shall be provided. 

6.C.b

Packet Pg. 59

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 C

h
ap

te
r 

15
0 

C
o

d
e 

F
in

al
 R

ev
is

io
n

  (
24

71
 :

 R
ev

is
ed

 C
am

d
en

 C
o

d
e 

C
h

ap
te

r 
15

0 
M

in
im

u
m

 H
o

u
si

n
g

 C
o

d
e 

- 
D

an
 P

o
rt

er
)



Camden County, NC Code of Ordinances 

 American Legal Publishing Corp. 5 

 (F) Interior walls and ceilings of all rooms, closets and hallways shall be finished of 

suitable materials, which will, by use of reasonable household methods promote sanitation and 

cleanliness, and shall be maintained in a manner so as to enable the occupants to maintain 

reasonable privacy between various spaces. 

 (G) The roof, flashings, exterior walls, basement walls, floor and all doors and 

windows exposed to the weather shall be constructed and maintained so as to be weather and 

watertight. 

 (H) There shall be no chimneys or parts thereof which are defective, deteriorated or in 

danger of falling or in a condition or location as to constitute a fire hazard. 

 (I) There shall be no use of the ground for floors or wood floors on the ground. 

§ 150.05 MINIMUM STANDARDS FOR SAFE AND SANITARY MAINTENANCE. 

 (A) (1) Every foundation wall, exterior wall and exterior roof shall be 

substantially weather-tight and rodent proof shall be kept in sound condition and good repair; 

shall be capable of affording privacy and shall be safe to use and capable of supporting the load 

which normal use may cause to be placed thereon.  Annular spaces around pipes, electric cables, 

conduits 

or other openings in the walls shall be protected against the passage of rodents by closing such 

opening with cement mortar, concrete masonry, silicone caulking or noncorrosive metal. 

  (2) Every exterior wall shall be protected with paint or other protective 

covering to prevent the entrance or penetration of moisture or the weather. 

 (B) Every floor, interior wall and ceiling shall be substantially rodent proof shall be 

kept in sound condition and good repair and shall be safe to use and capable of supporting the 

load which normal use may cause to be placed thereon. 

 (C) Every window, exterior door, basement or cellar door and hatchway shall be 

substantially weather-tight, watertight and rodent proof and shall be kept in sound working 

condition and good repair. 

 (D) Every inside and outside stair, porch and any appurtenance thereto shall be safe to 

use and capable of supporting the load that normal use may cause to be placed thereon and shall 

be kept in sound condition and good repair. 

 (E) Every bathroom floor surface and water closet compartment floor surface shall be 

constructed and maintained so as to be reasonably impervious to water and so as to permit the 

floor to be easily kept in a clean and sanitary condition. 

 (F) Every supplied facility, piece of equipment or utility which is required under this 

subchapter shall be so constructed or installed that it will function safely and effectively and 

shall be maintained in satisfactory working condition. 

 (G) Every yard shall be properly graded so as to obtain thorough drainage and so as to 

prevent the accumulation of stagnant water. 

 (H) Every dwelling unit shall be provided with adequate means of egress as required 

by the North Carolina Building Codes. 

§ 150.06 MINIMUM STANDARDS FOR CONTROL OF INSECTS, RODENTS AND 

INFESTATIONS. 

6.C.b

Packet Pg. 60

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 C

h
ap

te
r 

15
0 

C
o

d
e 

F
in

al
 R

ev
is

io
n

  (
24

71
 :

 R
ev

is
ed

 C
am

d
en

 C
o

d
e 

C
h

ap
te

r 
15

0 
M

in
im

u
m

 H
o

u
si

n
g

 C
o

d
e 

- 
D

an
 P

o
rt

er
)



Camden County, NC Code of Ordinances 

 American Legal Publishing Corp. 6 

 (A) In every dwelling unit, for protection against mosquitoes, flies and other insects, 

every window or other device with openings to outdoor space, used or intended to be used for 

ventilation shall be supplied with screens installed. 

 (B) Every basement or cellar window used or intended to be used for ventilation and 

every other opening to a basement which might provide an entry for rodents shall be supplied 

with screens installed or other approved device as will effectively prevent their entrance. 

 (C) Every occupant of a dwelling containing a single dwelling unit shall be 

responsible for the extermination of any insects, rodents or other pests therein or on the premises; 

and every occupant of a dwelling unit in a dwelling containing more than one dwelling unit shall 

be responsible for the extermination whenever his or her dwelling unit is the only one infested.  

Whenever infestation is caused by failure of the owner to maintain a dwelling in a rodent proof 

or reasonable insect proof conditions, extermination shall be the responsibility of the owner.  

Whenever infestation exists in two or more dwelling units in a dwelling or in the shared or public 

parts of any dwelling containing two or more dwelling units, extermination shall be the 

responsibility of the owner. 

§ 150.07 MINIMUM STANDARDS APPLICABLE TO ROOMING HOUSES; 

EXCEPTIONS. 

 All of the provisions of this subchapter and all of the minimum standards and 

requirements of this subchapter shall be applicable to rooming houses, and to every person who 

operates a rooming house or who occupies or lets to another for occupancy any rooming unit in 

any rooming house, except as provided in the following provisions. 

 (A) (1) At least one water closet, lavatory basin and bathtub or shower, properly 

connected to an approved water and sewer system and in good working condition, shall be 

supplied for each four rooms within a rooming house whenever the facilities are shared. 

  (2) All facilities shall be located within the residence building served and 

shall be directly accessible from a common hall or passageway and shall be not more than one 

story removed from any of the persons sharing the facilities.  Every lavatory basin and bathtub 

or shower shall be supplied with hot and cold water at all times. 

  (3) The required facilities shall not be located in a cellar. 

 (B) Every room occupied for sleeping purposes by one occupant shall contain at least 

70 square feet of floor area, and every room occupied for sleeping purposes by more than one 

occupant shall contain at least 50 square feet of floor area for each occupant 12 years of age and 

over and at least 35 square feet of floor area for each occupant under 12 years of age. 

 (C) The operator of every rooming house shall be responsible for the sanitary 

maintenance of all walls, floors, ceilings and for the sanitary maintenance of every other part of 

the rooming house and he or she shall be further responsible for the sanitary maintenance of the 

entire premises where the entire structure or building within which the rooming house is 

contained is leased or occupied by the operator. 

 (D) Every water closet, flush urinal, lavatory basin and bathtub and shower required 

by division (A) above shall be located within the rooming house and within a room or rooms 

which afford privacy and are separate from habitable rooms, and which are accessible from a 

common hall and without going outside the rooming house or through any other room therein. 

 

6.C.b

Packet Pg. 61

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 C

h
ap

te
r 

15
0 

C
o

d
e 

F
in

al
 R

ev
is

io
n

  (
24

71
 :

 R
ev

is
ed

 C
am

d
en

 C
o

d
e 

C
h

ap
te

r 
15

0 
M

in
im

u
m

 H
o

u
si

n
g

 C
o

d
e 

- 
D

an
 P

o
rt

er
)



Camden County, NC Code of Ordinances 

 American Legal Publishing Corp. 7 

§ 150.08 MINIMUM STANDARDS FOR FIRE RESISTANT CONSTRUCTION 

 

 (A) Two-family dwellings. Dwelling units in two-family dwellings shall be separated 

from each other by wall and floor assemblies having not less than a 1-hour fire-resistance rating 

where tested in accordance with ASTM E119 or UL 263. Fire-resistance-rated floor/ceiling and 

wall assemblies shall extend to and be tight against the exterior wall, and wall assemblies shall 

extend from the foundation to the underside of the roof sheathing. 

  Exceptions: 

   (1) A fire-resistance rating of 1/2 hour shall be permitted in buildings 

equipped throughout with an automatic sprinkler system installed in accordance with NFPA 13. 

   (2) Wall assemblies need not extend through attic spaces where the 

ceiling is protected by not less than 5/8-inch Type X gypsum board, an attic draft stop 

constructed as specified in the NC building code is provided above and along the wall assembly 

separating the dwellings and the structural framing supporting the ceiling is protected by not less 

than 1/2-inch gypsum board or equivalent. 

  (1) Supporting construction. Where floor assemblies are required to be fire-

resistance rated by the NC building code the supporting construction of such assemblies shall 

have an equal or greater fire-resistance rating. 

  (2) Dwelling unit rated penetrations. Penetrations of wall or floor-ceiling 

assemblies required to be fire-resistance rated shall be rated and protected in accordance with the 

NC building code. 

  (3) Through penetrations. Through penetrations of fire-resistance-rated wall 

or floor assemblies shall comply with the NC building code. 

   Exception: Where the penetrating items are steel, ferrous or copper pipes, 

tubes or conduits, the annular space shall be protected as follows: 

    (1) In concrete or masonry wall or floor assemblies, concrete, 

grout or mortar shall be permitted where installed to the full thickness of the wall or floor 

assembly or the thickness required to maintain the fire-resistance rating, provided that both of the 

following are complied with: 

     (1.1) The nominal diameter of the penetrating item is not 

more than 6 inches 

     (1.2) The area of the opening through the wall does not 

exceed 144 square inches 

    (2) The material used to fill the annular space shall prevent the 

passage of flame and hot gases sufficient to ignite cotton waste where subjected to ASTM E119 

or UL 263 time temperature fire conditions under a positive pressure differential of not less than 

0.01 inch of water (3 Pa) at the location of the penetration for the time period equivalent to the 

fire-resistance rating of the construction penetrated. 

  (4) Fire-resistance-rated assembly. Penetrations shall be installed as tested 

in the approved fire resistance-rated assembly. 

  (5) Penetration firestop system. Penetrations shall be protected by an 

approved penetration firestop system installed as tested in accordance with ASTM E814 or UL 

1479, with a positive pressure differential of not less than 0.01 inch of water (3 Pa) and shall 

have 

a F rating of not less than the required fire-resistance rating of the wall or floor-ceiling assembly 

penetrated. 

6.C.b

Packet Pg. 62

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 C

h
ap

te
r 

15
0 

C
o

d
e 

F
in

al
 R

ev
is

io
n

  (
24

71
 :

 R
ev

is
ed

 C
am

d
en

 C
o

d
e 

C
h

ap
te

r 
15

0 
M

in
im

u
m

 H
o

u
si

n
g

 C
o

d
e 

- 
D

an
 P

o
rt

er
)



Camden County, NC Code of Ordinances 

 American Legal Publishing Corp. 8 

  (6) Membrane penetrations. Membrane penetrations shall comply this 

section. Where walls are required to have a fire-resistance rating, recessed fixtures shall be 

installed so that the required fire-resistance rating will not be reduced. 

   Exceptions: 

    (1) Membrane penetrations of not more than 2-hour fire-

resistance-rated walls and partitions by steel electrical boxes that do not exceed 16 square inches 

in area provided that the aggregate area of the openings through the membrane does not exceed 

100 square inches in any 100 square feet of wall area. The annular space between the wall 

membrane and the box shall not exceed 1/8 inch Such boxes on opposite sides of the wall shall 

be separated by one of the following: 

     (1.1) By a horizontal distance of not less than 24 inches 

where the wall or partition is constructed with individual non communicating stud cavities. 

     (1.2) By a horizontal distance of not less than the depth 

of the wall cavity where the wall cavity is filled with cellulose loose-fill, rockwool or slag 

mineral wool insulation. 

     (1.3) By solid fire blocking in accordance with NC 

Building code. 

     (1.4) By protecting both boxes with listed putty pads. 

     (1.5) By other listed materials and methods. 

    (2) Membrane penetrations by listed electrical boxes of any 

materials provided that the boxes have been tested for use in fire-resistance-rated assemblies and 

are installed in accordance with the instructions included in the listing. The annular space 

between the wall membrane and the box shall not exceed 1/8 inch unless listed otherwise. Such 

boxes on opposite sides of the wall shall be separated by one of the following: 

     (2.1) By the horizontal distance specified in the listing of 

the electrical boxes. 

     (2.2) By solid fire blocking in accordance with the NC 

Building code. 

     (2.3) By protecting both boxes with listed putty pads. 

     (2.4) By other listed materials and methods. 

    (3) The annular space created by the penetration of a fire 

sprinkler provided that it is covered by a metal escutcheon plate. 

 (B) Dwelling-garage opening and penetration protection.  Openings and 

penetrations through the walls or ceilings separating the dwelling from the garage shall be in 

accordance with the following: 

  (1) Opening protection. Openings from a private garage directly into a room 

used for sleeping purposes shall not be permitted. Other openings between the garage and 

residence shall be equipped with solid wood doors not less than 1-3/8 inches in thickness, solid 

or honeycomb core steel doors not less than 1-3/8 inches thick, or 20-minute fire-rated doors. 

   Exception: A disappearing/pull-down stairway to uninhabited attic space 

with minimum 3/8-inch (nominal) fire-retardant-treated structural panel is equivalent to the 

separation requirement from attics in the NC Building code 

  (2) Duct penetration.  Ducts in the garage and ducts penetrating the walls or 

ceilings separating the dwelling from the garage shall be constructed of a minimum No. 26 gage 

sheet steel or other approved material and shall not have openings into the garage. 

6.C.b

Packet Pg. 63

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 C

h
ap

te
r 

15
0 

C
o

d
e 

F
in

al
 R

ev
is

io
n

  (
24

71
 :

 R
ev

is
ed

 C
am

d
en

 C
o

d
e 

C
h

ap
te

r 
15

0 
M

in
im

u
m

 H
o

u
si

n
g

 C
o

d
e 

- 
D

an
 P

o
rt

er
)



Camden County, NC Code of Ordinances 

 American Legal Publishing Corp. 9 

 (C) Dwelling-garage fire separation. The garage shall be separated as required in the 

following table. Openings in garage walls shall comply the NC Building code. The wall 

separation provisions of the table shall not apply to garage walls that are perpendicular to the 

adjacent dwelling unit wall. 

Dwelling-Garage Separation 

Separation Material 

From the residence and attics Not less than 1/2-inch gypsum board or 

equivalent applied to the garage side 

From habitable rooms above the garage 

(footnote a) 

Not less than 5/8-inch Type X gypsum board 

or equivalent 

Structure(s) supporting floor/ceiling 

assemblies used for separation required by 

this section 

Not less than 1/2-inch gypsum board or 

equivalent 

Garages located less than 3 feet from a 

dwelling unit on the same lot 

Not less than 1/2-inch gypsum board or 

equivalent applied to the interior side of 

exterior walls that are within this area 

Footnote a:  For dwelling units constructed prior to the 2012 North Carolina Residential code 

edition, 1/2-inch or greater existing gypsum board on the bottom side of the garage ceiling shall 

be acceptable .  Joints shall be taped. 

 

 (D) Under-stair protection. Enclosed accessible space under stairs shall have walls, 

under-stair surface and any soffits protected on the enclosed side with 1/2-inch gypsum board. 

 

§ 150.09 MINIMUM STANDARDS FOR LIGHT, VENTILATION AND HEATING 

 

 (A) Habitable rooms. Habitable rooms shall have an aggregate glazing area of not 

less than 8 percent of the floor area of such rooms. Natural ventilation shall be through windows, 

skylights, doors, louvers or other approved openings to the outdoor air. Such openings shall be 

provided with ready access or shall otherwise be readily controllable by the building occupants. 

The openable area to the outdoors shall be not less than 4 percent of the floor area being 

ventilated. 

  Exceptions: 

   (1) The glazed areas need not be openable where the opening is not 

required by the mechanical code and a whole-house mechanical ventilation system is installed  

   (2) The glazed areas need not be installed in rooms where Exception 1 

is satisfied and artificial light is provided that is capable of producing an average illumination of 

6 foot-candles (65 lux) over the area of the room at a height of 30 inches above the floor level. 

   (3) Use of sunroom and patio covers, shall be permitted for natural 

ventilation if in excess of 40 percent of the exterior sunroom walls are open, or are enclosed only 

by insect screening. 

 (B) Adjoining rooms. For the purpose of determining light and ventilation 

requirements, any room shall be considered to be a portion of an adjoining room where not less 

than one-half of the area of the common wall is open and unobstructed and provides an opening 

of not less than one-tenth of the floor area of the interior room and not less than 25 square feet. 

  Exception:  Openings required for light or ventilation shall be permitted to open 

into a sunroom with thermal isolation or a patio cover, provided that there is an openable area 

6.C.b

Packet Pg. 64

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 C

h
ap

te
r 

15
0 

C
o

d
e 

F
in

al
 R

ev
is

io
n

  (
24

71
 :

 R
ev

is
ed

 C
am

d
en

 C
o

d
e 

C
h

ap
te

r 
15

0 
M

in
im

u
m

 H
o

u
si

n
g

 C
o

d
e 

- 
D

an
 P

o
rt

er
)



Camden County, NC Code of Ordinances 

 American Legal Publishing Corp. 10 

between the adjoining room and the sunroom or patio cover of not less than one-tenth of the 

floor area of the interior room and not less than 20 square feet. The minimum openable area to 

the outdoors shall be based upon the total floor area being ventilated. 

 (C) Sunroom additions. Required glazed openings shall be permitted to open into 

sunroom additions or patio covers that abut a street, yard or court if in excess of 40 percent of 

the exterior sunroom walls are open, or are enclosed only by insect screening, and the ceiling 

height of the sunroom is not less than 7 feet. 

 (D) Bathrooms. Bathrooms, water closet compartments and other similar rooms shall 

be provided with aggregate glazing area in windows of not less than 3 square feet (0.3 m2), one 

half of which must be openable. 

  Exception:  The glazed areas shall not be required where artificial light and a 

local exhaust system are provided.  Exhaust air from the space shall be exhausted directly to the 

outdoors. 

 (E) Intake openings. Mechanical and gravity outdoor air intake openings shall be 

located not less than 10 from any hazardous or noxious contaminant, such as vents, chimneys, 

plumbing vents, streets, alleys, parking lots and loading docks. For the purpose of this section, 

the exhaust from dwelling unit toilet rooms, bathrooms and kitchens shall not be considered as 

hazardous or noxious. 

  Exception:  The 10-foot separation is not required where the intake opening is 

located 3 feet or greater below the contaminant source. 

 (F) Outside opening protection. Air exhaust and intake openings that terminate 

outdoors shall be protected with corrosion- resistant screens, louvers or grilles having an opening 

size of not less than 1/4 inch and a maximum opening size of 1/2 inch in any dimension. 

Openings shall be protected against local weather conditions. Outdoor air exhaust and intake 

openings shall meet the provisions for exterior wall opening protectives in accordance with the 

NC Building code. 

 (G) Interior stairway illumination. Interior stairways shall be provided with an 

artificial light source to illuminate the landings and treads. The light source shall be capable of 

illuminating treads and landings to levels of not less than 1 foot-candle (11 lux) as measured at 

the center of treads and landings. There shall be a wall switch at each floor level to control the 

light source where the stairway has six or more risers. 

  Exception:  A switch is not required where remote, central or automatic control 

of lighting is provided. 

 (H) Exterior stairway illumination. Exterior stairways shall be provided with an 

artificial light source located at the top landing of the stairway. Exterior stairways providing 

access to a basement from the outdoor grade level shall be provided with an artificial light 

source located at the bottom landing of the stairway. 

 (I) Required glazed openings. Required glazed openings shall open directly onto a 

street or public alley, or a yard or court located on the same lot as the building. 

  Exceptions: 

   (1) Required glazed openings that face into a roofed porch where the 

porch abuts a street, yard or court and the longer side of the porch is not less than 65 percent 

unobstructed and the ceiling height is not less than 7 feet. 

   (2) Eave projections shall not be considered as obstructing the clear 

open space of a yard or court. 

6.C.b

Packet Pg. 65

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 C

h
ap

te
r 

15
0 

C
o

d
e 

F
in

al
 R

ev
is

io
n

  (
24

71
 :

 R
ev

is
ed

 C
am

d
en

 C
o

d
e 

C
h

ap
te

r 
15

0 
M

in
im

u
m

 H
o

u
si

n
g

 C
o

d
e 

- 
D

an
 P

o
rt

er
)



Camden County, NC Code of Ordinances 

 American Legal Publishing Corp. 11 

   (3) Required glazed openings that face into the area under a deck, 

balcony, bay or floor cantilever where a clear vertical space not less than 36 inches in height is 

provided. 

 (J) Required heating. Every dwelling unit shall be provided with heating facilities 

capable of maintaining a room temperature of not less than 70°F at a point 3 feet above the floor 

and 2 feet from exterior walls in habitable rooms at the design temperature. The installation of 

one or more portable space heaters shall not be used to achieve compliance with this section. 

Winter design condition in Camden County 20 degrees F. 

   Exception: Unconditioned sunrooms that are thermally isolated from the 

dwelling. 

 (K) All fixtures, receptacles, equipment and wiring shall be maintained in a state of 

good repair, safe, capable of being used, and installed in accordance with the National Electric 

Code with North Carolina Amendments.  

 

§ 150.10 MINIMUM STANDARDS FOR MINIMUM ROOM AREAS 

 

 (A) Minimum area. Habitable rooms shall have a floor area of not less than 70 

square feet. 

   Exception: Kitchens. 

 (B) Minimum dimensions. Habitable rooms shall be not less than 7 feet in any 

horizontal dimension. 

   Exception: Kitchens. 

 (C) Height effect on room area. Portions of a room with a sloping ceiling measuring 

less than 5 feet or a furred ceiling measuring less than 7 feet from the finished floor to the 

finished ceiling shall not be considered as contributing to the minimum required habitable area 

for that room. 

 

§ 150.11 MINIMUM STANDARDS FOR CEILING HEIGHT 

 

 (A) Minimum height. Habitable space, hallways and portions of basements 

containing these spaces shall have a ceiling height of not less than 7 feet.  Bathrooms, toilet 

rooms and laundry rooms shall have a ceiling height of not less than 6 feet 8 inches. 

   Exceptions: 

    (1) For rooms with sloped ceilings, the required floor area of 

the room shall have a ceiling height of not less than 5 feet and not less than 50 percent of the 

required floor area shall have a ceiling height of not less than 7 feet. 

    (2) The ceiling height above bathroom and toilet room fixtures 

shall be such that the fixture is capable of being used for its intended purpose. A shower or tub 

equipped with a shower head shall have a ceiling height of not less than 6 feet 8 inches above an 

area of not less than 30 inches by 30 inches at the showerhead. 

    (3) Beams, girders, ducts or other obstructions in habitable 

space shall be permitted to project to within 6 feet 4 inches of the finished floor. 

 (B) Basements. Portions of basements that do not contain habitable space or 

hallways shall have a ceiling height of not less than 6 feet 8 inches. 

   Exception:  At beams, girders, ducts or other obstructions, the ceiling 

height shall be not less than 6 feet 4 inches from the finished floor. 

6.C.b

Packet Pg. 66

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 C

h
ap

te
r 

15
0 

C
o

d
e 

F
in

al
 R

ev
is

io
n

  (
24

71
 :

 R
ev

is
ed

 C
am

d
en

 C
o

d
e 

C
h

ap
te

r 
15

0 
M

in
im

u
m

 H
o

u
si

n
g

 C
o

d
e 

- 
D

an
 P

o
rt

er
)



Camden County, NC Code of Ordinances 

 American Legal Publishing Corp. 12 

 

§ 150.12 MINIMUM STANDARDS FOR SANITATION 

 

 (A) Toilet facilities. Every dwelling unit shall be provided with a water closet, 

lavatory, and a bathtub or shower. 

 (B) Kitchen. Each dwelling unit shall be provided with a kitchen area and every 

kitchen area shall be provided with a sink. 

 (C) Sewage disposal. Plumbing fixtures shall be connected to a sanitary sewer or to 

an approved private sewage disposal system. 

 (D) Water supply to fixtures. Plumbing fixtures shall be connected to an approved 

water supply. Kitchen sinks, lavatories, bathtubs, showers, bidets, laundry tubs and washing 

machine outlets shall be provided with hot and cold water. 

 (E) Bathtub and shower spaces. Bathtub and shower floors and walls above 

bathtubs with installed shower heads and in shower compartments shall be finished with a 

nonabsorbent surface. Such wall surfaces shall extend to a height of not less than 6 feet above the 

floor. 

 

§ 150.13 MINIMUM STANDARDS FOR EMERGENCY ESCAPE AND RESCUE 

OPENINGS 

 

 (A) Emergency escape and rescue opening required.  Basements, habitable attics 

and every sleeping room shall have not less than one operable emergency escape and rescue 

opening. Where basements contain one or more sleeping rooms, an emergency escape and rescue 

opening shall be required in each sleeping room. Emergency escape and rescue openings shall 

open directly into a public way, or to a yard or court that opens to a public way. 

   Exception: Storm shelters and basements used only to house mechanical 

equipment not exceeding a total floor area of 200 square feet. 

 (B) Operational constraints and opening control devices. Emergency escape and 

rescue openings shall be operational from the inside of the room without the use of keys, tools or 

special knowledge. Window opening control devices complying with ASTM F2090 shall be 

permitted for use on windows serving as a required emergency escape and rescue opening. 

 (C) Emergency escape and rescue openings. Emergency escape and rescue 

openings shall have minimum dimensions as follows: 

   (1) Minimum opening area. Emergency and escape rescue openings 

shall have a minimum net clear openable area of 4 square feet. The minimum net clear opening 

height shall be 22 inches. The minimum net clear opening width shall be 20 inches. Emergency 

escape and rescue openings must have a minimum total glazing area of not less than 5 square 

feet in the case of a ground floor level window and not less than 5.7 square feet in the case of an 

upper story window. 

   (2) Window sill height. Where a window is provided as the 

emergency escape and rescue opening, it shall have a sill height of not more than 44 inches 

above the floor; where the sill height is below grade, it shall be provided with a window well. 

   (3) Window wells. The horizontal area of the window well shall be 

not less than 9 square feet, with a horizontal projection and width of not less than 36 inches. The 

area of the window well shall allow the emergency escape and rescue opening to be fully 

opened. 

6.C.b

Packet Pg. 67

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 C

h
ap

te
r 

15
0 

C
o

d
e 

F
in

al
 R

ev
is

io
n

  (
24

71
 :

 R
ev

is
ed

 C
am

d
en

 C
o

d
e 

C
h

ap
te

r 
15

0 
M

in
im

u
m

 H
o

u
si

n
g

 C
o

d
e 

- 
D

an
 P

o
rt

er
)



Camden County, NC Code of Ordinances 

 American Legal Publishing Corp. 13 

     Exception: The ladder or steps required as indicated below 

shall be permitted to encroach not more than 6 inches into the required dimensions of the 

window well. 

   (4) Ladder and steps. Window wells with a vertical depth greater 

than 44 inches shall be equipped with a permanently affixed ladder or steps usable with the 

window in the fully open position. Ladders or steps required by this section shall not be required 

to comply with other sections regarding ladders and steps.  Ladders or rungs shall have an inside 

width of not less than 12 inches, shall project not less than 3 inches from the wall and shall be 

spaced not more than 18 inches on center vertically for the full height of the window well. 

   (5) Emergency escape and rescue openings under decks and 

porches. Emergency escape and rescue openings shall be permitted to be installed under decks 

and porches provided that the location of the deck allows the emergency escape and rescue 

openings to be fully opened and provides a path not less than 36 inches in height to a yard or 

court. 

   (6) Replacement windows. Replacement windows installed in 

buildings meeting the scope of this code shall be exempt from the maximum sill height 

requirements provided the replacement window meets the following conditions: 

    (a) The replacement window is the manufacturer’s largest 

standard size window that will fit within the existing frame or existing rough opening. The 

replacement window is of the same operating style as the existing window or a style that 

provides for an equal or greater window opening area than the existing window. 

    (b) The replacement window is not part of a change of 

occupancy. 

 (D) Emergency escape and rescue doors. Where a door is provided as the required 

emergency escape and rescue opening, it shall be permitted to be a side-hinged door or a slider. 

Where the opening is below the adjacent ground elevation, it shall be provided with a bulkhead 

enclosure. 

  (1) Minimum door opening size. The minimum net clear height opening for 

any door that serves as an emergency and escape rescue opening shall be in accordance with 

opening sizes above. 

  (2) Bulkhead enclosures. Bulkhead enclosures shall provide direct access 

from the basement. The bulkhead enclosure shall provide the minimum net clear opening equal 

to the door in the fully open position. 

  (3) Bars, grilles, covers and screens. Bars, grilles, covers, screens or similar 

devices are permitted to be placed over emergency escape and rescue openings, bulkhead 

enclosures, or window wells that serve such openings, provided that the minimum net clear 

opening size is not reduced and such devices shall be releasable or removable from the inside 

without the use of a key, tool, special knowledge or force greater than that required for the 

normal operation of the escape and rescue opening. 

 (E) Dwelling additions. Where dwelling additions occur that contain sleeping rooms, 

an emergency escape and rescue opening shall be provided in each new sleeping room. Where 

dwelling additions occur that have basements, an emergency escape and rescue opening shall be 

provided in the new basement. 

   Exceptions: 
    (1) An emergency escape and rescue opening is not required in 

a new basement that contains a sleeping room with an emergency escape and rescue opening. 

6.C.b

Packet Pg. 68

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 C

h
ap

te
r 

15
0 

C
o

d
e 

F
in

al
 R

ev
is

io
n

  (
24

71
 :

 R
ev

is
ed

 C
am

d
en

 C
o

d
e 

C
h

ap
te

r 
15

0 
M

in
im

u
m

 H
o

u
si

n
g

 C
o

d
e 

- 
D

an
 P

o
rt

er
)



Camden County, NC Code of Ordinances 

 American Legal Publishing Corp. 14 

    (2) An emergency escape and rescue opening is not required in 

a new basement where there is an emergency escape and rescue opening in an existing basement 

that is accessible from the new basement. 

 (F) Alterations or repairs of existing basements. An emergency escape and rescue 

opening is not required where existing basements undergo alterations or repairs. 

   Exception: New sleeping rooms created in an existing basement shall be 

provided with emergency escape and rescue openings. 

 

§ 150.14 MINIMUM STANDARDS FOR MEANS OF EGRESS 

 

 (A) Means of egress. All dwellings shall be provided with a means of egress as 

provided in this section. The means of egress shall provide a continuous and unobstructed path of 

vertical and horizontal egress travel from all portions of the dwelling to the exterior of the 

dwelling at the required exterior egress door without requiring travel through a garage. 

 (B) Egress door. Not less than one exterior egress door shall be provided for each 

dwelling unit. The egress door shall be side-hinged, and shall provide a clear width of not less 

than 32 inches where measured between the face of the door and the stop, with the door open 90 

degrees.  The clear height of the door opening shall be not less than 78 inches in height 

measured from the top of the threshold to the bottom of the stop. Other exterior doors shall not 

be required to comply with these minimum dimensions. Egress doors shall be readily openable 

from inside the dwelling without the use of a key or special knowledge or effort. 

 (C) Floors and landings at exterior doors. There shall be a landing or floor on each 

side of each exterior door. The width of each landing shall be not less than the door served. 

Every landing shall have a dimension of not less than 36 inches measured in the direction of 

travel. The 

slope at exterior landings shall not exceed 1/4 unit vertical in 12 units horizontal (2 percent). 

   Exception:  Exterior balconies less than 60 square feet and only 

accessible from a door are permitted to have a landing less than 36 inches measured in the 

direction of travel. 

  (1) Floor elevations at the required egress doors. Landings or finished 

floors at the required egress door shall be not more than 1-1/2 inches lower than the top of the 

threshold. 

    Exception: The exterior landing or floor shall be not more than 8-

1/4 inches below the top of the threshold provided the door does not swing over the landing or 

floor. Where exterior landings or floors serving the required egress door are not at grade, they 

shall be provided with access to grade by means of a ramp or a stairway. 

  (2) Floor elevations for other exterior doors. Doors other than the required 

egress door shall be provided with landings or floors not more than 8-1/4 inches below the top of 

the threshold. 

    Exception:  A landing is not required where a stairway is located 

on the exterior side of the door, provided that the door does not swing over the stairway. 

  (3) Storm and screen doors. Storm and screen doors shall be permitted to 

swing over exterior stairs and landings. 

 (D) Hallways. The width of a hallway shall be not less than 3 feet measured from the 

finished surface of the walls. 

6.C.b

Packet Pg. 69

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 C

h
ap

te
r 

15
0 

C
o

d
e 

F
in

al
 R

ev
is

io
n

  (
24

71
 :

 R
ev

is
ed

 C
am

d
en

 C
o

d
e 

C
h

ap
te

r 
15

0 
M

in
im

u
m

 H
o

u
si

n
g

 C
o

d
e 

- 
D

an
 P

o
rt

er
)



Camden County, NC Code of Ordinances 

 American Legal Publishing Corp. 15 

  (1) Interior egress doors. All doors providing egress from habitable rooms 

shall have nominal dimensions of 2 feet 6 inches width by 6 feet 8 inches height. Interior egress 

doors shall be readily openable from the side from which egress is to be made without the use of 

a key or special knowledge or effort. 

 (E) Stairways. 

  (1) Width. Stairways shall be not less than 36 inches in clear width at all 

points above the permitted handrail height and below the required headroom height. Handrails 

shall not project more than 4-1/2 inches on either side of the stairway and the clear width of the 

stairway at and below the handrail height, including treads and landings, shall be not less than 

31-1/2 inches where a handrail is installed on one side and 27 inches where handrails are 

provided on both sides. 

    Exceptions: 

     (1) The width of spiral stairways 

     (2) Stairways not required for egress shall be permitted 

to be a minimum width of 26 inches. 

  (2) Headroom. The headroom in stairways shall be not less than 6 feet 8 

inches measured vertically from the sloped line adjoining the tread nosing or from the floor surface of 

the landing or platform on that portion of the stairway. 

    Exceptions: 

     (1) Where the nosings of treads at the side of a flight 

extend under the edge of a floor opening through which the stair passes, the floor opening shall 

be allowed to project horizontally into the required headroom not more than 4-3/4 inches. 

     (2) The headroom for spiral stairways. 

  (3) Vertical rise. A flight of stairs shall not have a vertical rise larger than 

147 inches between floor levels or landings. 

  (4) Stair treads and risers. Stair treads and risers shall meet the requirements 

of this section. For the purposes of this section, dimensions and dimensioned surfaces shall be 

exclusive of carpets, rugs or runners. 

   (a) Risers.  The riser height shall be not more than 8-1/4 inches. The 

riser shall be measured vertically between leading edges of the adjacent treads. The greatest riser 

height within any flight of stairs shall not exceed the smallest by more than 3/8 inch. The top and 

bottom riser of interior stairs shall not exceed the smallest riser within that stair run by more than 

3/4 inch. The height of the top and bottom riser of the interior stairs shall be measured from the 

permanent finished surface (carpet excluded). Where the bottom riser of an exterior stair adjoins 

an exterior walk, porch, driveway, patio, garage floor, or finish grade, the height of the riser may 

be less than the height of the adjacent risers. 

   (b) Treads.  The minimum tread depth shall be not less than 9 inches.  

The tread depth shall be measured horizontally between the vertical planes of the foremost 

projection of adjacent treads and at a right angle to the tread’s leading edge. The greatest tread 

depth within any flight of stairs shall not exceed the smallest by more than 3/8 inch. 

    (1) Winder treads. Winder treads shall have a tread depth of 

not less than 9 inches measured between the vertical planes of the foremost projection of 

adjacent treads at the intersections with the walkline. Winder treads shall have a tread depth of 

not less than 4 inches at any point within the clear width of the stair. Within any flight of stairs, 

the largest winder tread depth at the walkline shall not exceed the smallest winder tread by more 

than 3/8 inch. 

6.C.b

Packet Pg. 70

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 C

h
ap

te
r 

15
0 

C
o

d
e 

F
in

al
 R

ev
is

io
n

  (
24

71
 :

 R
ev

is
ed

 C
am

d
en

 C
o

d
e 

C
h

ap
te

r 
15

0 
M

in
im

u
m

 H
o

u
si

n
g

 C
o

d
e 

- 
D

an
 P

o
rt

er
)



Camden County, NC Code of Ordinances 

 American Legal Publishing Corp. 16 

   (c) Nosings. The radius of curvature at the nosing shall be not greater 

than 9/16 inch.  A nosing projection not less than 3/4 inch and not more than 1-1/4 inches shall 

be provided on stairways with solid risers. The greatest nosing projection shall not exceed the 

smallest nosing projection by more than 3/8 inch between two stories, including the nosing at the 

level of floors and landings. Beveling of nosings shall not exceed 1/2 inch. 

     Exceptions: 

      (1) A nosing projection is not required where 

the tread depth is not less than 11 inches. 

      (2) The opening between adjacent treads is not 

limited on stairs with a total rise of 30 inches or less. 

   (d) Exterior plastic composite stair treads. Plastic composite 

exterior stair treads shall comply with the provisions of this section and the requirements of 

ASTM D7032. 

  (5) Landings for stairways. There shall be a floor or landing at the top and 

bottom of each stairway. A flight of stairs shall not have a vertical rise larger than 12 feet 3 

inches between floor levels or landings. The width of each landing shall not be less than the 

width of the stairway served. Every landing shall have a minimum dimension of 36 inches (914 

mm) measured in the direction of travel. 

    Exception:  A floor or landing is not required at the top of an 

interior flight of stairs, including stairs in an enclosed garage, provided that a door does not 

swing over the stairs. 

  (6) Stairway walking surface. The walking surface of treads and landings of 

stairways shall be sloped not steeper than one unit vertical in 48 inches horizontal (2-percent 

slope). 

  (7) Handrails. Handrails shall be provided on not less than one side of each 

continuous run of treads or flight with four or more risers. 

   (a) Height. Handrail height, measured vertically from the sloped plane 

adjoining the tread nosing, or finish surface of ramp slope, shall be not less than 34 inches and 

not more than 38 inches. 

     Exceptions: 

      (1) The use of a volute, turnout or starting 

easing shall be allowed over the lowest tread. 

      (2) Where handrail fittings or bendings are used 

to provide continuous transition between flights, transitions at winder treads, the transition from 

handrail to guard, or used at the start of a flight, the handrail height at the fittings or bendings 

shall be permitted to exceed 38 inches. 

   (b) Continuity. Handrails for stairways shall be continuous for the full 

length of the flight, from a point directly above the top riser of the flight to a point directly above 

the lowest riser of the flight. Handrail ends shall be returned or shall terminate in newel posts or 

safety terminals. Handrails adjacent to a wall shall have a space of not less than 1-1/2 inches 

between the wall and the handrails. 

     Exceptions: 

      (1) Handrails shall be permitted to be 

interrupted by a newel post at the turn. 

      (2) The use of a volute, turnout, starting easing 

or starting newel shall be allowed over the lowest tread. 

6.C.b

Packet Pg. 71

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 C

h
ap

te
r 

15
0 

C
o

d
e 

F
in

al
 R

ev
is

io
n

  (
24

71
 :

 R
ev

is
ed

 C
am

d
en

 C
o

d
e 

C
h

ap
te

r 
15

0 
M

in
im

u
m

 H
o

u
si

n
g

 C
o

d
e 

- 
D

an
 P

o
rt

er
)



Camden County, NC Code of Ordinances 

 American Legal Publishing Corp. 17 

      (3) Two or more separate rails shall be 

considered continuous if the termination of the rails occurs within 6 inches of each other. If 

transitioning between a wall-mounted handrail and a guardrail/handrail, the wall-mounted rail 

shall return into the wall. 

   (c) Grip-size. Required handrails shall be of one of the following 

types or provide equivalent graspability: 

    (1) Type I. Handrails with a circular cross section shall have an 

outside diameter of not less than 1-1/4 inches and not greater than 2 inches.  If the handrail is 

not circular, it shall have a perimeter dimension of not less than 4 inches and not greater than 6-

1/4 inches with a cross section of dimension of not more than 2-1/4 inches.  Edges shall have a 

radius of not less than 0.01 inch. 

    (2) Type II. Handrails with a perimeter greater than 6-1/4 

inches shall have a graspable finger recess area on both sides of the profile. The finger recess 

shall begin within a distance of 3/4 inch measured vertically from the tallest portion of the profile 

and achieve a depth of not less than 5/16 inch within 7/8 inch below the widest portion of the 

profile. This required depth shall continue for not less than 3/8 inch to a level that is not less than 

1-3/4 inches below the tallest portion of the profile. The width of the handrail above the recess 

shall be not less than 1-1/4 inches and not more than 2-3/4 inches.  Edges shall have a radius of 

not less than 0.01 inch. 

      Exception: Exterior handrails (garages and areas 

exposed to the weather) shall not be more than 3-1/2 inches in cross-section dimension. 

   (d) Exterior plastic composite handrails. Plastic composite exterior 

handrails shall comply with the requirements of ASTM D7032. 

 (F) Special Stairways 

  (1) Spiral stairways. Spiral stairways are permitted, provided that the clear 

width at and below the handrail is not less than 26 inches and the walkline radius is not greater 

than 24-1/2 inches. Each tread shall have a depth of not less than 6-3/4 inches at the walkline. All 

treads shall be identical, and the rise shall be not more than 9-1/2 inches. Headroom shall be not 

less than 6 feet 6 inches. 

  (2) Bulkhead enclosure stairways. Stairways serving bulkhead enclosures, 

not part of the required building egress, providing access from the outside grade level to the 

basement shall be exempt from the requirements where the height from the basement finished 

floor level to grade adjacent to the stairway is not more than 8 feet and the grade level opening 

to the stairway is covered by a bulkhead enclosure with hinged doors or other approved means. 

  (3) Bowed tread stairways. Bowed tread stairways are permitted provided 

they are uniform in bowed tread depth along the entire width of the tread with not more than 3/8-

inch variance from greatest to smallest tread in the stairway flight. At no point shall the tread be 

less than 9 inches with a nosing as above 

   (a) Standard stairway application. The bottom three treads in a 

standard straight run stairway application are permitted to bow provided that, at no point along 

the width of the tread, they are less than 9 inches and each bowed tread is uniform with other 

bowed treads with no more than 3/8 inch variance from greatest to least. Nosing is required. 

   (b) Bowed tread circular stairways. Bowed treads in a circular 

stairway are permitted provided they are uniform, as per winder treads measured at a point 12 

inches from the side where the treads are narrower. At this walk line, bowed treads must be 

6.C.b

Packet Pg. 72

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 C

h
ap

te
r 

15
0 

C
o

d
e 

F
in

al
 R

ev
is

io
n

  (
24

71
 :

 R
ev

is
ed

 C
am

d
en

 C
o

d
e 

C
h

ap
te

r 
15

0 
M

in
im

u
m

 H
o

u
si

n
g

 C
o

d
e 

- 
D

an
 P

o
rt

er
)



Camden County, NC Code of Ordinances 

 American Legal Publishing Corp. 18 

uniform with other circular stairway treads with the greatest tread not to exceed the smallest by 

more than 3/8 inch. Nosing is required. 

   (c) Ships ladders. Ships ladders shall not be used as an element of a 

means of egress. Ships ladders shall be permitted provided that a required means of egress 

stairway or ramp serves the same space at each adjoining level or where a means of egress is not 

required. The clear width at and below the handrails shall be not less than 20 inches. 

    (1) Treads of ships ladders. Treads shall have a depth of not 

less than 5 inches. The tread shall be projected such that the total of the tread depth plus the 

nosing projection is not less than 8-1/2 inches. The riser height shall be not more than 9-1/2 

inches. 

    (2) Handrails of ships ladders. Handrails shall be provided on 

both sides of ships ladders. Handrail height shall be uniform, not less than 30 inches and not 

more than 34 inches. 

 (G) Ramps. 

  (1) Maximum slope. Ramps serving the egress door shall have a slope of not 

more than 1 unit vertical in 12 units horizontal (8.3-percent slope). All other ramps shall have a 

maximum slope of 1 unit vertical in 8 units horizontal (12.5 percent). 

    Exception: Where it is technically infeasible to comply because of 

site constraints, ramps shall have a slope of not more than 1 unit vertical in 8 units horizontal 

(12.5 percent). 

  (2) Landings required. There shall be a floor or landing at the top and 

bottom of each ramp, where doors open onto ramps, and where ramps change directions. The 

width of the landing perpendicular to the ramp slope shall be not less than 36 inches. 

  (3) Handrails required. Handrails shall be provided on not less than one side 

of ramps exceeding a slope of one unit vertical in 12 units horizontal (8.33-percent slope). 

   (a) Height. Handrail height, measured above the finished surface of 

the ramp slope, shall be not less than 34 inches and not more than 38 inches. 

   (b) Continuity. Handrails where required on ramps shall be 

continuous for the full length of the ramp. Handrail ends shall be returned or shall terminate in 

newel posts or safety terminals. Handrails adjacent to a wall shall have a space of not less than 1-

1/2 inches between the wall and the handrails. 

 

§ 150.15 MINIMUM STANDARDS FOR GUARDS AND WINDOW FALL 

PROTECTION 

 

 (A) Guards. Guards shall be provided as required. 

  (1) Where required. Guards shall be located along open-sided walking 

surfaces, including stairs, ramps and landings, that are located more than 30 inches measured 

vertically to the floor or grade below at any point within 36 inches horizontally to the edge of the 

open side. Insect screening shall not be considered as a guard. 

  (2) Height. Required guards at open-sided walking surfaces, including stairs, 

porches, balconies or landings, shall be not less than 36 inches in height as measured vertically 

above the adjacent walking surface or the line connecting the leading edges of the treads. 

    Exceptions: 

6.C.b

Packet Pg. 73

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 C

h
ap

te
r 

15
0 

C
o

d
e 

F
in

al
 R

ev
is

io
n

  (
24

71
 :

 R
ev

is
ed

 C
am

d
en

 C
o

d
e 

C
h

ap
te

r 
15

0 
M

in
im

u
m

 H
o

u
si

n
g

 C
o

d
e 

- 
D

an
 P

o
rt

er
)



Camden County, NC Code of Ordinances 

 American Legal Publishing Corp. 19 

     (1) Guards on the open sides of stairs shall have a 

height not less than 34 inches measured vertically from a line connecting the leading edges of the 

treads. 

     (2) Where the top of the guard serves as a handrail on 

the open sides of stairs, the top of the guard shall be not less than 34 inches and not more than 38 

inches as measured vertically from a line connecting the leading edges of the treads. 

  (3) Opening limitations. Required guards shall not have openings from the 

walking surface to the required guard height that allow passage of a sphere 4 in diameter. 

    Exceptions: 

     (1) The triangular openings at the open side of stair, 

formed by the riser, tread and bottom rail of a guard, shall not allow passage of a sphere 6 inches 

in diameter. 

     (2) Guards on the open side of stairs shall not have 

openings that allow passage of a sphere 4-3/8 inches in diameter. 

 

§ 150.16 MINIMUM STANDARDS FOR SMOKE ALARMS 

 

 (A) General. Smoke alarms shall comply with NFPA 72 and this section. 

 (B) Listings. Smoke alarms shall be listed in accordance with UL 217. Combination 

smoke and carbon monoxide alarms shall be listed in accordance with UL 217 and UL 2034. 

 (C) Where required. Smoke alarms shall be provided in accordance with this 

section. 

  (1) New construction. Smoke alarms shall be provided in dwelling units. 

  (2) Alterations, repairs and additions. Where alterations, repairs or 

additions requiring a building permit occur, or where one or more sleeping rooms are added or 

created in existing dwellings, the individual dwelling unit shall be equipped with smoke alarms 

located as required for new dwellings. 

    Exceptions: 

     (1) Work involving the exterior surfaces of dwellings, 

such as the replacement of roofing or siding, the addition or replacement of windows or doors, or 

the addition of a porch or deck, are exempt from the requirements of this section. 

     (2) Installation, alteration or repairs of plumbing or 

mechanical systems are exempt from the requirements of this section. 

 (D) Location. Smoke alarms shall be installed in the following locations: 

  (1) In each sleeping room. 

  (2) Outside each separate sleeping area in the immediate vicinity of the 

bedrooms. 

  (3) On each additional story of the dwelling, including basements and 

habitable attics and not including crawl spaces and uninhabitable attics. In dwellings or dwelling 

units with split levels and without an intervening door between the adjacent levels, a smoke 

alarm installed on the upper level shall suffice for the adjacent lower level provided that the 

lower level is less than one full story below the upper level. 

  (4) Smoke alarms shall be installed not less than 3 feet horizontally from the 

door or opening of a bathroom that contains a bathtub or shower unless this would prevent 

placement of a smoke alarm required in another section. 

6.C.b

Packet Pg. 74

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 C

h
ap

te
r 

15
0 

C
o

d
e 

F
in

al
 R

ev
is

io
n

  (
24

71
 :

 R
ev

is
ed

 C
am

d
en

 C
o

d
e 

C
h

ap
te

r 
15

0 
M

in
im

u
m

 H
o

u
si

n
g

 C
o

d
e 

- 
D

an
 P

o
rt

er
)



Camden County, NC Code of Ordinances 

 American Legal Publishing Corp. 20 

 (E) Installation near cooking appliances. Smoke alarms shall not be installed in the 

following locations unless this would prevent placement of a smoke alarm in a location required 

in another section 

  (1) Ionization smoke alarms shall not be installed less than 20 feet 

horizontally from a permanently installed cooking appliance. 

  (2) Ionization smoke alarms with an alarm-silencing switch shall not be 

installed less than 10 feet horizontally from a permanently installed cooking appliance. 

  (3) Photoelectric smoke alarms shall not be installed less than 6 feet 

horizontally from a permanently installed cooking appliance. 

 (F) Interconnection. Where more than one smoke alarm is required to be installed 

within an individual dwelling unit, the alarm devices shall be interconnected in such a manner 

that the actuation of one alarm will activate all of the alarms in the individual dwelling unit. 

Physical interconnection of smoke alarms shall not be required where listed wireless alarms are 

installed and all alarms sound upon activation of one alarm. 

   Exception: Interconnection of smoke alarms in existing areas shall not be 

required where alterations or repairs do not result in removal of interior wall or ceiling finishes 

exposing the structure.  

 (G) Combination alarms. Combination smoke and carbon monoxide alarms shall be 

permitted to be used in lieu of smoke alarms. 

 (H) Power source. Smoke alarms shall receive their primary power from the building 

wiring where such wiring is served from a commercial source and, where primary power is 

interrupted, shall receive power from a battery. Wiring shall be permanent and without a 

disconnecting switch other than those required for overcurrent protection. 

   Exceptions: 

    1.  Smoke alarms shall be permitted to be battery operated where 

installed in buildings without commercial power. 

    2. Smoke alarms installed in accordance with code section titled 

"Alterations, repairs and additions" shall be permitted to be battery powered. 

 (I) Fire alarm systems. Fire alarm systems shall be permitted to be used in lieu of 

smoke alarms and shall comply with this section. 

  (1) General. Fire alarm systems shall comply with the provisions of this code 

and the household fire warning equipment provisions of NFPA 72. Smoke detectors shall be 

listed in accordance with UL 268. 

  (2) Location. Smoke detectors shall be installed in the locations specified 

above. 

  (3) Permanent fixture. Where a household fire alarm system is installed, it 

shall become a permanent fixture of the occupancy, owned by the homeowner and carbon 

monoxide detectors shall be permitted to be installed in fire alarm systems in lieu of smoke 

detectors, provided that they are listed in accordance with UL 268 and UL 2075. 

 

§ 150.17 MINIMUM STANDARDS FOR CARBON MONOXIDE ALARMS 

 

 (A) Listings. Carbon monoxide alarms shall be listed in accordance with UL 2034. 

Combination carbon monoxide and smoke alarms shall be listed in accordance with UL 2034 and 

UL 217. 

 (B) Where required. Carbon monoxide alarms shall be provided as follows: 

6.C.b

Packet Pg. 75

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 C

h
ap

te
r 

15
0 

C
o

d
e 

F
in

al
 R

ev
is

io
n

  (
24

71
 :

 R
ev

is
ed

 C
am

d
en

 C
o

d
e 

C
h

ap
te

r 
15

0 
M

in
im

u
m

 H
o

u
si

n
g

 C
o

d
e 

- 
D

an
 P

o
rt

er
)



Camden County, NC Code of Ordinances 

 American Legal Publishing Corp. 21 

  (1) New construction. For new construction, carbon monoxide alarms shall 

be provided in dwelling units where either or both of the following conditions exist. 

   (a) The dwelling unit contains a fuel-fired appliance or fireplace. 

   (b) The dwelling unit has an attached garage with an opening that 

communicates with the dwelling unit. 

  (2) Alterations, repairs and additions. Where alterations, repairs or 

additions requiring a building permit occur, or where one or more sleeping rooms are added or 

created in existing dwellings, or where fuel-fired appliances or fireplaces are added or replaced, 

the individual dwelling unit shall be equipped with carbon monoxide alarms located as required 

for new dwellings. 

    Exception:  Work involving the exterior surfaces of dwellings, 

such as the replacement of roofing or siding, or the addition or replacement of windows or doors, 

or the addition of a porch or deck, or the installation of a fuel-fired appliance that cannot 

introduce carbon monoxide to the interior of the dwelling, is exempt from the requirements of 

this section. 

  (3) Location. Carbon monoxide alarms in dwelling units shall be installed 

outside of each separate sleeping area in the immediate vicinity of the bedrooms. Where a fuel-

burning appliance is located within a bedroom or its attached bathroom, a carbon monoxide 

alarm shall be installed within the bedroom. 

 (C) Combination alarms. Combination carbon monoxide and smoke alarms shall be 

permitted to be used in lieu of carbon monoxide alarms. 

 (D) Power source. Carbon monoxide alarms shall receive their primary power from 

the building wiring where such wiring is served from a commercial source and, where primary 

power is interrupted, shall receive power from a battery. Wiring shall be permanent and without 

a disconnecting switch other than those required for overcurrent protection. 

   Exceptions: 

    (1) Carbon monoxide alarms shall be permitted to be battery 

operated where installed in buildings without commercial power. 

    (2) Carbon monoxide alarms installed in accordance with code 

section titled "Alterations, repairs and additions" shall be permitted to be battery powered. 

 (E) Carbon monoxide detection systems. Carbon monoxide detection systems shall 

be permitted to be used in lieu of carbon monoxide alarms as follows: 

  (1) General. Household carbon monoxide detection systems shall comply 

with NFPA 720. Carbon monoxide detectors shall be listed in accordance with UL 2075. 

  (2) Location. Carbon monoxide detectors shall be installed in the locations 

specified.  These locations supersede the locations specified in NFPA 720. 

  (3) Permanent fixture. Where a household carbon monoxide detection 

system is installed, it shall become a permanent fixture of the occupancy and owned by the 

homeowner. 

  (4) Combination detectors. Combination carbon monoxide and smoke 

detectors shall be permitted to be installed in carbon monoxide detection systems in lieu of 

carbon monoxide detectors, provided that they are listed in accordance with UL 2075 and UL 

268. 

 

§ 150.18 MINIMUM STANDARDS FOR BARRIERS FOR SWIMMING POOLS, SPAS 

AND HOT TUBS 

6.C.b

Packet Pg. 76

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 C

h
ap

te
r 

15
0 

C
o

d
e 

F
in

al
 R

ev
is

io
n

  (
24

71
 :

 R
ev

is
ed

 C
am

d
en

 C
o

d
e 

C
h

ap
te

r 
15

0 
M

in
im

u
m

 H
o

u
si

n
g

 C
o

d
e 

- 
D

an
 P

o
rt

er
)



Camden County, NC Code of Ordinances 

 American Legal Publishing Corp. 22 

 

 (A) BARRIER REQUIREMENTS for swimming pools, spas, and hot tubs 

installed in or on the lot of a one or two family dwelling:  The provisions herein shall control 

the design of barriers for residential swimming pools, spas and hot tubs. These design controls 

are intended to provide protection against potential drownings and near drownings by restricting 

access to swimming pools, spas and hot tubs. 

 (B) Outdoor swimming pool. An outdoor swimming pool, including an in-ground, 

above-ground or on-ground pool, hot tub or spa shall be surrounded by a barrier which shall 

comply with the following: 

  (1)  The top of the barrier shall be at least 48 inches above grade measured on 

the side of the barrier which faces away from the swimming pool. The maximum vertical 

clearance between grade and the bottom of the barrier shall be 2 inches or 4 inches where 

concrete or fixed solid material is used measured on the side of the barrier which faces away 

from the swimming pool. Where the top of the pool structure is above grade, such as an 

aboveground pool, the barrier may be at ground level, such as the pool structure, or mounted on 

top of the pool structure. Where the barrier is mounted on top of the pool structure, the maximum 

vertical clearance between the top of the pool structure and the bottom of the barrier shall be 4 

inches. 

  (2) Openings in the barrier shall not allow passage of a 4-inch-diameter 

sphere. 

  (3) Solid barriers that do not have openings, such as a masonry or stone wall, 

shall not contain indentations or protrusions except for normal construction tolerances and tooled 

masonry joints. 

  (4) Where the barrier is composed of horizontal and vertical members and the 

distance between the tops of the horizontal members is less than 45 inches, the horizontal 

members shall be located on the swimming pool side of the fence. Spacing between vertical 

members shall not exceed 1-3/4 inches in width. Where there are decorative cutouts within 

vertical members, spacing within the cutouts shall not exceed 1-3/4 inches in width. 

  (5) Where the barrier is composed of horizontal and vertical members and the 

distance between the tops of the horizontal members is 45 inches or more, spacing between 

vertical members shall not exceed 4inches. Where there are decorative cutouts within vertical 

members, spacing within the cutouts shall not exceed 1-3/4 inches in width. 

  (6) Maximum mesh size for chain link fences shall be a 2-1/4 inch square 

unless the fence has slats fastened at the top or the bottom that reduce the openings to not more 

than 1-3/4 inches. 

  (7) Where the barrier is composed of diagonal members such as a lattice 

fence, the maximum opening formed by the diagonal members shall not be more than 1-3/4 

inches. 

  (8) Access gates shall comply with the requirements of the above, items 1 

through 7, and shall be equipped to accommodate a locking device. Pedestrian access gates shall 

open outward away from the pool and shall be self-closing and have a self-latching device.  

Gates other than pedestrian access gates shall have a self-latching device. Where the release 

mechanism of the self-latching device is located less than 54 inches from the bottom of the gate, 

the release mechanism and openings shall comply with the following: 

   (8.1) The release mechanism shall be located on the pool side of the gate 

at least 3 inches below the top of the gate; and 

6.C.b

Packet Pg. 77

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 C

h
ap

te
r 

15
0 

C
o

d
e 

F
in

al
 R

ev
is

io
n

  (
24

71
 :

 R
ev

is
ed

 C
am

d
en

 C
o

d
e 

C
h

ap
te

r 
15

0 
M

in
im

u
m

 H
o

u
si

n
g

 C
o

d
e 

- 
D

an
 P

o
rt

er
)



Camden County, NC Code of Ordinances 

 American Legal Publishing Corp. 23 

   (8.2) The gate and barrier shall have no opening larger than 1/2 inch 

within 18 inches of the release mechanism. 

  (9) Where a wall of a dwelling serves as part of the barrier, one of the 

following conditions shall be met: 

   (9.1) The pool shall be equipped with a powered safety cover in 

compliance with ASTM F1346; or 

   (9.2) Doors with direct access to the pool through that wall shall be 

equipped with an alarm that produces an audible warning when the door and/or its screen, if 

present, are opened. The alarm shall be listed and labeled in accordance with UL 2017. The 

deactivation switch(es) shall be located at least 54 inches above the threshold of the door; or 

   (9.3) Other means of protection, such as self-closing doors with self-

latching devices, which are approved by the governing body, shall be acceptable as long as the 

degree of protection afforded is not less than the protection afforded by Item 9.1 or 9.2 described 

above. 

  (10) Where an above-ground pool structure is used as a barrier or where the 

barrier is mounted on top of the pool structure, and the means of access is a ladder or steps: 

   (10.1) The ladder or steps shall be capable of being secured, locked or 

removed to prevent access; or 

   (10.2) The ladder or steps shall be surrounded by a barrier that meets the 

requirements of items 1 through 9 above. When the ladder or steps are secured, locked or 

removed, any opening created shall not allow the passage of a 4-inch-diameter sphere. 

 (C) Indoor swimming pool. Walls surrounding an indoor swimming pool shall 

comply with §150.18(B)(9) above with regards to walls serving as barriers. 

 (D) Prohibited locations.  Barriers shall be located away from permanent structures, 

equipment or similar objects to prohibit them from being climbed upon to gain access. 

 

 (E) Barrier exceptions. Spas or hot tubs with a safety cover that complies with 

ASTM F1346 shall be exempt from the provisions of this section. 

§ 150.19 RESPONSIBILITIES OF OWNERS AND OCCUPANTS. 

 (A) Every owner of a dwelling containing two or more dwelling units shall be 

responsible for maintaining in a clean and sanitary condition the shared or public areas of the 

dwelling and premises thereof. 

 (B) Every occupant of a dwelling or dwelling unit shall keep in a clean and sanitary 

condition that part of the dwelling, dwelling unit and premises thereof which he or she occupies 

and controls. 

 (C) Every occupant of a dwelling or dwelling unit shall dispose of all rubbish and 

garbage in a clean and sanitary manner by placing it in the supplied storage facilities.  In all 

cases, the owner shall be responsible for the availability of rubbish and garbage storage facilities. 

 (D) Every occupant of a dwelling unit shall keep all supplied plumbing fixtures 

therein in a clean and sanitary condition and shall be responsible for the exercise of reasonable 

care in the proper use and operation of same. 

 (E) No occupant shall willfully destroy, deface or impair any of the facilities or 

equipment or any of the structure of a dwelling or dwelling unit. 

6.C.b

Packet Pg. 78

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 C

h
ap

te
r 

15
0 

C
o

d
e 

F
in

al
 R

ev
is

io
n

  (
24

71
 :

 R
ev

is
ed

 C
am

d
en

 C
o

d
e 

C
h

ap
te

r 
15

0 
M

in
im

u
m

 H
o

u
si

n
g

 C
o

d
e 

- 
D

an
 P

o
rt

er
)



Camden County, NC Code of Ordinances 

 American Legal Publishing Corp. 24 

(Ord. passed 5-15-89)  Penalty, see § 150.99 

 (F) Refer to GS 42 Article 5 regarding Landlord Tenant Residential Rental 

Agreements.   

§ 150.20 DUTIES AND POWERS OF BUILDING INSPECTOR. 

 (A) The Building Inspector is hereby designated as the officer to enforce the 

provisions of this subchapter and to exercise the duties and powers herein prescribed.  It shall be 

the duty of the Building Inspector: 

  (1) To investigate the dwelling conditions, and to inspect dwellings and 

dwelling units, located in the county, in order to determine which dwellings and dwelling units 

are unfit for human habitation and for the purpose of carrying out the objectives of this 

subchapter with respect to the dwellings and dwelling units; 

  (2) To take the action, together with other appropriate departments and 

agencies, public and private, as may be necessary to effect rehabilitation of housing which is 

deteriorated; 

  (3) To keep a record of the results of inspections made under this subchapter 

and an inventory of those dwellings that do not meet the minimum standards of fitness herein 

prescribed; and 

  (4) To perform the other duties as may be herein prescribed. 

 (B) The Building Inspector is authorized to exercise the powers as may be necessary 

or convenient to carry out and effectuate the purpose and provisions of this subchapter, including 

the following powers in addition to others herein granted: 

  (1) To investigate the dwelling conditions in the county; 

  (2) To administer oaths and affirmations, examine witnesses and receive 

evidence; 

  (3) To enter upon premises for the purpose of making examinations and 

inspections; provided, the entries shall be made in a manner as to cause the least possible 

inconvenience to the persons in possession; and 

  (4) To appoint and fix the duties of the officers, agents and employees as he 

or she deems necessary to carry out the purposes of this subchapter. 

 

§ 150.21  INSPECTIONS; DUTY OF OWNERS AND OCCUPANTS. 

 For the purpose of making inspection, the Inspector is hereby authorized to enter, 

examine and survey, at all reasonable times, all dwelling units, accessory structures, rooming 

units and premises.  The owner or occupant of every dwelling, dwelling unit or rooming unit, or 

the person in charge thereof, shall give the Inspector free access to the dwelling, dwelling unit or 

rooming unit, and its premises at all reasonable times for the purpose of the inspection, 

examination and survey.  Every occupant of a dwelling unit shall give the owner thereof or his 

or her agent or employee access to any part of the dwelling or dwelling unit and its premises, at 

all reasonable times for the purpose of making the repairs or alterations as necessary to effect 

6.C.b

Packet Pg. 79

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 C

h
ap

te
r 

15
0 

C
o

d
e 

F
in

al
 R

ev
is

io
n

  (
24

71
 :

 R
ev

is
ed

 C
am

d
en

 C
o

d
e 

C
h

ap
te

r 
15

0 
M

in
im

u
m

 H
o

u
si

n
g

 C
o

d
e 

- 
D

an
 P

o
rt

er
)



Camden County, NC Code of Ordinances 

 American Legal Publishing Corp. 25 

compliance with the provisions of this subchapter or with any lawful order issued pursuant to the 

provisions of this subchapter. 

§ 150.22 PROCEDURE FOR VIOLATIONS 

 

 (A) If the Inspector declares a residential or nonresidential building or structure to be 

unsafe, the Inspector must affix a notice of the unsafe character of the structure to a conspicuous 

place on the exterior wall of the building. For purposes of this section, “unsafe” means dangerous 

to life because of liability to fire, bad conditions of walls, overloaded floors, defective construction, 

decay, unsafe wiring or heating system, inadequate means of egress, or other causes. 

 (B) If a person removes a notice that has been affixed to a to a building by a local 

inspector and that states the dangerous character of the building, he is guilty of a Class 1 

misdemeanor. 

 (C) Immediately upon affixing the notice upon the structure, the Inspector shall send 

notice, in writing, by certified or registered mail, to the owner of and parties in interest to the 

structure, of the unsafe character of the structure and request the owner takes prompt corrective 

action to repair, alter and improve the dwelling. 

 (D) If the owner fails to take prompt corrective action within thirty (30) days, the 

Inspector shall by certified or registered mail to the last known address or by personal service give 

written notice: 

  (1) That the building or structure is in a condition that appears to meet one or 

more of the following conditions: 

   (i) Constitutes a fire or safety hazard. 

   (ii) Is dangerous to life, health, or other property. 

   (iii) Is likely to cause or contribute to blight, disease, vagrancy, or danger 

to children. 

   (iv) Has a tendency to attract persons intent on criminal activities or 

other activities that would constitute a public nuisance. 

  (2) That a hearing will be held before the Inspector at a designated place and 

time, not later than 10 days after the date of notice, at which time the owner is entitled to be heard 

in person or by counsel and to present arguments and evidence pertaining to the matter; AND 

  (3) That following the hearing, the Inspector may issue any order to repair, 

close, vacate, or demolish the building that appears appropriate. 

 (E) If the name or whereabouts of the owner cannot after due diligence be discovered, 

the notice shall be considered properly and adequately served if a copy thereof is posted on the 

outside of the structure in question at least 10 days before the day of the hearing and a notice of 

the hearing is published at least once not later than one week before the hearing. 

 (F) If, at the hearing the Inspector finds that the building is in a condition that 

constitutes a fire or safety hazard or renders it dangerous to life, health, or other property, he/she 

shall issue a written order, stating his or her findings of fact to support the determination, and 

directing the owner of the building to remedy the defective conditions by repairing, closing, 

vacating, or demolishing the building or taking other necessary steps, within such period, not less 

than sixty (60) days, as the Inspector may prescribe; provided, that where the Inspector finds that 

6.C.b

Packet Pg. 80

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 C

h
ap

te
r 

15
0 

C
o

d
e 

F
in

al
 R

ev
is

io
n

  (
24

71
 :

 R
ev

is
ed

 C
am

d
en

 C
o

d
e 

C
h

ap
te

r 
15

0 
M

in
im

u
m

 H
o

u
si

n
g

 C
o

d
e 

- 
D

an
 P

o
rt

er
)



Camden County, NC Code of Ordinances 

 American Legal Publishing Corp. 26 

there is imminent danger to life or other property, he/she may order that corrective action be taken 

in such lesser period as may be feasible. 

 (G) An owner may appeal the Inspector’s order to the Board of Commissioners by 

giving written notice of appeal to the Inspector and Clerk to the Board of Commissioners within 

10 days following the day the order is issued.  In the absence of an appeal, the Inspector’s order 

is final. 

 (H) The Board of Commissioners shall hear the appeal within a reasonable time. The 

Notice of Hearing shall be sent to the owner, in writing, by certified or registered mail, and posted 

on the outside of the structure in question. The hearing conducted shall be quasi-judicial. The 

Board of Commissioners may affirm, modify and affirm, or revoke the Inspector’s Order. 

 (I) An owner may appeal the Board of Commissioner’s order in Superior Court within 

30 days following the day the order is issued and they will hear the matter on judicial review. 

 (J) If the owner fails to comply with the order from which no appeal has been taken, 

the county may initiate any appropriate action or proceeding to prevent, restrain, correct, or abate 

the violation or prevent occupancy of the building involved, including removing or demolishing 

the structure. 

 (K) The amounts incurred by the county in connection with the removal or demolition 

shall be a lien on the real property upon which the cost was incurred. The lien shall be filed, have 

the same priority, and be collected in the same manner as liens for special assessments as provided 

in Article 9 of Chapter 153A of the North Carolina General Statutes. 

 (L) If the building or structure is removed or demolished by the county, the county shall 

sell the usable materials of the building and any personal property, fixtures, or appurtenances found 

in or attached to the building.  The county shall credit the proceeds of the sale against the cost of 

the removal or demolition. Any balance remaining from the sale shall be deposited with the clerk 

of superior court of the county where the property is located and shall be disbursed by the court to 

the person found to be entitled thereto by a final order or decree of the court. 

 (M) The amounts incurred by the county in connection with the removal or demolition 

shall also be a lien against any other real property owned by the owner of the building or structure 

and located within the county’s jurisdictional limits, except for the owner’s primary residence. 

 (N) Nothing in this section shall be construed to impair or limit the power of the county 

to define and declare nuisances and to cause their removal or abatement by summary proceedings 

or otherwise. 

 (O) This Section shall be interpreted to comply with the North Carolina General 

Statutes as it exists to apply to residential and nonresidential buildings and as may be hereinafter 

amended. 

§ 150.23  PENALTY. 

 (A) Any person violating any provisions of this chapter for which no specific penalty 

is prescribed shall be subject to § 10.99. 

 (B) It shall be unlawful for the owner of any dwelling or dwelling unit to fail, neglect 

or refuse to repair, alter or improve the same, or to vacate and cease and remove or demolish the 

same, upon order of the Inspector duly made and served as herein provided, within the time 

specified in the order, and each day that any failure, neglect or refusal to comply with the order 

continues shall constitute a separate and distinct offense.  It shall be unlawful for the owner of 

6.C.b

Packet Pg. 81

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 C

h
ap

te
r 

15
0 

C
o

d
e 

F
in

al
 R

ev
is

io
n

  (
24

71
 :

 R
ev

is
ed

 C
am

d
en

 C
o

d
e 

C
h

ap
te

r 
15

0 
M

in
im

u
m

 H
o

u
si

n
g

 C
o

d
e 

- 
D

an
 P

o
rt

er
)



Camden County, NC Code of Ordinances 

 American Legal Publishing Corp. 27 

any dwelling or dwelling unit, with respect to which an order has been issued pursuant to § 

150.22 to occupy or permit the occupancy of the same after the time prescribed in the order for 

its repair, alteration or improvement, or of its vacation and closing, and each day that the 

occupancy continues after the prescribed time shall constitute a separate and distinct offense. The 

violation of any provision of § 150.03 through § 150.22 shall constitute a penalty as provided by 

G.S. § 14-4. 

6.C.b

Packet Pg. 82

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 C

h
ap

te
r 

15
0 

C
o

d
e 

F
in

al
 R

ev
is

io
n

  (
24

71
 :

 R
ev

is
ed

 C
am

d
en

 C
o

d
e 

C
h

ap
te

r 
15

0 
M

in
im

u
m

 H
o

u
si

n
g

 C
o

d
e 

- 
D

an
 P

o
rt

er
)



 

Board of Commissioners 

AGENDA ITEM SUMMARY SHEET 

 
Board Appointments 

 

Item Number: 7.A 

Meeting Date:   August 05, 2019 

 

Submitted By: Tim White, Parks & Recreation Director 

 Parks & Recreation 

 Prepared by: Karen Davis 

 
Item Title   Parks and Recreation Advisory Board 

 

Attachments:  

 

Summary: 

It is the request of staff that Karen Friend and Keith Ward be reappointed to the Parks & 

Recreation Advisory Board for an additional term. 

Recommendation: 

Approve reappointment. 

7.A

Packet Pg. 83



 

Board of Commissioners 

AGENDA ITEM SUMMARY SHEET 

 
Consent Agenda 

 

Item Number: 8.A 

Meeting Date:   August 05, 2019 

 

Submitted By: Karen Davis, Clerk to the Board 

 Administration 

 Prepared by: Karen Davis 

 
Item Title   BOC Meeting Minutes - July 8, 2019 

 

Attachments: bocminutes_070819 (DOCX) 

 

8.A

Packet Pg. 84



1 

 

Camden County Board of Commissioners 1 
July 8, 2019 2 

Regular Meeting – 7:00 PM 3 
Historic Courtroom 4 

Camden, North Carolina 5 
 6 

MINUTES 7 

The regular meeting of the Camden County Board of Commissioners was held on July 8, 2019 in the Historic 8 
Courtroom, Camden, North Carolina.  9 
 10 

CALL TO ORDER  11 

The meeting was called to order by Chairman Tom White at 7:00 PM.  Also Present: Vice Chairman Clayton Riggs, 12 
Commissioners Garry Meiggs, Randy Krainiak and Ross Munro.   13 
 14 
INVOCATION & PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 15 
Pastor Marc O’Neal gave the invocation and led in the Pledge of Allegiance. 16 
 17 
ITEM 1. PUBLIC COMMENTS        18 
 19 

 Aaron Pippen of 262 Sleepy Hollow Road spoke in opposition to the Preliminary Plan for Phase II of 20 
Sleepy Hollow Estates.  He expressed concerns in the areas of drainage, schools impact and public 21 
facilities. 22 

 Wanda Daniels of 272 Sleepy Hollow Road spoke in opposition to the Preliminary Plan for Phase II of 23 
Sleepy Hollow Estates.  She expressed concerns in regard to the placement of the boundary lines. 24 

 Isaiah Morgan of 777 Highway 343 North expressed concerns in regard to unsanitary conditions in nearby 25 
rivers, ditches and highways as well as the narrow road width of the roads near the middle school. 26 

 Kevin Lighty of 121 Long Pine Road in South Mills expressed concerns in regard to the drainage issues, 27 
flooding and standing water in the county. 28 

 29 
ITEM 2. CONFLICT OF INTEREST DISCLOSURE STATEMENT    30 
 31 
Clerk to the Board Karen Davis read the Conflict Of Interest Disclosure Statement. 32 
 33 
ITEM 3. CONSIDERATION OF AGENDA        34 
 35 
Motion to approve the agenda as presented. 36 

RESULT: PASSED [UNANIMOUS] 37 
MOVER: Ross Munro, Commissioner 38 
AYES: White, Krainiak, Meiggs, Riggs, Munro 39 

  40 
 41 
ITEM 4. PRESENTATIONS          42 
 43 

A. Area Agency on Aging Regional Advisory Council  44 
 45 
Mrs. Gwen Wescott gave a report on the recent Regional Advisory Council meeting and included updates on the 46 
following in her report: 47 

 Mom’s Meals 48 
 Senior Games and Awards Event 49 

8.A.a

Packet Pg. 85

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 b

o
cm

in
u

te
s_

07
08

19
  (

24
59

 :
 B

O
C

 M
ee

ti
n

g
 M

in
u

te
s 

- 
Ju

ly
 8

, 2
01

9)



2 

 

 Opioid Awareness  50 
 Senior Walk 51 
 Next Meeting – August 19, 2019 52 

 53 
B. Dismal Swamp Welcome Center  54 

 55 
Sarah Hill, Dismal Swamp Welcome Center Assistant Director, introduced Don Bradford of the Gator Volksmarsch 56 
Club – sponsors of the new course on the Dismal Swamp Canal Trail.  Volksmarsch is a non-competitive walk event 57 
where a participant follows a marked trail at his/her own pace, stopping at points for a “control stamp”, rest, and 58 
refreshments.  The Dismal Swamp Welcome Center will provide the registration information for participants of this 59 
5K and 10K “walk”, the first in Camden County on the Dismal Swamp Canal Trail. 60 
 61 

C. NC Cooperative Extension 62 
 63 
Director Cameron Lowe gave the NC Cooperative Extension Annual Report.  Key points in the report included 64 
updates on the following: 65 

 Extension Staff Recognition 66 
 General Statistics 67 
 Agriculture - Small Grains Expo 68 
 Family & Consumer Sciences – Healthy Food Classes 69 
 4-H & Youth – Program Growth 70 
 Facility Upgrade 71 

 72 
Adriane Navolis, Camden’s representative for YouthVoices, addressed the board and shared the benefits she has 73 
received from being involved in the various 4-H programs. 74 
 75 

D. Employee Recognition 76 
 77 

 Sarah Hill – Certificate of Achievement, Southeast Tourism Society Marketing College 78 
 Deputy Scott Wentz – Lifesaving Award & Ribbon Bar 79 
 Deputy Austin Browder – Lifesaving Award & Ribbon Bar 80 
 Deputy Margaret Durham – Lifesaving Award 81 
 Sergeant Scott Powers – Law Enforcement Commendation & Ribbon Bar 82 
 Deputy Garrett Winslow – Letter of Commendation 83 
 Trooper Aaron Miller – Letter of Commendation 84 

 85 
South Camden Water & Sewer District Board of Directors 86 
 87 
Chairman White recessed the meeting of the Board of Commissioners and called to order the South Camden Water 88 
& Sewer District Board of Directors Meeting. 89 
 90 
Public Comments – None 91 
 92 
Consideration of the Agenda 93 
 94 

8.A.a

Packet Pg. 86

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 b

o
cm

in
u

te
s_

07
08

19
  (

24
59

 :
 B

O
C

 M
ee

ti
n

g
 M

in
u

te
s 

- 
Ju

ly
 8

, 2
01

9)



3 

 

 95 
 96 
Motion to approve the agenda as presented. 97 

RESULT: PASSED [UNANIMOUS] 98 
MOVER: Ross Munro, Commissioner 99 
AYES: White, Krainiak, Meiggs, Riggs, Munro 100 

  101 
 102 
New Business 103 
 104 

A. Monthly Report – David Credle 105 
 106 
 107 
 108 

 109 
 110 

8.A.a

Packet Pg. 87

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 b

o
cm

in
u

te
s_

07
08

19
  (

24
59

 :
 B

O
C

 M
ee

ti
n

g
 M

in
u

te
s 

- 
Ju

ly
 8

, 2
01

9)



4 

 

 111 
 112 

Motion to approve the monthly report as presented. 113 

RESULT: PASSED [UNANIMOUS] 114 
MOVER: Clayton Riggs, Vice Chairman 115 
AYES: White, Krainiak, Meiggs, Riggs, Munro 116 

  117 
There being no further matters for discussion Chairman White called for a motion to adjourn. 118 
 119 
Motion to adjourn the meeting of the South Camden Water & Sewer District Board of Directors. 120 

RESULT: PASSED [UNANIMOUS] 121 
MOVER: Garry Meiggs, Commissioner 122 
AYES: White, Krainiak, Meiggs, Riggs, Munro 123 

  124 
Chairman White adjourned the South Camden Water & Sewer District Board of Directors and reconvened the Camden 125 
County Board of Commissioners. 126 
 127 
ITEM 5. OLD BUSINESS          128 
 129 

A. Preliminary Plan Phase II Sleepy Hollow Estates 130 
 131 
The public hearing for Preliminary Plan Phase II Sleepy Hollow Estates was held on June 3, 2019.  The decision of 132 
the Board was to place it on the July 8, 2019 meeting agenda for consideration.  Supporting documents are included 133 
in the June 3, 2019 official minutes.  Planning Director Dan Porter inquired if the Board had any questions 134 
concerning this matter.  There were no questions or discussion. 135 
 136 
Motion to approve the Preliminary Plan for Phase II of Sleepy Hollow Estates. 137 

RESULT: PASSED [4-1] 138 
MOVER: Clayton Riggs, Vice Chairman 139 
AYES: White, Meiggs, Riggs, Munro 140 
NOES: Krainiak 141 

 142 
 143 
 144 
  145 

8.A.a

Packet Pg. 88

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 b

o
cm

in
u

te
s_

07
08

19
  (

24
59

 :
 B

O
C

 M
ee

ti
n

g
 M

in
u

te
s 

- 
Ju

ly
 8

, 2
01

9)



5 

 

B. Ordinance 2019-03-01 – Rezoning Application for Keeter Barn, LLC 146 
 147 
The public hearing for Ordinance 2019-03-01 Rezoning Application for Keeter Barn, LLC was held on June 3, 148 
2019.  The decision of the Board was to place it on the July 8, 2019 meeting agenda for consideration.  Supporting 149 
documents are included in the June 3, 2019 official minutes.  Planning Director Dan Porter inquired if the Board had 150 
any questions concerning this matter.  There were no questions or discussion. 151 
 152 
Motion to approve Ordinance 2019-03-01 Rezoning Application (UDO 2019-03-04) Rezoning Property from 153 
Highway Commercial to Village Residential. 154 

RESULT: PASSED [UNANIMOUS] 155 
MOVER: Ross Munro, Commissioner 156 
AYES: White, Meiggs, Riggs, Munro, Krainiak 157 

 158 
Motion that new development will be focused within targeted core areas to breathe new life into established 159 
county villages and to efficiently use existing and planned infrastructure and public resources. New housing 160 
choices will be made available to serve families, young professionals, and retirees. Rural areas will maintain 161 
prominence in the county, and will continue to serve agricultural and forestry production and low density 162 
residential development. 163 

RESULT: PASSED [UNANIMOUS] 164 
MOVER: Clayton Riggs, Vice Chairman 165 
AYES: White, Meiggs, Riggs, Munro, Krainiak 166 

 167 

 168 
 169 

8.A.a

Packet Pg. 89

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 b

o
cm

in
u

te
s_

07
08

19
  (

24
59

 :
 B

O
C

 M
ee

ti
n

g
 M

in
u

te
s 

- 
Ju

ly
 8

, 2
01

9)



6 

 

 170 

 171 
 172 
ITEM 6. NEW BUSINESS          173 
 174 

A. Monthly Tax Report – Lisa Anderson 175 
 176 

 177 

8.A.a

Packet Pg. 90

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 b

o
cm

in
u

te
s_

07
08

19
  (

24
59

 :
 B

O
C

 M
ee

ti
n

g
 M

in
u

te
s 

- 
Ju

ly
 8

, 2
01

9)



7 

 

 178 
 179 
 180 

 181 
 182 
 183 

 184 
 185 
 186 

8.A.a

Packet Pg. 91

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 b

o
cm

in
u

te
s_

07
08

19
  (

24
59

 :
 B

O
C

 M
ee

ti
n

g
 M

in
u

te
s 

- 
Ju

ly
 8

, 2
01

9)



8 

 

30 Largest Unpaid - Real 187 

 188 
 189 
 190 
30 Oldest Unpaid – Real 191 
 192 

 193 
 194 
30 Largest Unpaid – Personal 195 
 196 

 197 
 198 
 199 

8.A.a

Packet Pg. 92

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 b

o
cm

in
u

te
s_

07
08

19
  (

24
59

 :
 B

O
C

 M
ee

ti
n

g
 M

in
u

te
s 

- 
Ju

ly
 8

, 2
01

9)



9 

 

30 Oldest Unpaid – Personal 200 
 201 

 202 
 203 
Motion to approve the tax report as presented. 204 

RESULT: PASSED [UNANIMOUS] 205 
MOVER: Garry Meiggs, Commissioner 206 
AYES: White, Meiggs, Riggs, Munro, Krainiak 207 

 208 
B. Skills, Inc. Report / Request – Ken Bowman 209 

 210 
County Manager Ken Bowman presented the following request from Skills, Inc. 211 
 212 

 213 
 214 

 215 

8.A.a

Packet Pg. 93

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 b

o
cm

in
u

te
s_

07
08

19
  (

24
59

 :
 B

O
C

 M
ee

ti
n

g
 M

in
u

te
s 

- 
Ju

ly
 8

, 2
01

9)



10 

 

Motion to approve Skills, Inc. Budget request in the amount of $500.00. 216 

RESULT: PASSED [UNANIMOUS] 217 
MOVER: Randy Krainiak, Commissioner 218 
AYES: White, Meiggs, Riggs, Munro, Krainiak 219 

 220 
C. Resolution 2019-07-01 Approving Financing Terms for Fire Truck Purchase 221 

 222 

 223 
 224 
Motion to adopt Resolution 2019-07-01 Approving Financing Terms for Fire Truck Purchase. 225 

RESULT: PASSED [UNANIMOUS] 226 
MOVER: Garry Meiggs, Commissioner 227 
AYES: White, Meiggs, Riggs, Munro, Krainiak 228 

 229 
 230 

8.A.a

Packet Pg. 94

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 b

o
cm

in
u

te
s_

07
08

19
  (

24
59

 :
 B

O
C

 M
ee

ti
n

g
 M

in
u

te
s 

- 
Ju

ly
 8

, 2
01

9)



11 

 

ITEM 7. BOARD APPOINTMENTS         231 
 232 

A. NCACC Voting Delegate 233 
 234 
Motion to appoint Tom White as the voting delegate for the NCACC Conference Business Session on August 235 
24, 2019. 236 

RESULT: PASSED [UNANIMOUS] 237 
MOVER: Clayton Riggs, Vice Chairman 238 
AYES: White, Meiggs, Riggs, Munro, Krainiak 239 

 240 
ITEM 8. CONSENT AGENDA         241 
 242 

A. BOC Meeting Minutes – May 23, 2019 243 
 244 
B. BOC Meeting Minutes – June 3, 2019 245 

 246 
C. Budget Amendments 247 

 248 

 249 
 250 

 251 

8.A.a

Packet Pg. 95

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 b

o
cm

in
u

te
s_

07
08

19
  (

24
59

 :
 B

O
C

 M
ee

ti
n

g
 M

in
u

te
s 

- 
Ju

ly
 8

, 2
01

9)



12 

 

 252 
 253 

 254 

8.A.a

Packet Pg. 96

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 b

o
cm

in
u

te
s_

07
08

19
  (

24
59

 :
 B

O
C

 M
ee

ti
n

g
 M

in
u

te
s 

- 
Ju

ly
 8

, 2
01

9)



13 

 

 255 
 256 
 257 
 258 
 259 
 260 
 261 
 262 
 263 
 264 
 265 
 266 
 267 
 268 

8.A.a

Packet Pg. 97

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 b

o
cm

in
u

te
s_

07
08

19
  (

24
59

 :
 B

O
C

 M
ee

ti
n

g
 M

in
u

te
s 

- 
Ju

ly
 8

, 2
01

9)



14 

 

D. School Budget Amendments 269 
 270 

 271 
 272 

8.A.a

Packet Pg. 98

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 b

o
cm

in
u

te
s_

07
08

19
  (

24
59

 :
 B

O
C

 M
ee

ti
n

g
 M

in
u

te
s 

- 
Ju

ly
 8

, 2
01

9)



15 

 

 273 
 274 

8.A.a

Packet Pg. 99

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 b

o
cm

in
u

te
s_

07
08

19
  (

24
59

 :
 B

O
C

 M
ee

ti
n

g
 M

in
u

te
s 

- 
Ju

ly
 8

, 2
01

9)



16 

 

 275 
 276 

8.A.a

Packet Pg. 100

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 b

o
cm

in
u

te
s_

07
08

19
  (

24
59

 :
 B

O
C

 M
ee

ti
n

g
 M

in
u

te
s 

- 
Ju

ly
 8

, 2
01

9)



17 

 

 277 
 278 
 279 

8.A.a

Packet Pg. 101

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 b

o
cm

in
u

te
s_

07
08

19
  (

24
59

 :
 B

O
C

 M
ee

ti
n

g
 M

in
u

te
s 

- 
Ju

ly
 8

, 2
01

9)



18 

 

 280 
 281 
 282 

8.A.a

Packet Pg. 102

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 b

o
cm

in
u

te
s_

07
08

19
  (

24
59

 :
 B

O
C

 M
ee

ti
n

g
 M

in
u

te
s 

- 
Ju

ly
 8

, 2
01

9)



19 

 

 283 
 284 
 285 

8.A.a

Packet Pg. 103

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 b

o
cm

in
u

te
s_

07
08

19
  (

24
59

 :
 B

O
C

 M
ee

ti
n

g
 M

in
u

te
s 

- 
Ju

ly
 8

, 2
01

9)



20 

 

 286 
 287 

8.A.a

Packet Pg. 104

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 b

o
cm

in
u

te
s_

07
08

19
  (

24
59

 :
 B

O
C

 M
ee

ti
n

g
 M

in
u

te
s 

- 
Ju

ly
 8

, 2
01

9)



21 

 

 288 
 289 

8.A.a

Packet Pg. 105

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 b

o
cm

in
u

te
s_

07
08

19
  (

24
59

 :
 B

O
C

 M
ee

ti
n

g
 M

in
u

te
s 

- 
Ju

ly
 8

, 2
01

9)



22 

 

 290 
 291 
 292 

8.A.a

Packet Pg. 106

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 b

o
cm

in
u

te
s_

07
08

19
  (

24
59

 :
 B

O
C

 M
ee

ti
n

g
 M

in
u

te
s 

- 
Ju

ly
 8

, 2
01

9)



23 

 

 293 
 294 

8.A.a

Packet Pg. 107

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 b

o
cm

in
u

te
s_

07
08

19
  (

24
59

 :
 B

O
C

 M
ee

ti
n

g
 M

in
u

te
s 

- 
Ju

ly
 8

, 2
01

9)



24 

 

 295 
 296 

8.A.a

Packet Pg. 108

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 b

o
cm

in
u

te
s_

07
08

19
  (

24
59

 :
 B

O
C

 M
ee

ti
n

g
 M

in
u

te
s 

- 
Ju

ly
 8

, 2
01

9)



25 

 

 297 
 298 
 299 

8.A.a

Packet Pg. 109

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 b

o
cm

in
u

te
s_

07
08

19
  (

24
59

 :
 B

O
C

 M
ee

ti
n

g
 M

in
u

te
s 

- 
Ju

ly
 8

, 2
01

9)



26 

 

 300 
 301 
 302 

8.A.a

Packet Pg. 110

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 b

o
cm

in
u

te
s_

07
08

19
  (

24
59

 :
 B

O
C

 M
ee

ti
n

g
 M

in
u

te
s 

- 
Ju

ly
 8

, 2
01

9)



27 

 

 303 
 304 
 305 

8.A.a

Packet Pg. 111

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 b

o
cm

in
u

te
s_

07
08

19
  (

24
59

 :
 B

O
C

 M
ee

ti
n

g
 M

in
u

te
s 

- 
Ju

ly
 8

, 2
01

9)



28 

 

 306 
 307 
 308 

8.A.a

Packet Pg. 112

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 b

o
cm

in
u

te
s_

07
08

19
  (

24
59

 :
 B

O
C

 M
ee

ti
n

g
 M

in
u

te
s 

- 
Ju

ly
 8

, 2
01

9)



29 

 

 309 
 310 
 311 

8.A.a

Packet Pg. 113

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 b

o
cm

in
u

te
s_

07
08

19
  (

24
59

 :
 B

O
C

 M
ee

ti
n

g
 M

in
u

te
s 

- 
Ju

ly
 8

, 2
01

9)



30 

 

 312 
 313 
 314 

8.A.a

Packet Pg. 114

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 b

o
cm

in
u

te
s_

07
08

19
  (

24
59

 :
 B

O
C

 M
ee

ti
n

g
 M

in
u

te
s 

- 
Ju

ly
 8

, 2
01

9)



31 

 

 315 
 316 
 317 

8.A.a

Packet Pg. 115

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 b

o
cm

in
u

te
s_

07
08

19
  (

24
59

 :
 B

O
C

 M
ee

ti
n

g
 M

in
u

te
s 

- 
Ju

ly
 8

, 2
01

9)



32 

 

 318 
 319 
 320 

8.A.a

Packet Pg. 116

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 b

o
cm

in
u

te
s_

07
08

19
  (

24
59

 :
 B

O
C

 M
ee

ti
n

g
 M

in
u

te
s 

- 
Ju

ly
 8

, 2
01

9)



33 

 

 321 
 322 
 323 

8.A.a

Packet Pg. 117

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 b

o
cm

in
u

te
s_

07
08

19
  (

24
59

 :
 B

O
C

 M
ee

ti
n

g
 M

in
u

te
s 

- 
Ju

ly
 8

, 2
01

9)



34 

 

 324 
 325 
 326 

8.A.a

Packet Pg. 118

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 b

o
cm

in
u

te
s_

07
08

19
  (

24
59

 :
 B

O
C

 M
ee

ti
n

g
 M

in
u

te
s 

- 
Ju

ly
 8

, 2
01

9)



35 

 

 327 
 328 

8.A.a

Packet Pg. 119

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 b

o
cm

in
u

te
s_

07
08

19
  (

24
59

 :
 B

O
C

 M
ee

ti
n

g
 M

in
u

te
s 

- 
Ju

ly
 8

, 2
01

9)



36 

 

 329 
 330 
 331 

8.A.a

Packet Pg. 120

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 b

o
cm

in
u

te
s_

07
08

19
  (

24
59

 :
 B

O
C

 M
ee

ti
n

g
 M

in
u

te
s 

- 
Ju

ly
 8

, 2
01

9)



37 

 

 332 
 333 

E. Tax Collection Report 334 

 335 

8.A.a

Packet Pg. 121

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 b

o
cm

in
u

te
s_

07
08

19
  (

24
59

 :
 B

O
C

 M
ee

ti
n

g
 M

in
u

te
s 

- 
Ju

ly
 8

, 2
01

9)



38 

 

F. DMV Monthly Report 336 
 337 

 338 
 339 
 340 

G. Pickups, Releases & Refunds 341 

 342 

8.A.a

Packet Pg. 122

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 b

o
cm

in
u

te
s_

07
08

19
  (

24
59

 :
 B

O
C

 M
ee

ti
n

g
 M

in
u

te
s 

- 
Ju

ly
 8

, 2
01

9)



39 

 

H. Vehicle Refunds over $100 – May 2019 343 

 344 
 345 
 346 
 347 

I. Vehicle Refunds over $100 – June 2019 348 

 349 
 350 
 351 
 352 
 353 
 354 
 355 
 356 
 357 
 358 
 359 
 360 
 361 
 362 
 363 
 364 
 365 
 366 
 367 

8.A.a

Packet Pg. 123

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 b

o
cm

in
u

te
s_

07
08

19
  (

24
59

 :
 B

O
C

 M
ee

ti
n

g
 M

in
u

te
s 

- 
Ju

ly
 8

, 2
01

9)



40 

 

J. Surplus Property Request 368 
 369 

 370 
 371 
 372 

K. Set Public hearing for Ordinance 2019-07-01 Amending the Official Zoning Map – August 5, 2019 373 
 374 
Motion to approve the Consent Agenda as presented. 375 

RESULT: PASSED [UNANIMOUS] 376 
MOVER: Randy Krainiak, Commissioner 377 
AYES: White, Meiggs, Riggs, Munro, Krainiak 378 

 379 
ITEM 9. COUNTY MANAGER’S REPORT       380 
 381 
County Manager Ken Bowman included the following in his report: 382 

 Camden and Pasquotank Boards of Commissioners Joint Meeting – July 9, 2019; 6:30 PM to discuss 383 
Mission Critical EMS Study Presentation 384 

 RFP Deadline – Milltown Boat Ramp is July 15, 2019 at 5:00 PM 385 
 112th NCACC Annual Conference – August 22-24, 2019 in Guilford County 386 
 MB Kahn School Facility Study in-progress update – July 24, 2019; telephone conference 387 
 Dismal Swamp Welcome Center 30th Birthday – In 2018 was noted in USA Today as one of the best rest 388 

areas in the nation. 389 
 Next Board of Commissioners meeting – August 5, 2019 390 

 391 
ITEM 10. COMMISSIONERS’ REPORTS        392 
 393 
None. 394 
 395 
 396 

8.A.a

Packet Pg. 124

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 b

o
cm

in
u

te
s_

07
08

19
  (

24
59

 :
 B

O
C

 M
ee

ti
n

g
 M

in
u

te
s 

- 
Ju

ly
 8

, 2
01

9)



41 

 

ITEM 11. INFORMATION, REPORTS & MINUTES FROM OTHER AGENCIES  397 
 398 
The following items were provided to the commissioners for information purposes: 399 

A. FY 18-19 YTD Sales Tax Collections 400 

B. Library Report 401 

C. Register of Deeds Report 402 
 403 
ITEM 12. OTHER MATTERS          404 
 405 
None. 406 
 407 
ITEM 13. ADJOURN           408 
 409 
There being no further matters for discussion Chairman White called for a motion to adjourn. 410 
 411 
Motion to adjourn. 412 

RESULT: PASSED [UNANIMOUS] 413 
MOVER: Garry Meiggs, Commissioner 414 
AYES: White, Meiggs, Riggs, Munro, Krainiak 415 

 416 
Chairman White adjourned the July 8, 2019 meeting at 7:58 PM. 417 
 418 
 419 
       420 
      Tom White, Chairman 421 
      Camden County Board of Commissioners 422 
 423 
ATTEST: 424 
 425 
      426 
Karen M. Davis, NCCCC 427 
Clerk to the Board of Commissioners 428 

8.A.a

Packet Pg. 125

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 b

o
cm

in
u

te
s_

07
08

19
  (

24
59

 :
 B

O
C

 M
ee

ti
n

g
 M

in
u

te
s 

- 
Ju

ly
 8

, 2
01

9)



 

Board of Commissioners 

AGENDA ITEM SUMMARY SHEET 

 
Consent Agenda 

 

Item Number: 8.B 

Meeting Date:   August 05, 2019 

 

Submitted By: Karen Davis, Clerk to the Board 

 Administration 

 Prepared by: Karen Davis 

 
Item Title   BOC Meeting Minutes - July 9, 2019 

 

Attachments: jointmeetingminutes_070919 (DOCX) 

 

8.B

Packet Pg. 126



Camden County Board of Commissioners  

Pasquotank County Board of Commissioners 

  July 9, 2019; 6:30 PM 

Public Safety Building 

Elizabeth City, NC 

 

Call to Order 

A joint meeting of the Camden County Board of Commissioners and Pasquotank County Board of 

Commissioners was called to order by the respective Chairmen on July 9, 2019 at 6:30 PM at the Public 

Safety Building in Elizabeth City, NC.  The primary purpose of the meeting was to discuss the 

Pasquotank-Camden Emergency Medical Services Assessment and Strategic Plan. 

 

Board Members Present 

Camden County Board of Commissioners: Chairman Tom White, Vice Chairman Clayton Riggs, 

Commissioners Garry Meiggs, Randy Krainiak, Ross Munro. 

 

Pasquotank County Board of Commissioners: Chairman Jeff Dixon, Vice Chairman Lloyd Griffin, III, 

Commissioners Cecil Perry, Frankie Meads, Charles Jordan, Barry Overman and Sean Lavin.   

 

Also present were County Managers Ken Bowman and Sparty Hammett, Clerks Karen Davis and Lynn 

Scott, EMS Director Jerry Newell and several EMS staff members. 

 

Presentation 

Mike Milas of Mission Critical Partners presented the overview, findings and recommendations of the 

assessment and included the following in his report: 

 Mission Critical Partners – Culture and Purpose 

 Study Participants – EMS Staff, 911 Staff, Pasquotank County Administration 

 Overall Status  

 110 staff 

 4 stations 

 12,000+ calls 

 $5.2M annual budget 

 Biggest Challenges – Facility and Staffing Needs 

 Key Recommendations 

 Initiate plan to replace Stations 50 and 4 

 Consider a 24-hour day, 7 day week (24x7) staffing model for Station 14 to reduce 

response times in that portion of the service delivery area 

 Consider hiring an operations manager for oversight of day-to-day operations and 

supervisor mentoring 

 Consider becoming Commission on Accreditation of Ambulance Services (CAAS) 

accredited as a means of further enhancing service delivery 

 Consider a re-composition of the PCEMS board of directors to better align with call 

volume and funding 

8.B.a

Packet Pg. 127

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 jo

in
tm

ee
ti

n
g

m
in

u
te

s_
07

09
19

  (
24

60
 :

 B
O

C
 M

ee
ti

n
g

 M
in

u
te

s 
- 

Ju
ly

 9
, 2

01
9)



 Review PCEMS salaries and benefits to ensure competitiveness with surrounding 

agencies 

 Consider changes to the financial collection agency and consider memberships to 

generate funds 

 Accept credit cards as payment and do not charge a fee for use 

 Renegotiate the contract with Camden County. 

 

 Current Stations 
 Staffed Key Finding 

Administration M-F Days Space limited 

Station 50 24/7 Space limited 

Station 4 24/7 Many deficiencies 

Station 12 0900-2100 Facility Locations 

Station 14 0700-1900 Best Facility 

 

 Facilities Recommendations 
Facility Location Recommendation 

Administration Combine and expand with a new Station 50 

Station 50 Replace with a new expanded facility 

Station 4 Find new location for a suitable facility 

Station 12 Address need to rebuild/relocate following the fire 

 

 Recommended Next Step for Facility Enhancements 

 Undertake detailed architectural design studies for each needed facility 

 Cost is estimated at about 7% of the constructions costs 

 ~$210k for a replacement of Station 50 

 ~$63k for a replacement of Station 4 

 Unit leveling could impact facility size and cost split 

 Call Volume >10,000 calls in 2017 

 Recommended Staffing Enhancements 

 Transitioning to a 24/7 staffing model for Station 14 would: 

 Reduce and improve response times between 1900 hours and 0700 hours in the 

northern part of the service area 

 Take better advantage of a very good facility and location 

 Better align with benchmark study findings 

 +4 staff would cost ~$200k/year 

 Hiring and Operations Manager would: 

 Allow Deputy Chief to focus more on strategic issues 

 Allow the Operations Manager to focus on service delivery excellence and 

consistency 

 

 

 

 

 

 

8.B.a

Packet Pg. 128

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 jo

in
tm

ee
ti

n
g

m
in

u
te

s_
07

09
19

  (
24

60
 :

 B
O

C
 M

ee
ti

n
g

 M
in

u
te

s 
- 

Ju
ly

 9
, 2

01
9)



 Benchmark Study Findings 

               
Following a brief discussion, Chairmen White and Dixon adjourned their respective boards at 7:15 PM. 

 

       

             

      Tom White, Chairman 

      Camden County Board of Commissioners 

ATTEST: 

 

      

Karen M. Davis, NCCCC 

Clerk to the Board of Commissioners 

8.B.a

Packet Pg. 129

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 jo

in
tm

ee
ti

n
g

m
in

u
te

s_
07

09
19

  (
24

60
 :

 B
O

C
 M

ee
ti

n
g

 M
in

u
te

s 
- 

Ju
ly

 9
, 2

01
9)



 

Board of Commissioners 

AGENDA ITEM SUMMARY SHEET 

 
Consent Agenda 

 

Item Number: 8.C 

Meeting Date:   August 05, 2019 

 

Submitted By: Ken Bowman, 

 Administration 

 Prepared by: Karen Davis 

 
Item Title   Budget Transfers 

 

Attachments: Budget Transfers (PDF) 

 

Summary attached. 

8.C

Packet Pg. 130



8.C.a

Packet Pg. 131

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 B

u
d

g
et

 T
ra

n
sf

er
s 

 (
24

66
 :

 B
u

d
g

et
 T

ra
n

sf
er

s)



8.C.a

Packet Pg. 132

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 B

u
d

g
et

 T
ra

n
sf

er
s 

 (
24

66
 :

 B
u

d
g

et
 T

ra
n

sf
er

s)



8.C.a

Packet Pg. 133

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 B

u
d

g
et

 T
ra

n
sf

er
s 

 (
24

66
 :

 B
u

d
g

et
 T

ra
n

sf
er

s)



8.C.a

Packet Pg. 134

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 B

u
d

g
et

 T
ra

n
sf

er
s 

 (
24

66
 :

 B
u

d
g

et
 T

ra
n

sf
er

s)



 

Board of Commissioners 

AGENDA ITEM SUMMARY SHEET 

 
Consent Agenda 

 

Item Number: 8.D 

Meeting Date:   August 05, 2019 

 

Submitted By: Sally Norfleet, 

 Finance 

 Prepared by: Karen Davis 

 
Item Title   Budget Amendments 

 

Attachments: Budget Amendments (PDF) 

 

8.D

Packet Pg. 135



8.D.a

Packet Pg. 136

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 B

u
d

g
et

 A
m

en
d

m
en

ts
  (

24
63

 :
 B

u
d

g
et

 A
m

en
d

m
en

ts
)



8.D.a

Packet Pg. 137

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 B

u
d

g
et

 A
m

en
d

m
en

ts
  (

24
63

 :
 B

u
d

g
et

 A
m

en
d

m
en

ts
)



8.D.a

Packet Pg. 138

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 B

u
d

g
et

 A
m

en
d

m
en

ts
  (

24
63

 :
 B

u
d

g
et

 A
m

en
d

m
en

ts
)



8.D.a

Packet Pg. 139

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 B

u
d

g
et

 A
m

en
d

m
en

ts
  (

24
63

 :
 B

u
d

g
et

 A
m

en
d

m
en

ts
)



 

Board of Commissioners 

AGENDA ITEM SUMMARY SHEET 

 
Consent Agenda 

 

Item Number: 8.E 

Meeting Date:   August 05, 2019 

 

Submitted By: Teri Smith, 

 Taxes 

 Prepared by: Teri Smith 

 
Item Title   DMV Monthly Report 

 

Attachments: 20190723083622825.pdf (PDF) 

 

Summary:  DMV Monthly Report October, 19 Renewals Due 11/15/19 

 

Recommendation:   Review and Approve 

8.E

Packet Pg. 140



8.E.a

Packet Pg. 141

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 2

01
90

72
30

83
62

28
25

.p
d

f 
 (

24
61

 :
 D

M
V

 M
o

n
th

ly
 R

ep
o

rt
)



 

Board of Commissioners 

AGENDA ITEM SUMMARY SHEET 

 
Consent Agenda 

 

Item Number: 8.F 

Meeting Date:   August 05, 2019 

 

Submitted By: Lisa Anderson, Tax Administrator 

 Taxes 

 Prepared by: Karen Davis 

 
Item Title   Tax Collection Report 

 

Attachments: Tax Collection Report (PDF) 

 

8.F

Packet Pg. 142



8.F.a

Packet Pg. 143

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 T

ax
 C

o
lle

ct
io

n
 R

ep
o

rt
  (

24
54

 :
 T

ax
 C

o
lle

ct
io

n
 R

ep
o

rt
)



 

Board of Commissioners 

AGENDA ITEM SUMMARY SHEET 

 
Consent Agenda 

 

Item Number: 8.G 

Meeting Date:   August 05, 2019 

 

Submitted By: Lisa Anderson, Tax Administrator 

 Taxes 

 Prepared by: Karen Davis 

 
Item Title   Pickups, Releases & Refunds 

 

Attachments: Pickups, Releases & Refunds (PDF) 

 

8.G

Packet Pg. 144



8.G.a

Packet Pg. 145

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 P

ic
ku

p
s,

 R
el

ea
se

s 
&

 R
ef

u
n

d
s 

 (
24

65
 :

 P
ic

ku
p

s,
 R

el
ea

se
s 

&
 R

ef
u

n
d

s)



 

Board of Commissioners 

AGENDA ITEM SUMMARY SHEET 

 
Consent Agenda 

 

Item Number: 8.H 

Meeting Date:   August 05, 2019 

 

Submitted By: Kevin Jones, 

 Sheriff 

 Prepared by: Karen Davis 

 
Item Title   Surplus Property - Sheriff's Office 

 

Attachments: Surplus Property (PDF) 

 

8.H

Packet Pg. 146



8.H.a

Packet Pg. 147

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 S

u
rp

lu
s 

P
ro

p
er

ty
  (

24
70

 :
 S

u
rp

lu
s 

P
ro

p
er

ty
 -

 S
h

er
if

f's
 O

ff
ic

e)



8.H.a

Packet Pg. 148

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 S

u
rp

lu
s 

P
ro

p
er

ty
  (

24
70

 :
 S

u
rp

lu
s 

P
ro

p
er

ty
 -

 S
h

er
if

f's
 O

ff
ic

e)



8.H.a

Packet Pg. 149

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 S

u
rp

lu
s 

P
ro

p
er

ty
  (

24
70

 :
 S

u
rp

lu
s 

P
ro

p
er

ty
 -

 S
h

er
if

f's
 O

ff
ic

e)



 

Board of Commissioners 

AGENDA ITEM SUMMARY SHEET 

 
Consent Agenda 

 

Item Number: 8.I 

Meeting Date:   August 05, 2019 

 

Submitted By: Kevin Jones, 

 Sheriff 

 Prepared by: Karen Davis 

 
Item Title   Grant Application - Sheriff's Office 

 

Attachments: Sheriff's Office Grant (PDF) 

 

See attached. 

8.I

Packet Pg. 150



8.I.a

Packet Pg. 151

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 S

h
er

if
f's

 O
ff

ic
e 

G
ra

n
t 

 (
24

73
 :

 G
ra

n
t 

A
p

p
lic

at
io

n
 -

 S
h

er
if

f's
 O

ff
ic

e)



 

Board of Commissioners 

AGENDA ITEM SUMMARY SHEET 

 
Consent Agenda 

 

Item Number: 8.J 

Meeting Date:   August 05, 2019 

 

Submitted By: Sally Norfleet, 

 Finance 

 Prepared by: Karen Davis 

 
Item Title   Home & Community Care Block Grant for Older Adults 

 

Attachments: Home & Community Care Block Grant for Older 

Adults (PDF) 

 

Summary: 

Annual HCCB Grant administered through Albemarle Commission benefiting older adults in 

Camden; provides transportation, home health services and nutrition program. 

Recommendation: 

Review and approve. 

8.J

Packet Pg. 152



8.J.a

Packet Pg. 153

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 H

o
m

e 
&

 C
o

m
m

u
n

it
y 

C
ar

e 
B

lo
ck

 G
ra

n
t 

fo
r 

O
ld

er
 A

d
u

lt
s 

 (
24

72
 :

 H
o

m
e 

&
 C

o
m

m
u

n
it

y 
C

ar
e 

B
lo

ck
 G

ra
n

t 
fo

r 
O

ld
er

 A
d

u
lt

s)



8.J.a

Packet Pg. 154

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 H

o
m

e 
&

 C
o

m
m

u
n

it
y 

C
ar

e 
B

lo
ck

 G
ra

n
t 

fo
r 

O
ld

er
 A

d
u

lt
s 

 (
24

72
 :

 H
o

m
e 

&
 C

o
m

m
u

n
it

y 
C

ar
e 

B
lo

ck
 G

ra
n

t 
fo

r 
O

ld
er

 A
d

u
lt

s)



8.J.a

Packet Pg. 155

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 H

o
m

e 
&

 C
o

m
m

u
n

it
y 

C
ar

e 
B

lo
ck

 G
ra

n
t 

fo
r 

O
ld

er
 A

d
u

lt
s 

 (
24

72
 :

 H
o

m
e 

&
 C

o
m

m
u

n
it

y 
C

ar
e 

B
lo

ck
 G

ra
n

t 
fo

r 
O

ld
er

 A
d

u
lt

s)



8.J.a

Packet Pg. 156

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 H

o
m

e 
&

 C
o

m
m

u
n

it
y 

C
ar

e 
B

lo
ck

 G
ra

n
t 

fo
r 

O
ld

er
 A

d
u

lt
s 

 (
24

72
 :

 H
o

m
e 

&
 C

o
m

m
u

n
it

y 
C

ar
e 

B
lo

ck
 G

ra
n

t 
fo

r 
O

ld
er

 A
d

u
lt

s)



8.J.a

Packet Pg. 157

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 H

o
m

e 
&

 C
o

m
m

u
n

it
y 

C
ar

e 
B

lo
ck

 G
ra

n
t 

fo
r 

O
ld

er
 A

d
u

lt
s 

 (
24

72
 :

 H
o

m
e 

&
 C

o
m

m
u

n
it

y 
C

ar
e 

B
lo

ck
 G

ra
n

t 
fo

r 
O

ld
er

 A
d

u
lt

s)



8.J.a

Packet Pg. 158

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 H

o
m

e 
&

 C
o

m
m

u
n

it
y 

C
ar

e 
B

lo
ck

 G
ra

n
t 

fo
r 

O
ld

er
 A

d
u

lt
s 

 (
24

72
 :

 H
o

m
e 

&
 C

o
m

m
u

n
it

y 
C

ar
e 

B
lo

ck
 G

ra
n

t 
fo

r 
O

ld
er

 A
d

u
lt

s)



8.J.a

Packet Pg. 159

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 H

o
m

e 
&

 C
o

m
m

u
n

it
y 

C
ar

e 
B

lo
ck

 G
ra

n
t 

fo
r 

O
ld

er
 A

d
u

lt
s 

 (
24

72
 :

 H
o

m
e 

&
 C

o
m

m
u

n
it

y 
C

ar
e 

B
lo

ck
 G

ra
n

t 
fo

r 
O

ld
er

 A
d

u
lt

s)



8.J.a

Packet Pg. 160

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 H

o
m

e 
&

 C
o

m
m

u
n

it
y 

C
ar

e 
B

lo
ck

 G
ra

n
t 

fo
r 

O
ld

er
 A

d
u

lt
s 

 (
24

72
 :

 H
o

m
e 

&
 C

o
m

m
u

n
it

y 
C

ar
e 

B
lo

ck
 G

ra
n

t 
fo

r 
O

ld
er

 A
d

u
lt

s)



8.J.a

Packet Pg. 161

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 H

o
m

e 
&

 C
o

m
m

u
n

it
y 

C
ar

e 
B

lo
ck

 G
ra

n
t 

fo
r 

O
ld

er
 A

d
u

lt
s 

 (
24

72
 :

 H
o

m
e 

&
 C

o
m

m
u

n
it

y 
C

ar
e 

B
lo

ck
 G

ra
n

t 
fo

r 
O

ld
er

 A
d

u
lt

s)



8.J.a

Packet Pg. 162

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 H

o
m

e 
&

 C
o

m
m

u
n

it
y 

C
ar

e 
B

lo
ck

 G
ra

n
t 

fo
r 

O
ld

er
 A

d
u

lt
s 

 (
24

72
 :

 H
o

m
e 

&
 C

o
m

m
u

n
it

y 
C

ar
e 

B
lo

ck
 G

ra
n

t 
fo

r 
O

ld
er

 A
d

u
lt

s)



8.J.a

Packet Pg. 163

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 H

o
m

e 
&

 C
o

m
m

u
n

it
y 

C
ar

e 
B

lo
ck

 G
ra

n
t 

fo
r 

O
ld

er
 A

d
u

lt
s 

 (
24

72
 :

 H
o

m
e 

&
 C

o
m

m
u

n
it

y 
C

ar
e 

B
lo

ck
 G

ra
n

t 
fo

r 
O

ld
er

 A
d

u
lt

s)



 

Board of Commissioners 

AGENDA ITEM SUMMARY SHEET 

 
Consent Agenda 

 

Item Number: 8.K 

Meeting Date:   August 05, 2019 

 

Submitted By: Ken Bowman, 

 Administration 

 Prepared by: Karen Davis 

 
Item Title   The American Legion Dept. of North Carolina Request 

 

Attachments: American Legion Request (PDF) 

 

See attached. 

8.K

Packet Pg. 164



8.K.a

Packet Pg. 165

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 A

m
er

ic
an

 L
eg

io
n

 R
eq

u
es

t 
 (

24
74

 :
 T

h
e 

A
m

er
ic

an
 L

eg
io

n
 D

ep
t.

 o
f 

N
o

rt
h

 C
ar

o
lin

a 
R

eq
u

es
t)



8.K.a

Packet Pg. 166

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 A

m
er

ic
an

 L
eg

io
n

 R
eq

u
es

t 
 (

24
74

 :
 T

h
e 

A
m

er
ic

an
 L

eg
io

n
 D

ep
t.

 o
f 

N
o

rt
h

 C
ar

o
lin

a 
R

eq
u

es
t)



 

Board of Commissioners 

AGENDA ITEM SUMMARY SHEET 

 
Consent Agenda 

 

Item Number: 8.L 

Meeting Date:   August 05, 2019 

 

Submitted By: Sally Norfleet, 

 Finance 

 Prepared by: Karen Davis 

 
Item Title   Annual Senior Nutrition Contract 

 

Attachments: Annual Senior Nutrition Contract (PDF) 

 

Summary: 

Albemarle Commission Annual Senior Nutrition Contract 

Recommendation: 

Approve 

8.L

Packet Pg. 167



8.L.a

Packet Pg. 168

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 A

n
n

u
al

 S
en

io
r 

N
u

tr
it

io
n

 C
o

n
tr

ac
t 

 (
24

53
 :

 A
n

n
u

al
 S

en
io

r 
N

u
tr

it
io

n
 C

o
n

tr
ac

t)



8.L.a

Packet Pg. 169

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 A

n
n

u
al

 S
en

io
r 

N
u

tr
it

io
n

 C
o

n
tr

ac
t 

 (
24

53
 :

 A
n

n
u

al
 S

en
io

r 
N

u
tr

it
io

n
 C

o
n

tr
ac

t)



8.L.a

Packet Pg. 170

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 A

n
n

u
al

 S
en

io
r 

N
u

tr
it

io
n

 C
o

n
tr

ac
t 

 (
24

53
 :

 A
n

n
u

al
 S

en
io

r 
N

u
tr

it
io

n
 C

o
n

tr
ac

t)



8.L.a

Packet Pg. 171

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 A

n
n

u
al

 S
en

io
r 

N
u

tr
it

io
n

 C
o

n
tr

ac
t 

 (
24

53
 :

 A
n

n
u

al
 S

en
io

r 
N

u
tr

it
io

n
 C

o
n

tr
ac

t)



8.L.a

Packet Pg. 172

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 A

n
n

u
al

 S
en

io
r 

N
u

tr
it

io
n

 C
o

n
tr

ac
t 

 (
24

53
 :

 A
n

n
u

al
 S

en
io

r 
N

u
tr

it
io

n
 C

o
n

tr
ac

t)



8.L.a

Packet Pg. 173

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 A

n
n

u
al

 S
en

io
r 

N
u

tr
it

io
n

 C
o

n
tr

ac
t 

 (
24

53
 :

 A
n

n
u

al
 S

en
io

r 
N

u
tr

it
io

n
 C

o
n

tr
ac

t)



8.L.a

Packet Pg. 174

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 A

n
n

u
al

 S
en

io
r 

N
u

tr
it

io
n

 C
o

n
tr

ac
t 

 (
24

53
 :

 A
n

n
u

al
 S

en
io

r 
N

u
tr

it
io

n
 C

o
n

tr
ac

t)



8.L.a

Packet Pg. 175

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 A

n
n

u
al

 S
en

io
r 

N
u

tr
it

io
n

 C
o

n
tr

ac
t 

 (
24

53
 :

 A
n

n
u

al
 S

en
io

r 
N

u
tr

it
io

n
 C

o
n

tr
ac

t)



8.L.a

Packet Pg. 176

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 A

n
n

u
al

 S
en

io
r 

N
u

tr
it

io
n

 C
o

n
tr

ac
t 

 (
24

53
 :

 A
n

n
u

al
 S

en
io

r 
N

u
tr

it
io

n
 C

o
n

tr
ac

t)



8.L.a

Packet Pg. 177

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 A

n
n

u
al

 S
en

io
r 

N
u

tr
it

io
n

 C
o

n
tr

ac
t 

 (
24

53
 :

 A
n

n
u

al
 S

en
io

r 
N

u
tr

it
io

n
 C

o
n

tr
ac

t)



8.L.a

Packet Pg. 178

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 A

n
n

u
al

 S
en

io
r 

N
u

tr
it

io
n

 C
o

n
tr

ac
t 

 (
24

53
 :

 A
n

n
u

al
 S

en
io

r 
N

u
tr

it
io

n
 C

o
n

tr
ac

t)



8.L.a

Packet Pg. 179

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 A

n
n

u
al

 S
en

io
r 

N
u

tr
it

io
n

 C
o

n
tr

ac
t 

 (
24

53
 :

 A
n

n
u

al
 S

en
io

r 
N

u
tr

it
io

n
 C

o
n

tr
ac

t)



8.L.a

Packet Pg. 180

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 A

n
n

u
al

 S
en

io
r 

N
u

tr
it

io
n

 C
o

n
tr

ac
t 

 (
24

53
 :

 A
n

n
u

al
 S

en
io

r 
N

u
tr

it
io

n
 C

o
n

tr
ac

t)



 

Board of Commissioners 

AGENDA ITEM SUMMARY SHEET 

 
Consent Agenda 

 

Item Number: 8.M 

Meeting Date:   August 05, 2019 

 

Submitted By: Dan Porter, Planning Director 

 Planning & Zoning 

 Prepared by: Karen Davis 

 
Item Title   Set Public Hearing - Ordinance 2019-09-01 Rezoning 

Application 

 

Attachments: Agenda Summary Sheet Ordinance 2019-09-01

 (DOC) 

Staff Report (PDF) 

Supporting Documents (PDF) 

2019-09-01 - Ordinance Amending the Official Zoning 

Map - Eric Wood

 (DOC) 

 

See attached agenda summary and supporting documentation. 

8.M

Packet Pg. 181



            
      

 

Camden County Board of Commissioners 
AGENDA ITEM SUMMARY SHEET 

        

Item Number:  

     

Meeting Date:   August 5, 2019 

Attachments:   Ordinance/Findings/Planning Board  

   Recommendation  

Submitted By: Planning Department  

 

ITEM TITLE:  Set Public Hearing Ordinance 2019-09-01; 
Rezoning Application (UDO 2019-06-23) 
for Eric Wood 

 
SUMMARY: 
 

Eric Wood met with planning staff on rezoning of his property (approximately 15.64 acres) he purchased 

located adjacent to 204 and 208 County Club Road.  Mr. Wood purchased the property as an investment for 

him and his family with the initial desire to cut out two one acre lots, build two houses on septic systems as 

sewer is not available at this time, and keep remainder of land as farmland.   Current zoning of Rural 

Residential (RR) has a minimum lot size of two acres.         

 

Neighborhood meeting was held July 11, 2019 in the upstairs Courtroom of the Historic Camden County 

Courthouse. (comments included in attached staff report). 

 

Planning Board met on July 17, 2019 and after discussion with applicant, staff and input from adjacent 

owner Planning Board made the following motions: 

 

- Consistency Statement:  Motion made the requested zoning is consistent with the objective of the 

Comprehensive Plan as it encourages higher density development within the Core Village 

boundaries. 

 

Excerpt from Comprehensive Plan – Vision Statement 

 

“New development will be focused within targeted core areas to breathe new life into established county 

villages and to efficiently use existing and planned infrastructure and public resources. New housing 

choices will be made available to serve families, young professionals, and retirees. Rural areas will 

maintain prominence in the county, and will continue to serve agricultural and forestry production and low 

density residential development.” 

 

Motion passed:  5-0 Vote. 

  

- Motion made to recommended approval of rezoning the 15.64 acre tract from Rural Residential 

(RR) to Village Residential (VR) as recommended by staff.   

  

Motion passed:  5-0 vote. 

 

RECOMMENDATION: 
 
Set Pubic Hearing for September 9, 2019 

 

MOTION MADE BY: 

T. White         ____ 

C. Riggs        ____ 

G. Meiggs      ____ 

R. Krainiak     ____ 

R. Munro        ____ 

NO MOTION   ____ 
 
VOTE: 

T. White         ____ 

C. Riggs         ____ 

G. Meiggs      ____ 

R. Krainiak     ____ 
R. Munro        ____ 
ABSENT         ____ 
RECUSED      ____ 
 

8.M.a

Packet Pg. 182

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 A

g
en

d
a 

S
u

m
m

ar
y 

S
h

ee
t 

O
rd

in
an

ce
 2

01
9-

09
-0

1 
 (

24
56

 :
 S

et
 P

u
b

lic
 H

ea
ri

n
g

 -
 O

rd
in

an
ce

 2
01

9-
09

-0
1 

R
ez

o
n

in
g

 A
p

p
lic

at
io

n
)



8.M.b

Packet Pg. 183

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 S

ta
ff

 R
ep

o
rt

  (
24

56
 :

 S
et

 P
u

b
lic

 H
ea

ri
n

g
 -

 O
rd

in
an

ce
 2

01
9-

09
-0

1 
R

ez
o

n
in

g
 A

p
p

lic
at

io
n

)



8.M.b

Packet Pg. 184

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 S

ta
ff

 R
ep

o
rt

  (
24

56
 :

 S
et

 P
u

b
lic

 H
ea

ri
n

g
 -

 O
rd

in
an

ce
 2

01
9-

09
-0

1 
R

ez
o

n
in

g
 A

p
p

lic
at

io
n

)



8.M.b

Packet Pg. 185

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 S

ta
ff

 R
ep

o
rt

  (
24

56
 :

 S
et

 P
u

b
lic

 H
ea

ri
n

g
 -

 O
rd

in
an

ce
 2

01
9-

09
-0

1 
R

ez
o

n
in

g
 A

p
p

lic
at

io
n

)



8.M.b

Packet Pg. 186

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 S

ta
ff

 R
ep

o
rt

  (
24

56
 :

 S
et

 P
u

b
lic

 H
ea

ri
n

g
 -

 O
rd

in
an

ce
 2

01
9-

09
-0

1 
R

ez
o

n
in

g
 A

p
p

lic
at

io
n

)



8.M.b

Packet Pg. 187

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 S

ta
ff

 R
ep

o
rt

  (
24

56
 :

 S
et

 P
u

b
lic

 H
ea

ri
n

g
 -

 O
rd

in
an

ce
 2

01
9-

09
-0

1 
R

ez
o

n
in

g
 A

p
p

lic
at

io
n

)



8.M.b

Packet Pg. 188

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 S

ta
ff

 R
ep

o
rt

  (
24

56
 :

 S
et

 P
u

b
lic

 H
ea

ri
n

g
 -

 O
rd

in
an

ce
 2

01
9-

09
-0

1 
R

ez
o

n
in

g
 A

p
p

lic
at

io
n

)



8.M.b

Packet Pg. 189

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 S

ta
ff

 R
ep

o
rt

  (
24

56
 :

 S
et

 P
u

b
lic

 H
ea

ri
n

g
 -

 O
rd

in
an

ce
 2

01
9-

09
-0

1 
R

ez
o

n
in

g
 A

p
p

lic
at

io
n

)



8.M.b

Packet Pg. 190

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 S

ta
ff

 R
ep

o
rt

  (
24

56
 :

 S
et

 P
u

b
lic

 H
ea

ri
n

g
 -

 O
rd

in
an

ce
 2

01
9-

09
-0

1 
R

ez
o

n
in

g
 A

p
p

lic
at

io
n

)



8.M.b

Packet Pg. 191

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 S

ta
ff

 R
ep

o
rt

  (
24

56
 :

 S
et

 P
u

b
lic

 H
ea

ri
n

g
 -

 O
rd

in
an

ce
 2

01
9-

09
-0

1 
R

ez
o

n
in

g
 A

p
p

lic
at

io
n

)



8.M.b

Packet Pg. 192

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 S

ta
ff

 R
ep

o
rt

  (
24

56
 :

 S
et

 P
u

b
lic

 H
ea

ri
n

g
 -

 O
rd

in
an

ce
 2

01
9-

09
-0

1 
R

ez
o

n
in

g
 A

p
p

lic
at

io
n

)



8.M.b

Packet Pg. 193

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 S

ta
ff

 R
ep

o
rt

  (
24

56
 :

 S
et

 P
u

b
lic

 H
ea

ri
n

g
 -

 O
rd

in
an

ce
 2

01
9-

09
-0

1 
R

ez
o

n
in

g
 A

p
p

lic
at

io
n

)



8.M.b

Packet Pg. 194

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 S

ta
ff

 R
ep

o
rt

  (
24

56
 :

 S
et

 P
u

b
lic

 H
ea

ri
n

g
 -

 O
rd

in
an

ce
 2

01
9-

09
-0

1 
R

ez
o

n
in

g
 A

p
p

lic
at

io
n

)



8.M.b

Packet Pg. 195

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 S

ta
ff

 R
ep

o
rt

  (
24

56
 :

 S
et

 P
u

b
lic

 H
ea

ri
n

g
 -

 O
rd

in
an

ce
 2

01
9-

09
-0

1 
R

ez
o

n
in

g
 A

p
p

lic
at

io
n

)



8.M.b

Packet Pg. 196

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 S

ta
ff

 R
ep

o
rt

  (
24

56
 :

 S
et

 P
u

b
lic

 H
ea

ri
n

g
 -

 O
rd

in
an

ce
 2

01
9-

09
-0

1 
R

ez
o

n
in

g
 A

p
p

lic
at

io
n

)



8.M.b

Packet Pg. 197

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 S

ta
ff

 R
ep

o
rt

  (
24

56
 :

 S
et

 P
u

b
lic

 H
ea

ri
n

g
 -

 O
rd

in
an

ce
 2

01
9-

09
-0

1 
R

ez
o

n
in

g
 A

p
p

lic
at

io
n

)



8.M.b

Packet Pg. 198

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 S

ta
ff

 R
ep

o
rt

  (
24

56
 :

 S
et

 P
u

b
lic

 H
ea

ri
n

g
 -

 O
rd

in
an

ce
 2

01
9-

09
-0

1 
R

ez
o

n
in

g
 A

p
p

lic
at

io
n

)



8.M.c

Packet Pg. 199

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 S

u
p

p
o

rt
in

g
 D

o
cu

m
en

ts
  (

24
56

 :
 S

et
 P

u
b

lic
 H

ea
ri

n
g

 -
 O

rd
in

an
ce

 2
01

9-
09

-0
1 

R
ez

o
n

in
g

 A
p

p
lic

at
io

n
)



8.M.c

Packet Pg. 200

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 S

u
p

p
o

rt
in

g
 D

o
cu

m
en

ts
  (

24
56

 :
 S

et
 P

u
b

lic
 H

ea
ri

n
g

 -
 O

rd
in

an
ce

 2
01

9-
09

-0
1 

R
ez

o
n

in
g

 A
p

p
lic

at
io

n
)



8.M.c

Packet Pg. 201

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 S

u
p

p
o

rt
in

g
 D

o
cu

m
en

ts
  (

24
56

 :
 S

et
 P

u
b

lic
 H

ea
ri

n
g

 -
 O

rd
in

an
ce

 2
01

9-
09

-0
1 

R
ez

o
n

in
g

 A
p

p
lic

at
io

n
)



8.M.c

Packet Pg. 202

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 S

u
p

p
o

rt
in

g
 D

o
cu

m
en

ts
  (

24
56

 :
 S

et
 P

u
b

lic
 H

ea
ri

n
g

 -
 O

rd
in

an
ce

 2
01

9-
09

-0
1 

R
ez

o
n

in
g

 A
p

p
lic

at
io

n
)



8.M.c

Packet Pg. 203

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 S

u
p

p
o

rt
in

g
 D

o
cu

m
en

ts
  (

24
56

 :
 S

et
 P

u
b

lic
 H

ea
ri

n
g

 -
 O

rd
in

an
ce

 2
01

9-
09

-0
1 

R
ez

o
n

in
g

 A
p

p
lic

at
io

n
)



8.M.c

Packet Pg. 204

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 S

u
p

p
o

rt
in

g
 D

o
cu

m
en

ts
  (

24
56

 :
 S

et
 P

u
b

lic
 H

ea
ri

n
g

 -
 O

rd
in

an
ce

 2
01

9-
09

-0
1 

R
ez

o
n

in
g

 A
p

p
lic

at
io

n
)



8.M.c

Packet Pg. 205

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 S

u
p

p
o

rt
in

g
 D

o
cu

m
en

ts
  (

24
56

 :
 S

et
 P

u
b

lic
 H

ea
ri

n
g

 -
 O

rd
in

an
ce

 2
01

9-
09

-0
1 

R
ez

o
n

in
g

 A
p

p
lic

at
io

n
)



8.M.c

Packet Pg. 206

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 S

u
p

p
o

rt
in

g
 D

o
cu

m
en

ts
  (

24
56

 :
 S

et
 P

u
b

lic
 H

ea
ri

n
g

 -
 O

rd
in

an
ce

 2
01

9-
09

-0
1 

R
ez

o
n

in
g

 A
p

p
lic

at
io

n
)



8.M.c

Packet Pg. 207

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 S

u
p

p
o

rt
in

g
 D

o
cu

m
en

ts
  (

24
56

 :
 S

et
 P

u
b

lic
 H

ea
ri

n
g

 -
 O

rd
in

an
ce

 2
01

9-
09

-0
1 

R
ez

o
n

in
g

 A
p

p
lic

at
io

n
)



8.M.c

Packet Pg. 208

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 S

u
p

p
o

rt
in

g
 D

o
cu

m
en

ts
  (

24
56

 :
 S

et
 P

u
b

lic
 H

ea
ri

n
g

 -
 O

rd
in

an
ce

 2
01

9-
09

-0
1 

R
ez

o
n

in
g

 A
p

p
lic

at
io

n
)



8.M.c

Packet Pg. 209

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 S

u
p

p
o

rt
in

g
 D

o
cu

m
en

ts
  (

24
56

 :
 S

et
 P

u
b

lic
 H

ea
ri

n
g

 -
 O

rd
in

an
ce

 2
01

9-
09

-0
1 

R
ez

o
n

in
g

 A
p

p
lic

at
io

n
)



8.M.c

Packet Pg. 210

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 S

u
p

p
o

rt
in

g
 D

o
cu

m
en

ts
  (

24
56

 :
 S

et
 P

u
b

lic
 H

ea
ri

n
g

 -
 O

rd
in

an
ce

 2
01

9-
09

-0
1 

R
ez

o
n

in
g

 A
p

p
lic

at
io

n
)



8.M.c

Packet Pg. 211

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 S

u
p

p
o

rt
in

g
 D

o
cu

m
en

ts
  (

24
56

 :
 S

et
 P

u
b

lic
 H

ea
ri

n
g

 -
 O

rd
in

an
ce

 2
01

9-
09

-0
1 

R
ez

o
n

in
g

 A
p

p
lic

at
io

n
)



8.M.c

Packet Pg. 212

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 S

u
p

p
o

rt
in

g
 D

o
cu

m
en

ts
  (

24
56

 :
 S

et
 P

u
b

lic
 H

ea
ri

n
g

 -
 O

rd
in

an
ce

 2
01

9-
09

-0
1 

R
ez

o
n

in
g

 A
p

p
lic

at
io

n
)



8.M.c

Packet Pg. 213

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 S

u
p

p
o

rt
in

g
 D

o
cu

m
en

ts
  (

24
56

 :
 S

et
 P

u
b

lic
 H

ea
ri

n
g

 -
 O

rd
in

an
ce

 2
01

9-
09

-0
1 

R
ez

o
n

in
g

 A
p

p
lic

at
io

n
)



8.M.c

Packet Pg. 214

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 S

u
p

p
o

rt
in

g
 D

o
cu

m
en

ts
  (

24
56

 :
 S

et
 P

u
b

lic
 H

ea
ri

n
g

 -
 O

rd
in

an
ce

 2
01

9-
09

-0
1 

R
ez

o
n

in
g

 A
p

p
lic

at
io

n
)



 

Ordinance No. 2019-09-01 

 

An Ordinance 

Amending the Camden County  

Zoning Map 

Camden County, North Carolina 

 

 

 

Article I: Purpose 

 

The purpose of this Ordinance is to amend the Zoning Map of Camden County, North 

Carolina, which was originally adopted by the County Commissioners on December 20, 

1993, and subsequently amended. 

  

Article II. Amendment to Zoning Map  
 

The Official Zoning Map of Camden County, North Carolina, which was adopted on 

December 20, 1993, and subsequently amended, is hereby amended as follows: 

 

The property currently shown in the Camden County Tax Assessor’s Office as 

PIN 02-8934-04-52-4826 is hereby re-zoned from Rural Residential (RR) to   

Village Residential (VR).   

 

Article III. Penalty 

 

1. Violations of the provision of this Ordinance or failure to comply with any of its  

Requirements, including violations of any conditions and safeguards established 

in connection with grants of variances or Special Use or Conditional Use Permits, 

shall constitute a misdemeanor, punishable by a fine of up to five-hundred ($500) 

dollars or a maximum thirty (30) days imprisonment as provided in G. S. 14-4. 

 

2. Any act constituting a violation of the provisions of this Ordinance or a failure to  

comply with any of its requirements, including violations of any conditions and 

safeguards established in connection with the grants of variances or Special Use 

or Conditional Use Permits, shall also subject the offender to a civil penalty of 

one-hundred ($100) dollars for each day the violation continues.  If the offender 

fails to pay the penalty within ten (10) days after being cited for a violation, the 

penalty may be recovered by the county in a civil action in the nature of debt.  A 

civil penalty may not be appealed to the Board of Adjustment if the offender was 

sent a final notice of violation in accordance with Article 151.568 and did not take 

an appeal to the Board of Adjustment within the prescribed time. 

 

3. This Ordinance may also be enforced by any appropriate equitable action. 

 

8.M.d

Packet Pg. 215

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 2

01
9-

09
-0

1 
- 

O
rd

in
an

ce
 A

m
en

d
in

g
 t

h
e 

O
ff

ic
ia

l Z
o

n
in

g
 M

ap
 -

 E
ri

c 
W

o
o

d
  (

24
56

 :
 S

et
 P

u
b

lic
 H

ea
ri

n
g

 -
 O

rd
in

an
ce

 2
01

9-
09

-0
1 

R
ez

o
n

in
g



 

4. Each day that any violation continues after notification by the administrator that  

such violation exists shall be considered a separate offense for purposes of the 

penalties and remedies specified in this section. 

 

5. Any one, all or any combination of the foregoing penalties and remedies may be  

used to enforce this Ordinance. 

            

 

Article IV. Severability 
 

If any language in this Ordinance is found to be invalid by a court of competent 

jurisdiction or other entity having such legal authority, then only the specific language 

held to be invalid shall be affected and all other language shall be in full force and effect. 

 

 

Article V. Effective Date 

 

This Ordinance is effective upon adoption. 

 

Adopted by the Board of Commissioners for the County of Camden this       day of        ,                                

2019. 

 

 

      County of Camden 

    

      _____________________________ 

      Tom White, Chairman 

      Camden County Board of Commissioners 

ATTEST: 

 

 

 

____________________________ 

Karen Davis 

Clerk to the Board       (SEAL) 

 

 

 

 

 

 

8.M.d

Packet Pg. 216

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 2

01
9-

09
-0

1 
- 

O
rd

in
an

ce
 A

m
en

d
in

g
 t

h
e 

O
ff

ic
ia

l Z
o

n
in

g
 M

ap
 -

 E
ri

c 
W

o
o

d
  (

24
56

 :
 S

et
 P

u
b

lic
 H

ea
ri

n
g

 -
 O

rd
in

an
ce

 2
01

9-
09

-0
1 

R
ez

o
n

in
g



 

Board of Commissioners 

AGENDA ITEM SUMMARY SHEET 

 
Information, Reports & Minutes From Other Agencies 

 

Item Number: 11.A 

Meeting Date:   August 05, 2019 

 

Submitted By: Sally Norfleet, 

 Finance 

 Prepared by: Karen Davis 

 
Item Title   FY 18-19 YTD Finance Report 

 

Attachments: Sales Tax Revenue Collection (PDF) 

 

11.A

Packet Pg. 217



11.A.a

Packet Pg. 218

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 S

al
es

 T
ax

 R
ev

en
u

e 
C

o
lle

ct
io

n
  (

24
64

 :
 F

Y
 1

8-
19

 Y
T

D
 S

al
es

 T
ax

 R
ev

en
u

e 
C

o
lle

ct
io

n
)



 

Board of Commissioners 

AGENDA ITEM SUMMARY SHEET 

 
Information, Reports & Minutes From Other Agencies 

 

Item Number: 11.B 

Meeting Date:   August 05, 2019 

 

Submitted By: Tammie Krauss, Register of Deeds 

 Register of Deeds 

 Prepared by: Karen Davis 

 
Item Title   Register of Deeds Report 

 

Attachments: Weekly Report (XLS) 

Monthly Report (PDF) 

 

11.B

Packet Pg. 219



Camden County Register of Deeds: Tammie Krauss
February 2018 Daily Deposit

DATE NC CHILDRENSNC DOM. STATE COUNTY RETIREMENTAUTO FUND STATE ROD TOTAL
TRUST VIO. FUND REV. STAMPSREV. STAMPS TREASURYGENERAL

$17.72 $33.00 $2.33

06/03/19 5.00$            30.00$          260.68$       271.32$       6.27$        33.64$      55.80$      287.29$       950.00$           
06/04/19 -$              -$              0.54$        2.93$        6.20$        26.33$         36.00$             
06/05/19 5.00$            30.00$          1.20$        4.39$        39.41$         80.00$             
06/06/19 -$              240.10$       249.90$       2.13$        12.02$      24.80$      103.05$       632.00$           

06/07/19 5.00$            30.00$          356.72$       371.28$       3.18$        15.42$      24.80$      133.60$       940.00$           

06/10/19 -$              -$              5.15$        33.36$      31.00$      274.29$       343.80$           
06/11/19 5.21$        32.85$      24.80$      285.14$       348.00$           
06/12/19 9,409.47$    9,793.53$    8.70$        51.13$      80.60$      439.57$       19,783.00$      
06/13/19 311.64$       324.36$       2.84$        16.03$      31.00$      139.13$       825.00$           
06/14/19 443.94$       462.06$       8.85$        53.70$      55.80$      471.65$       1,496.00$        
06/17/19 553.70$       576.30$       4.73$        26.58$      49.60$      234.09$       1,445.00$        
06/18/19 0.19$        1.27$        11.34$         12.80$             
06/19/19 3.02$        18.35$      24.80$      154.83$       201.00$           
06/20/19 547.33$       569.67$       7.30$        43.69$      68.20$      367.41$       1,603.60$        
06/21/19 573.79$       597.21$       5.70$        34.54$      49.60$      290.16$       1,551.00$        
06/24/19 898.17$       934.83$       7.26$        42.30$      74.40$      360.04$       2,317.00$        
06/25/19 0.39$        1.94$        6.20$        17.47$         26.00$             
06/26/19 939.33$       977.67$       5.78$        34.53$      49.60$      295.09$       2,302.00$        
06/27/19 5.00$            30.00$          426.30$       443.70$       5.10$        27.82$      37.20$      234.88$       1,210.00$        
06/28/19 728.63$       758.37$       8.15$        49.82$      68.20$      417.43$       2,030.60$        

-$                 
0.00
0.00

-$                 
TOTAL 20.00$          120.00$        15,689.80$  16,330.20$  91.69$      536.31$    762.60$    4,582.20$    38,132.80$      

11.B.a

Packet Pg. 220

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 W

ee
kl

y 
R

ep
o

rt
  (

24
58

 :
 R

eg
is

te
r 

o
f 

D
ee

d
s 

R
ep

o
rt

)



11.B.b

Packet Pg. 221

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 M

o
n

th
ly

 R
ep

o
rt

  (
24

58
 :

 R
eg

is
te

r 
o

f 
D

ee
d

s 
R

ep
o

rt
)



 

Board of Commissioners 

AGENDA ITEM SUMMARY SHEET 

 
Information, Reports & Minutes From Other Agencies 

 

Item Number: 11.C 

Meeting Date:   August 05, 2019 

 

Submitted By: Kim Perry, 

 Library 

 Prepared by: Kim Perry 

 
Item Title   Library Report 

 

Attachments: 19-06 (DOCX) 

 

11.C

Packet Pg. 222



Camden County Public Library 

June 2019 Statistics 

 
 

Visitor Count 1,967 

Materials Check Outs & Renewals 3,393 + NCKIDS 

Computer/ Wireless Use 739/387 

Questions Answered 368 

Juvenile Programs/Attendance 9/143 

Teen/Tween Programs/Attendance 1/6 

Adult Programs/Attendance 1/10 

Outreach Programs/Attendance 1/12 

Meeting Room Usage/Attendance 11/105 

Days/Hours Open 24/212 

# Items in Collection 18,299 

Library Card Holders 3,603 

 
 

 

Comparison by Year 

2017-2019 

    

           

3,911

3,218
3,393

0

1,000

2,000

3,000

4,000

Jun 2017 Jun 2018 Jun 2019

Circulation

2,112 1,969
1,967

0

500

1,000

1,500

2,000

2,500

Jun 2017 Jun 2018 Jun 2019

Attendance

11.C.a

Packet Pg. 223

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 1

9-
06

  (
24

51
 :

 L
ib

ra
ry

 R
ep

o
rt

)



 

Board of Commissioners 

AGENDA ITEM SUMMARY SHEET 

 
Information, Reports & Minutes From Other Agencies 

 

Item Number: 11.D 

Meeting Date:   August 05, 2019 

 

Submitted By: Karen Davis, Clerk to the Board 

 Administration 

 Prepared by: Karen Davis 

 
Item Title   NC Forest Service Annual Report 

 

Attachments: NC Forest Service Annual Report (PDF) 

 

11.D

Packet Pg. 224



11.D.a

Packet Pg. 225

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 N

C
 F

o
re

st
 S

er
vi

ce
 A

n
n

u
al

 R
ep

o
rt

  (
24

57
 :

 N
C

 F
o

re
st

 S
er

vi
ce

 A
n

n
u

al
 R

ep
o

rt
)



11.D.a

Packet Pg. 226

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 N

C
 F

o
re

st
 S

er
vi

ce
 A

n
n

u
al

 R
ep

o
rt

  (
24

57
 :

 N
C

 F
o

re
st

 S
er

vi
ce

 A
n

n
u

al
 R

ep
o

rt
)



11.D.a

Packet Pg. 227

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 N

C
 F

o
re

st
 S

er
vi

ce
 A

n
n

u
al

 R
ep

o
rt

  (
24

57
 :

 N
C

 F
o

re
st

 S
er

vi
ce

 A
n

n
u

al
 R

ep
o

rt
)


	Agenda Packet
	Call to Order
	6:00 PM Closed Session - Contract Negotiation
	7:00 PM Reconvene Board of Commissioners
	Welcome, Invocation & Pledge of Allegiance
	Rev. Boyce Porter - Geneva Baptist Church

	1. Public Comments
	2. Consideration of Agenda
	3. Conflict of Interest Disclosure Statement
	4. Presentations
	A. 2452 : Emergency Management - Christy Saunders
	Printout: 2452 : Emergency Management - Christy Saunders


	Recess to South Camden Water & Sewer District Board of Directors
	Reconvene Board of Commissioners
	5. Public Hearings
	A. 2455 : Public Hearing - Ordinance 2019-07-01 Rezoning Application Camden County - Dan Porter
	Printout: 2455 : Public Hearing - Ordinance 2019-07-01 Rezoning Application Camden County - Dan Porter
	a. Agenda Summary Sheet Ordinance 2019-07-01
	b. Camden Rezoning Findings
	c. Camden County BOC letter_072319 (002)
	d. Supporting Documents
	e. 2019-07-01 - Ordinance Amending the Official Zoning Map - Camden County


	6. New Business
	A. 2469 : Tax Report - Lisa Anderson
	Printout: 2469 : Tax Report - Lisa Anderson
	a. 20190730105825878.pdf

	B. 2467 : Travel Policy
	Printout: 2467 : Travel Policy
	a. Travel Policy 08-2019
	b. Travel Authorization 11-2017
	c. Travel Reimbursement Form 5-2018

	C. 2471 : Revised Camden Code Chapter 150 Minimum Housing Code - Dan Porter
	Printout: 2471 : Revised Camden Code Chapter 150 Minimum Housing Code - Dan Porter
	a. Agenda Summary Sheet Minimum Housing code
	b. Chapter 150 Code Final Revision


	7. Board Appointments
	A. 2462 : Parks & Recreation Advisory Board
	Printout: 2462 : Parks & Recreation Advisory Board


	8. Consent Agenda
	A. 2459 : BOC Meeting Minutes - July 8, 2019
	Printout: 2459 : BOC Meeting Minutes - July 8, 2019
	a. bocminutes_070819

	B. 2460 : BOC Meeting Minutes - July 9, 2019
	Printout: 2460 : BOC Meeting Minutes - July 9, 2019
	a. jointmeetingminutes_070919

	C. 2466 : Budget Transfers
	Printout: 2466 : Budget Transfers
	a. Budget Transfers

	D. 2463 : Budget Amendments
	Printout: 2463 : Budget Amendments
	a. Budget Amendments

	E. 2461 : DMV Monthly Report
	Printout: 2461 : DMV Monthly Report
	a. 20190723083622825.pdf

	F. 2454 : Tax Collection Report
	Printout: 2454 : Tax Collection Report
	a. Tax Collection Report

	G. 2465 : Pickups, Releases & Refunds
	Printout: 2465 : Pickups, Releases & Refunds
	a. Pickups, Releases & Refunds

	H. 2470 : Surplus Property - Sheriff's Office
	Printout: 2470 : Surplus Property - Sheriff's Office
	a. Surplus Property

	I. 2473 : Grant Application - Sheriff's Office
	Printout: 2473 : Grant Application - Sheriff's Office
	a. Sheriff's Office Grant

	J. 2472 : Home & Community Care Block Grant for Older Adults
	Printout: 2472 : Home & Community Care Block Grant for Older Adults
	a. Home & Community Care Block Grant for Older Adults

	K. 2474 : The American Legion Dept. of North Carolina Request
	Printout: 2474 : The American Legion Dept. of North Carolina Request
	a. American Legion Request

	L. 2453 : Annual Senior Nutrition Contract
	Printout: 2453 : Annual Senior Nutrition Contract
	a. Annual Senior Nutrition Contract

	M. 2456 : Set Public Hearing - Ordinance 2019-09-01 Rezoning Application
	Printout: 2456 : Set Public Hearing - Ordinance 2019-09-01 Rezoning Application
	a. Agenda Summary Sheet Ordinance 2019-09-01
	b. Staff Report
	c. Supporting Documents
	d. 2019-09-01 - Ordinance Amending the Official Zoning Map - Eric Wood


	9. County Manager's Report
	10. Commissioners' Reports
	11. Information, Reports & Minutes From Other Agencies
	A. 2464 : FY 18-19 YTD Sales Tax Revenue Collection
	Printout: 2464 : FY 18-19 YTD Sales Tax Revenue Collection
	a. Sales Tax Revenue Collection

	B. 2458 : Register of Deeds Report
	Printout: 2458 : Register of Deeds Report
	a. Weekly Report
	b. Monthly Report

	C. 2451 : Library Report
	Printout: 2451 : Library Report
	a. 19-06

	D. 2457 : NC Forest Service Annual Report
	Printout: 2457 : NC Forest Service Annual Report
	a. NC Forest Service Annual Report


	12. Other Matters
	13. Adjourn

	Appendix
	4.A · 2452 : Emergency Management - Christy Saunders
	5.A · 2455 : Public Hearing - Ordinance 2019-07-01 Rezoning Application Camden County - Dan Porter
	5.A.a · Agenda Summary Sheet Ordinance 2019-07-01
	5.A.b · Camden Rezoning Findings
	5.A.c · Camden County BOC letter_072319 (002)
	5.A.d · Supporting Documents
	5.A.e · 2019-07-01 - Ordinance Amending the Official Zoning Map - Camden County

	6.A · 2469 : Tax Report - Lisa Anderson
	6.A.a · 20190730105825878.pdf

	6.B · 2467 : Travel Policy
	6.B.a · Travel Policy 08-2019
	6.B.b · Travel Authorization 11-2017
	6.B.c · Travel Reimbursement Form 5-2018

	6.C · 2471 : Revised Camden Code Chapter 150 Minimum Housing Code - Dan Porter
	6.C.a · Agenda Summary Sheet Minimum Housing code
	6.C.b · Chapter 150 Code Final Revision

	7.A · 2462 : Parks & Recreation Advisory Board
	8.A · 2459 : BOC Meeting Minutes - July 8, 2019
	8.A.a · bocminutes_070819

	8.B · 2460 : BOC Meeting Minutes - July 9, 2019
	8.B.a · jointmeetingminutes_070919

	8.C · 2466 : Budget Transfers
	8.C.a · Budget Transfers

	8.D · 2463 : Budget Amendments
	8.D.a · Budget Amendments

	8.E · 2461 : DMV Monthly Report
	8.E.a · 20190723083622825.pdf

	8.F · 2454 : Tax Collection Report
	8.F.a · Tax Collection Report

	8.G · 2465 : Pickups, Releases & Refunds
	8.G.a · Pickups, Releases & Refunds

	8.H · 2470 : Surplus Property - Sheriff's Office
	8.H.a · Surplus Property

	8.I · 2473 : Grant Application - Sheriff's Office
	8.I.a · Sheriff's Office Grant

	8.J · 2472 : Home & Community Care Block Grant for Older Adults
	8.J.a · Home & Community Care Block Grant for Older Adults

	8.K · 2474 : The American Legion Dept. of North Carolina Request
	8.K.a · American Legion Request

	8.L · 2453 : Annual Senior Nutrition Contract
	8.L.a · Annual Senior Nutrition Contract

	8.M · 2456 : Set Public Hearing - Ordinance 2019-09-01 Rezoning Application
	8.M.a · Agenda Summary Sheet Ordinance 2019-09-01
	8.M.b · Staff Report
	8.M.c · Supporting Documents
	8.M.d · 2019-09-01 - Ordinance Amending the Official Zoning Map - Eric Wood

	11.A · 2464 : FY 18-19 YTD Sales Tax Revenue Collection
	11.A.a · Sales Tax Revenue Collection

	11.B · 2458 : Register of Deeds Report
	11.B.a · Weekly Report
	11.B.b · Monthly Report

	11.C · 2451 : Library Report
	11.C.a · 19-06

	11.D · 2457 : NC Forest Service Annual Report
	11.D.a · NC Forest Service Annual Report



